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CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS

The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of F9ntains certain safe harbor provisions regartiingard-looking statements. This

Form 10-K, and other information provided by ustatements made by our directors, officers or eygae from time to time, may contain
“forward-looking” statements and information, whiicivolve risks and uncertainties. Actual futureulesmay differ materially. Statements
indicating that we “expect,” “estimate,” “believé'dre planning” or “plan to” are forward-lookings are other statements concerning future
financial results, product offerings or other egetiiat have not yet occurred. There are variousifathat could cause actual results or evel
differ materially from those anticipated by thevi@ard-looking statements. Such factors are morg fidkscribed in Item 1A of this Form 10-K
under the heading “Risk Factors.” Although we hageght to identify the most significant risks ta dusiness, we cannot predict whether, or
to what extent, any of such risks may be reali¥éd.also cannot assure you that we have identiflgzbasible issues which we might face. '
undertake no obligation to update any forward-loglk$tatements that we make.

Item 1. Business
Overview

We are a global enterprise software company thalbles organizations to achieve higher levels oinass performance by improving their
operational responsiveness. Operational resporesgdn the ability of business processes and sgdtenespond to changing business
conditions and customer interactions as they odbfgr offer a portfolio of best-in-class, real-timesiness solutions providing visibility into
business systems and processes, event processagptmnd to business events that could affect paeioce, and business process managemer
enabling businesses to continually improve busipessesses with no disruption to their business alde provide enterprise data solutions
(data access and integration) and application dpweént platforms (for application development arahagement, and SaaS enablement). We
maximize the benefits of operational responsivemdske minimizing information technology (IT) congdity and total cost of ownership.

For 2010 we have reorganized into three busineiss. ipplication Development Platforms, Enterpridgsiness Solutions and Enterprise Data
Solutions. Our product lines comply with open stdd, deliver high levels of performance and sékthaland provide a low total cost of
ownership. Our products are generally sold undgveieal licenses, but certain product lines andness activities also utilize a term or
subscription licensing model.

Our Application Development Platforms business imitludes the OpenEdge product set which enabtEpendent software vendors (ISVs)
and enddser organizations to develop, deploy and managleisticated business applications in complex bugsimsavironments. Our Orbix a
ObjectStore products are also part of this busioegs

Our Enterprise Business Solutions business unliides solutions that provide responsive integratiorsiness transaction management and
real-time business visibility, business event pssagy, and business process management. Produbts business unit include the Apama
complex event processing platform, the Actionalibess transaction management platform, the recantjyired Savvion business process
management suite, and Sonic integration products.

Our Enterprise Data Solutions business unit hedfiser operational responsiveness with the rigfdarimation, in the right form, at the right

time. This business unit includes solutions andipets that provide data management, data integratplication, caching, access, and
security capabilities spanning multiple data sosir&nterprise Data Solutions enables enterprisssite three important challenges: (1) access
and integrate fragmented enterprise data and delst@nable information in real time; (2) leveragainframe data and applications with
different architectures; and (3) connect applicagion various platforms to numerous data sourgesluets in this business unit include the
Progress Data Services, Progress DataDirect Shaddwrogress DataDirect Connect.

Approximately half of our worldwide revenue is rigall through relationships with indirect channettipers, principally application partners
and original equipment manufacturers (OEMs). Amilin partners are 1ISVs that develop and markeiagtipns using our technology and
resell our products in conjunction with sales @itltown products that incorporate our technolodyede application partners sell business
applications in diverse industries such as manufaxg, distribution, financial services, retail \gsnment and health care. OEMs are
companies that embed our products into their ovitwsoe products or devices. We operate in North Acae Latin America, Europe, Middle
East, Africa (EMEA) and the Asia/Pacific regiondbgh local subsidiaries as well as independentiloiigors.

On January 8, 2010, we acquired Savvion, Inc.jvafaly held business enterprise software compasgd in Santa Clara, California, for
approximately $49 million, net of cash acquiredv\8an is a provider of business process manageswdtware. The Savvion product set will
become part of our Enterprise Business Solutios#less unit.
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Our Products

The following descriptions detail our significarrbducts within each business unit:

Application Development Platforms business ur
Progres® OpenEdge®

The Progress® OpenEdge® platform, with more thgf@Dcustomers worldwide, is a comprehensive platfior the rapid development and
deployment of business applications that are staiselaased and service-oriented. OpenEdge-baseidatppis can be deployed and managed
over many computer platforms as well as under & $édatform. OpenEdge provides a unified environnoamprising development tools,
application servers, application management t@slsembedded database, and the capability to coanddnhtegrate with other applications
data sources. The primary products included inghisluct set are OpenEdge® Studio, OpenEdge® RDBDMfpBNEdge® Application Server,
OpenEdge® DataServers, OpenEdge® Management anmtE0ge® Replication.

Progres® Orbix®

Progress® Orbix® is one of the market-leading impatations of CORBA and is embedded in telephorickes, online brokerage systems,
multimedia news delivery, airline front desk syssemail and road traffic control, large scale bagksystems, credit card clearance, subway

management and CAD systems. Orbix exemplifies edication to addressing high-end enterprise integrgroblems with standards-based

solutions. Orbix is the enterprise CORBA produdiagd by organizations when high performance, haghilability, and security and systems
management are critical. The primary products itketlin this product set are Orbix and Orbacus.

Progres® ObjectStore®

The Progress® ObjectStoratject data management system enables users ¢odstiar much faster than with a relational databessageme
system or file-based storage system. The Objea$aduct provides transactional and high-availgtfiéatures utilized in distributed
enterprises, but with less code than traditiontdlolzse technology. The ObjectStore product proviitgs performance data management with
faster time to market.

Enterprise Business Solutions business ur
Progres® Sonic™

The Progress® Sonic™ product set helps IT orgaioizstachieve broad-scale interoperability of ITteyss and the flexibility to adapt these
systems to rapidly changing business needs. Soodtpts include an enterprise messaging systenoamaf the leading Enterprise Service
Buses (ESB). Sonic products simplify the integratmd flexible reuse of diverse and often propriebausiness systems by manipulating them
as modular, standards-based services, which ceapily combined to serve enterprises in new w8psic ESB@provides reliable integratic

of a SOA that incorporates multiple sites or managet domains. Unigque clustering technology and idaous Availability Architecture

(CAA) ensure scalable processing that never losEssages and never goes down. Through patent-pe@éiAgSonic products can guarantee
timely and continuous delivery of mission-crititalsiness events. The unique capabilities of thx@rmproduct set, which was acquired as part
of our acquisition of IONA Technologies PLC (IONAjJre being combined into Sonic. The primary progliretiuded in this product set are
Sonic ESB, SonicMQ®, Sonic Orchestration Server @odic WorkBench.

Progres® Actional®

Progress® Actional® provides operational and bussingsibility, root cause analysis, policy-basecusigy and control of services in a
heterogeneous environment. Actional can be usdy ieahe lifecycle to enable pre-production teamsddress service quality before runtime,
and Actional’s comprehensive visibility and managettools can be efficiently applied to productagplications. The primary products
included in this product set are Actional Enterpriactional Diagnostics and Actional Application\izdopment.

4
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Progres® Apama®

Progress® Apama® is one of the leading platformsajpital markets for building high frequency traglapplications. The Apama platform
offers flexible and powerful complex event procegdiCEP) capabilities and broad market connectiifyama also gives firms the tools for
creating, testing and deploying unique strategiesoiw latency, high throughput applications indhglalgorithmic trading, market aggregati
smart order routing, market surveillance and mainity and real-time risk management. CEP helpsiessies achieve operational
responsiveness by uncovering events or event patierdata streams that signal new opportunitigscal threats, or changing conditions or
factors that impact the organization. With Apamasibess events can be correlated and analyzedsaordsple data streams in real-time.

Savvion

Savvion BusinessManager™ is one of the leadingiessi process management software products with tioel provide an efficient way for
customers to drive business process innovatiorvi@ayrovides customers the tools to create aningge process-driven solutions and
flexible interfaces to manage daily work with réiate visibility into business processes.

FUSE®

FUSE®is our open source family of distributed SOA infrasture products for companies seeking an operceaption for system integrati
and SOA implementation. The FUSE ESB is an opencegoroduct based on the Apache Software Foundptimects: ServiceMix,
ActiveMQ, CXF, and Camel. FUSE Message Broker i®p@n source, standards-based enterprise messagiegn that is based on Apache
ActiveMQ. FUSE ESB, FUSE Message Broker and oth8E offerings are certified releases of certain dkgaprojects.

Enterprise Data Solutions business un
Progres® DataDirect® Connect®

Progress® DataDirect® Connect® products provide dannectivity components that use industry-stahdderfaces to connect applications
running on various platforms to any major datab¥g¢h components embedded in the products of 088rsdftware companies and in the
applications of thousands of large enterprisespidaDirect Connect product set is a global le@uléne data connectivity market.

Progress®DataDirect® Shadow®

The Progress® DataDirect® Shadow® product is airthuleaded, native runtime architecture and codstdid development environment
providing a real-time foundation architecture ftarglards-based mainframe integration. The Shadodupt supports Web services for SOA,
real-time events for event-driven architecture, SQ@idirect data access and transactional supporaatomatic presentation layer generation
for extending screehased applications to the Web. The primary prodincisided in this product set are Shadow, Shad®ire¢t and Shado'
z/Services.

Progres® Data Services

The Progress® Data Services product set providesidlizzgration for distributed applications, deting realtime transactional views of shar
data in the form that applications need. The PsxgEataXtend Semantic Integrator product offerasigue approach to the data management
problems often associated with SOA, employing arcom semantic data model to create sophisticatedtdaisformations, enabling
organizations to integrate heterogeneous data esswith no disruption to existing applications. Tmenary products included in this product
set are DataXtend Semantic Integrator (Sl), DataXt€E and DataXtend RE.

Segments

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2009, we reorgadiago three business units, which meet the cat segment reporting, for fiscal 2010:
(1) Application Development Platforms, which inchsdthe OpenEdge, Orbix and ObjectStore productErerprise Business Solutions,
which includes the Apama, Sonic, Progress Actiamal FUSE products; and (3) Enterprise Data Solstiahich includes the DataDirect
Connect, DataDirect Shadow and Data Services ptsduc

In fiscal 2009 we were organized in three busingsts which were reportable segments: (1) OpenBdbéesh includes the OpenEdge produ
(2) Enterprise Infrastructure, which includes thga#a, Sonic, Actional, Orbix and FUSE products; @)data Infrastructure, which includes
the DataDirect Connect, DataDirect Shadow, Data#md ObjectStore products. For financial informatielating to business segments and
international operations, see Note 12 of the Cadatdd Financial Statements appearing in this AhReport on Form 10-K.

5




Table of Contents

Product Development

Most of our products have been developed by oeral product development staff or the interndifstaf acquired companies. We believe
that the features and performance of our produets@mpetitive with those of other available depehent and deployment tools and that none
of the current versions of our products are apgrivgcobsolescence. However, we believe that sicanifi investments in new product
development and continuing enhancements of ouestiproducts will be required to enable us to nambur competitive position.

For example, some of our newer products, sucheé¢ktional, DataXtend and Apama product lines, nega higher level of development,
distribution and support expenditures, on a pesgnbdf revenue basis, than some of our other ptdides. If revenue generated from these
products grows as a percentage of our total revandef the expenses associated with these prodoat®t decrease on a percentage of
revenue basis, then our operating margins willdbeesely affected.

Our product development staff consisted of 603 eyg®s as of November 30, 2009. We have seven prideselopment offices in North
America, four primary development offices in EMEAdaone development office in India. We spent $98il8on, $87.8 million and
$80.3 million in fiscal years 2009, 2008 and 20@3pectively, on product development.

Customers

We globally market our products directly to endfgsand through indirect channels, primarily appglarapartners. Purchasers of our solutions
and products through our direct sales force arermgdly either business managers or IT managersripocations and government agencies. In
addition, we market our DataDirect Connect and lesser extent, products such as Sonic, Objeet@tat DataXtend to OEMs who embed
and resell these products as part of an integsadkdion. We use international distributors in agrtcountries where we do not have a direct
presence. No single customer has accounted for tharel0% of our total revenue in any of our last¢ fiscal years.

Application Partners

Our application partners cover a broad range okeatar offer an extensive library of business appiins and are a source of follow-on
revenue. We have kept entry costs, consistingiofagily the initial purchase of development licensiew to encourage a wide variety of
application partners to build applications. If gpkcation partner succeeds in marketing its apgilims, we obtain follow-on revenue as the
application partner licenses our deployment pragitetllow its application to be installed and ubgatustomers. We offer a subscription
model alternative to the traditional perpetualtise model for application partners who have chesemable their business applications under
a SaaS platform.

Original Equipment Manufacturers (OEMSs)

We enter into arrangements with OEMs whereby th&@BEbeds our products into its solutions, typicalither software or technology
devices. OEMs typically license the right to embed products into their solutions and distributetsgolutions for initial terms ranging from
one to three years. Historically, a significanttpor of our OEMs have renewed their agreement uperexpiration of the initial term, although
no assurance can be made that these renewalownfihae in the future.

Sales and Marketing

We sell our products and solutions through ourdlisales force and through independent distributocgrtain countries outside North
America. We have sold our products to customemssar 180 countries. The sales, marketing and segficups are organized by direct and
indirect channels and by region. We operate byoregi the Americas, EMEA and Asia/Pacific. We bedi¢hat this structure allows us to
maintain direct contact with our customers and sufiheir diverse market requirements. Our intéameti operations provide focused local
sales and marketing efforts and are able to resdwadtly to changes in local conditions.

Sales personnel are responsible for developingdiegt enduser accounts, recruiting new indirect channelnesg, managing existing chan
partner relationships and servicing existing cugiamWe actively seek to avoid conflict betweendales efforts of our application partners
and our own direct sales efforts. We use our insales team to enhance our direct sales effortscagenerate new business and follow-on
business from existing customers.




Table of Contents

Our marketing groups conduct a variety of markepinggrams designed to ensure a stream of markeéy-aducts, raise the general
awareness of our company and our business uniteygge leads for the sales organization and promgtgarious product lines. These
programs include public relations, digital/onlim@motion, direct mail, participation in trade showdvertising and production of collateral
literature. We also hold regional user conferenants in various locations throughout the world.

Customer Support

Our customer support staff provides telephone aeti-Wased support to application developers andusats. Customers may purchase
maintenance services entitling them to softwareatgs] technical support and technical bulletinstFiear maintenance and any subsequent
annual renewals are not included with our prodents are purchased separately. We provide suppoustomers primarily through our main
regional customer support centers in Bedford, Masssetts; Morrisville, North Carolina; RotterdanihelNetherlands; and Melbourne,
Australia. Local technical support for specific guats is provided in certain other countries ad.wel

Professional Services

Our global professional services organization a@glwusiness solutions for customers through a owtibn of products, consulting and
education. Our consulting organization offers pebjpanagement, custom development, programmindicafipn implementation and other
services. Our consulting organization also proviekryices to Web-enable existing applications dake advantage of the capabilities of new
product releases. Our education organization offarserous training options, from traditional instar-led courses to advanced learning
modules available on CDs.

Competition

The computer software industry is intensely comjeti We experience significant competition fromaaiety of sources with respect to all our
products. We believe that the breadth and intemmaif our product offerings have become increagiimgportant competitive advantages.
Other factors affecting competition in the marketsserve include product performance in compleXiepions, application portability, vend
experience, ease of integration, price, training support.

We compete in various markets with a number otiestincluding database vendors offering develogrtanis in conjunction with their
database systems, such as Microsoft Corporaticagl©Corporation and IBM Corporation, as well amatous enterprise application
integration vendors, messaging vendors, event psitg vendors and application development toolsleen We believe that Oracle, Micros
and IBM currently dominate the database marketthatiBM currently dominates the messaging manké&t.do not believe that there is a
dominant application development tools vendor, epeocessing vendor or integration infrastructueador. Some of our competitors have
greater financial, marketing or technical resoutbes we have and may be able to adapt more quickigw or emerging technologies and
changes in customer requirements or to devotegresgources to the promotion and sale of theidyets than we can. Increased competition
could make it more difficult for us to maintain aewvenue and market presence.

Copyrights, Trademarks, Patents and Licenses

We rely upon a combination of contractual provisiamd copyright, patent, trademark and trade stomstto protect our proprietary rights in
our products. We generally distribute our produrtder software license agreements that grant cestoaperpetual nonexclusive license to
use our products and contain terms and conditionisilpiting the unauthorized reproduction or transfeour products. We also license our
products under term or subscription arrangementaddition, we attempt to protect our trade se@etsother proprietary information through
agreements with employees and consultants. Althewegimtend to protect our rights vigorously, theas be no assurance that these measures
will be successful.

We seek to protect the source code of our prodagctsade secrets and as unpublished copyrightekbwidfe hold over 50 patents covering
portions of our products. We also have approximnyeiél patent applications for some of our other poddechnologies. Where possible, we
seek to obtain protection of our product namessamdice offerings through trademark registratiod ather similar procedures throughout the
world.

Actional, Apama, Artix, DataDirect, DataDirect Caut, DataDirect Connect64, DataDirect XML ConvestédataDirect XQuery, DataXtend,
FUSE Mediation Router, FUSE Message Broker, FUSEi&ss Framework, IONA, ObjectStore, OpenEdge, QrBrogress, Progress
DataXtend, Progress OpenEdge, Progress Softwarel@ers Network, Progress Sonic, ProVision, Sequel$hadow, Sonic, Sonic ESB,
SonicMQ, Stylus Studio, WebSpeed, and Xcalia (aagigh) are registered trademarks of Progress Saft@arporation or one of our
subsidiaries or affiliates in the United States/andther countries. FUSE, OpenAccess, Orbacus,M8Fand Shadow z/Direct are trademarks
of Progress Software Corporation or one of our




Table of Contents

subsidiaries in the United States and/or other t@m Any other trademarks or trade names appgarithis Annual Report on Form 10-K are
the property of their respective owners.

We believe that due to the rapid pace of innovatitthin our industry, factors such as the techniwalgand creative skills of our personnel are
as important in establishing and maintaining adesltip position within the industry as are the wasilegal protections of our technology. In
addition, we believe that the nature of our custethe importance of our products to them and theed for continuing product support may
reduce the risk of unauthorized reproduction, aiffono assurance can be made in this regard.

Employees

As of November 30, 2009, we had 1,821 employee$dwinte, including 639 in sales and marketing, 332ustomer support and services, 603
in product development and 247 in administratioan®& of our U.S. employees are subject to a collediargaining agreement. Employees in
certain foreign jurisdictions are represented loalavorkers’ councils and/or collective bargainagyeements as may be customary or required
in those jurisdictions. We have experienced no vatoppages and believe our relations with emplogeegood.

We have various equity incentive plans that pethd@tgranting of stock awards to eligible employaed the purchase of shares by eligible
employees. The payment of cash bonuses and caittribuo retirement plans is at the discretionhef tompensation committee of our Board
of Directors and the amounts primarily depend enlével of attainment relative to our financialpl&/e design these programs to reward
employees for performance and reduce employeevarnalthough there can be no assurance that sogngms will be successful.

Executive Officers of the Registrant

Information about our executive officers is incargted by reference from Part 111, Item 10 of thisnial Report.

Available Information

Our Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly ReporidForm 10-Q, Current Reports on FornK8including exhibits, and amendments to tr
reports filed or furnished pursuant to Sectionsalafd 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1@834amended, are available free of charge
on our website at www.progress.com as soon asmahbopracticable after such reports are electadlyidiled with, or furnished to, the U.S.
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC). Therimdtion posted on our website is not incorporatéal inis Annual Report.

Iltem 1A. Risk Factors

We operate in a rapidly changing environment thablves certain risks and uncertainties, some da€lwhre beyond our control. The risks
described below are not the only risks we face.ittafthl risks and uncertainties not currently knowwrus or that we currently deem to be
immaterial may also materially adversely affect business, financial condition and/or operatingiitss

Our revenue and quarterly results may fluctuate, iwh could adversely affect our stock pricéle have experienced, and may in the future
experience, significant fluctuations in our qudst@perating results that may be caused by mangfacThese factors include:

. changes in demand for our produt

. introduction, enhancement or announcement of pasducus or our competitor
. market acceptance of our new produ

. the growth rates of certain market segments in kwhie compete
. size and timing of significant ordel

. budgeting cycles of custome

. mix of distribution channels

. mix of products and services so

. mix of international and North American revenu

. fluctuations in currency exchange rat

. changes in the level of operating expen

. the amount of our sto-based compensatio

. reorganizations of our salesfort
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. changes in our sales incentive ple
. completion or announcement of acquisitions by usoonpetitors
. customer order deferrals in anticipation of newdoicis announced by us or our competitors;

. general economic conditions in regions in whichaeaduct busines:

Revenue forecasting is uncertain, and the failure meet our forecasts could result in a decline inarestock price.Most of our expenses are
relatively fixed, including costs of personnel dadilities, and are not easily reduced. Thus, aexpeacted reduction in our revenue, or failui
achieve the anticipated rate of growth, would haweaterial adverse effect on our profitabilityolfr operating results do not meet our publicly
stated guidance, if any, or the expectations oés$tors, our stock price may decline.

Weakness in the U.S. and international economiesymasult in fewer sales of our products and may etvise harm our businesdVe are
subject to the risks arising from adverse changegabal economic conditions, especially thosehnt).S., Europe and the Asia-Pacific region.
Economic activity in the United States declinedrfarch of calendar 2009 and macroeconomic conditdsts have deteriorated worldwide in
calendar 2009. If this economic weakness contiou@gorsens, customers may delay, reduce or foregfmblogy purchases, both directly and
through our application partners and OEMs. Thidaoesult in reductions in sales of our produatsger sales cycles, slower adoption of new
technologies and increased price competition. [earttheteriorating economic conditions could adJgraffect our customers and their ability
to pay amounts owed to us. Any of these eventsdvikely harm our business, results of operatiams financial condition.

Our international operations expose us to additidrrésks, and changes in global economic and pol@iconditions could adversely affect
our international operations, our revenue and ouehincome. In the past few fiscal years, we have generatead®st 50% and 60% of our
total revenue from sales outside North Americaitieal instability, oil price shocks and armed dagtfin various regions of the world can lead
to economic uncertainty and may adversely influemgebusiness. If customers’ buying patterns, sagtecision-making processes, timing of
expected deliveries and timing of new projectsauafably change due to economic or political caodg, there would be a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition andrapeg results. Other potential risks inherentim imternational business include:

. longer payment cycle:
. greater difficulties in accounts receivable colieat
. unexpected changes in regulatory requirems
. export restrictions, tariffs and other trade bas;i
. difficulties in staffing and managing foreign opioas;
. political instability;
. reduced protection for intellectual property rigitsome countries
. seasonal reductions in business activity duringstimmer months in Europe and certain other partiseoivorld;
. economic instability in emerging markets; ¢
. potentially adverse tax consequent
Any one or more of these factors could have a ristaedverse effect on our international operati@msl, consequently, on our business,

financial condition and operating results.

Fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates clobhave an adverse impact on our financial conditi@nd results of operation€Changes

in the value of these foreign currencies relatovéhe U.S. dollar may adversely affect our resofitsperations and financial position. We seek
to reduce our exposure to fluctuations in foreigrrency exchange rates by entering into foreigrarge option and forward contracts to
hedge economically certain transactions of selefctieign currencies (mainly in Europe, Brazil, Soéffrica and the Asia Pacific region). Our
currency hedging transactions may not be effedtiveducing any adverse impact of fluctuationsarefgn currency exchange rates. Further,
the imposition of exchange or price controls oreottestrictions on the conversion of foreign cucies could have a material adverse effect on
our business.

Technology and customer requirements evolve rapidlpur industry, and if we do not continue to ddee new products and enhance our
existing products in response to these changes, lmusiness could be harme@®ngoing enhancements to our product sets will beaired to
enable us to maintain our competitive position. M&y not be successful in developing and marketitigaecements to our products on a tir
basis, and any enhancements we develop may notaigdyjaddress the changing needs of the marketpacerlaying the risks associated
with our existing products and enhancements areioggechnological developments and rapid changesistomer requirements. Our future
success will depend upon our ability to develop iatrdduce in a timely manner new products thaetatvantage of technological advances
and respond to new customer requirements. The @d@went of new products is increasingly complex anckrtain, which increases the risk of
delays. We may not be successful in developing pr@ducts incorporating new technology on a timedgib, and any new
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products may not adequately address the changedsraf the marketplace. Failure to develop newyetsdand product enhancements that
meet market needs in a timely manner could havatenmal adverse effect on our business, finan@abiion and operating results.

We are substantially dependent on our Progress Cpage product lineWe derive a significant portion of our revenue freaftware license
and maintenance revenue attributable to our PregdgenEdge product line, and other products thaptement OpenEdge and are generally
licensed only in conjunction with OpenEdge. Accagly, our future results depend on continued maakeeptance of OpenEdge, and any
factor adversely affecting the market for OpenEdgé@ld have a material adverse effect on our busjriasncial condition and operating
results.

We face various risks in connection with our acqitisn of Savvion, Inc.On January 8, 2010, we acquired Savvion. We fadewsrisks in
connection with our acquisition of Savvion, inclngithe effects of disruption from the transacticeking it more difficult to maintain
relationships with employees, licensees, othem®ssi partners or governmental entities, other basieffects, including the effects of indus
economic or political conditions outside of ourSavvion’s control, transaction costs, actual ortingrent liabilities, diversion of management,
uncertainties as to whether anticipated synergidbwrealized and uncertainties as to whetheweawvs business will be successfully
integrated with our business. Any one or more eféhfactors could have a material adverse effett@nombined business, our results of
operations and our financial condition.

We expect to make additional acquisitions or invasnts in new businesses, products or technologied involve additional risks, which
could disrupt our business or harm our financial edition or results of operationsAs part of our business strategy, we have made, and
expect to continue to make, acquisitions of busiee®r investments in companies that offer compi¢ang products, services and
technologies. If we are unable to identify and ctatgpsuch acquisitions, we may not achieve ourmeger earnings targets. Any acquisitions
we do complete involve a number of risks, including risks of assimilating the operations and pamebof acquired companies, realizing the
value of the acquired assets relative to the gréid, distraction of management from our ongoingiesses and potential product disruptions
associated with the sale of the acquired compgmgducts. These factors could have a material adweffect on our business, financial
condition and operating results. The consideratierpay for any future acquisitions could include stock. As a result, future acquisitions
could cause dilution to existing shareholders anglarnings per share.

If our products contain software defects or secyrilaws, it could harm our revenues and expose aditigation. Our products are complex
develop and, despite extensive testing and quadityrol, may contain defects or security flaws,ezsgly when we first introduce them or
when new versions are released. We may need te égstective releases of our software productsctarfy defects or errors. The detection
correction of any security flaws can be time conisignand costly. Errors in our software productsldaifect the ability of our products to

work with other hardware or software products, daiglay the development or release of new prodaratew versions of products and could
adversely affect market acceptance of our prodaratiscould expose us to potential litigation. If @gerience errors or delays in releasing new
products or new versions of products, such errodetays could have a material adverse effect omexenue.

We recognize a substantial portion of our revenuerh sales made through third parties, including oapplication partners and OEMs, and
adverse developments in the businesses of these farties or in our relationships with them couldarm our revenues and results of
operations.Our future results depend upon our continued ssfgledistribution of our products through our apption partner and OEM
channels. Application partners utilize our techigglto create their applications and resell our potsi along with their own applications. OE
embed our products within their software productteohnology devices. The activities of these tipiadties are not within our direct control.
Our failure to manage our relationships with thigse parties effectively could impair the successur sales, marketing and support activi

A reduction in the sales efforts, technical captid or financial viability of these parties, asalignment of interest between us and them, or a
termination of our relationship with a major apption partner or OEM could have a negative effecbor sales and financial results. Any
adverse effect on the application partners’ or OBMsinesses related to competition, pricing areepfactors could also have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial conditiod operating results.
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The segments of the software industry in which wartiipate are intensely competitive, and our inéty to compete effectively would harm
our businessWe experience significant competition from a variet sources with respect to the marketing andifiigion of our products.
Many of our competitors have greater financial, keting or technical resources than we do and mabbeto adapt more quickly to new or
emerging technologies and changes in customerraagants or to devote greater resources to the gromand sale of their products than we
can. Increased competition could make it morediffifor us to maintain our market presence or kadownward pricing pressure. This is
particularly the case with respect to our Sonic Apdma product lines.

In addition, the marketplace for new products tersely competitive and characterized by low besrie entry. For example, an increase in
market acceptance of open source software may cawsewvard pricing pressures. As a result, new cditgpe possessing technological,
marketing or other competitive advantages may eenangl rapidly acquire market share. In additiomrenut and potential competitors may
make strategic acquisitions or establish cooperatlationships among themselves or with thirdiparthereby increasing their ability to
deliver products that better address the needsrgbrmspective customers. Current and potentialpsgitors also may be more successful than
we are in having their products or technologiesaljidiccepted. We may be unable to compete suctgssfiainst current and future
competitors, and our failure to do so could hawesterial adverse effect on our business, prospiessicial condition and operating results.

We rely on the experience and expertise of ourlgkilemployees, and must continue to attract andimetgualified technical, marketing and
managerial personnel in order to succeedur future success will depend in a large part upamability to attract and retain highly skilled
technical, managerial and marketing personnel. & leesignificant competition for such personnethia software industry. We may not
continue to be successful in attracting and retgitihe personnel we require to develop new andredubproducts and to continue to grow and
operate profitably.

We have recently restructured our operations, whigtay not succeed in increasing revenues and opergatiesults.In December 2009, we
announced a series of initiatives to better pasitis for longterm growth and improved profitability. To execthese initiatives, we announc
that we are restructuring our sales, developmethinaarketing organizations as well as other funditnbetter optimize operations and to
improve productivity and efficiency. As a resultyrshg the first quarter of fiscal 2010, we will kezk our global workforce by approximately
230 to 260 positions, representing approximatelyolB4 percent of our global workforce. This wonlde reduction is from substantially all
functional units and across all geographies in Wiie operate. Our ability to significantly reduag current cost structure in any material
respects through future restructurings may beddiffiwithout fundamentally changing elements of ourrent business. If we are unable to
generate increased revenues or control our opgratipenses going forward, our results of operatistide adversely affected. Further, we
could experience delays, business disruptions anticipated employee turnover in connection with tbstructuring and other efficiency
improvement activities, and there can be no assertirat the expected benefits of the restructusiigoe realized.

Our success is dependent upon our proprietary saftevtechnology, and our inability to protect it witbharm our businesswWe rely
principally on a combination of contract provisicarsd copyright, trademark, patent and trade sémnest to protect our proprietary technology.
Despite our efforts to protect our proprietary tgglunauthorized parties may attempt to copy aspgaiur products or to obtain and use
information that we regard as proprietary. Policimguthorized use of our products is difficult. eps we take to protect our proprietary
rights may be inadequate to prevent misappropriafaur technology; moreover, others could indejeetly develop similar technology.

We could be subject to claims that we infringe itéetual property rights of others, or incur subgtéial cost in protecting our own
technology, either of which could harm our busineggancial condition or results of operationd.itigation may be necessary in the future to
enforce our intellectual property rights, to pratecr trade secrets, to determine the validity sewpe of the proprietary rights of others, or to
defend against claims of infringement. Third partieuld assert infringement claims in the futurthwéspect to our products and technology,
and such claims might be successful. Such litigatiould result in substantial costs and diversioresources, whether or not we ultimately
prevail on the merits. Such litigation could alead to our being prohibited from selling one or enof our products, cause reluctance by
potential customers to purchase our products,suitrén liability to our customers and could havenaterial adverse effect on our business,
financial condition and operating results.

The loss of technology licensed from third partiesuld adversely affect our ability to deliver ourguucts.We utilize certain technology that
we license from third parties, including softwalattis integrated with internally developed softand used in our products to perform key
functions. This technology, or functionally simil@chnology, may not continue to be available ammmercially reasonable terms in the future,
or at all. The loss of any significant third-patéghnology license could cause delays in our ghiitdeliver our products or services until
equivalent technology is developed internally anieglent third-party technology, if available, @entified, licensed and integrated.
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Our common stock price may continue to be volatikhich could result in losses for investor§he market price of our common stock, like
that of other technology companies, is highly vildaand is subject to wide fluctuations in respottsquarterly variations in operating results,
announcements of technological innovations or nemdycts by us or our competitors, changes in firmstimates by securities analysts or
other events or factors. Our stock price may atsaftected by broader market trends unrelated t@erformance. As a result, purchasers of
our common stock may be unable at any given tingelictheir shares at or above the price they faaithem.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
As of the date of this report, we do not have gogrocomments or communications from the SEC relatedrr financial statements or periodic
filings with the SEC.

Item 2. Properties

We own our principal administrative, sales, suppwmarketing, product development and distributiacilities, which are located in three
buildings totaling approximately 258,000 square fededford, Massachusetts. In connection withghechase of one of these buildings, we
were required to assume the existing mortgage,wiés a remaining principal balance of $1.0 milksnof November 30, 2009. In addition,
we maintain offices in leased facilities in approgately 24 other locations in North America and agpnately 35 locations outside North
America. The terms of our leases generally rang® fone to six years. We believe that our faciliies adequate for our current needs and that
suitable additional space will be available as eeed

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

We are subject to various legal proceedings arithslaeither asserted or unasserted, which aritieeiordinary course of business. While the
outcome of these claims cannot be predicted wittaicegy, management does not believe that the owtcof any of these legal matters will
have a material adverse effect on our consoliditedcial position or results of operations.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of SecurityHolders

We did not submit any matter to a vote of our shalders during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2009.

PART I

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Edty Securities

The following table sets forth, for the periodsioaded, the range of high and low sale prices torammmon stock. Our common stock trades
on the NASDAQ Global Select Market under the synPRGS.

Year Ended November 3 2009 2008

High Low High Low
First Quartel $ 21.2¢ $ 15.77 $ 34.0C $ 28.0:2
Second Quarte 23.0¢ 14.6¢ 31.2¢ 27.7(
Third Quartel 24.0¢ 20.0¢ 31.1¢ 25.07
Fourth Quarte 25.2¢ 20.8i 30.0¢ 17.2(

We have not declared or paid cash dividends orconmmon stock and we do not plan to pay cash didisén our shareholders in the near
future. As of December 31, 2009, our common stoak teld by approximately 4,000 shareholders ofrcteopthrough nominee or street name
accounts with brokers.
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Information related to our repurchases of our comsstock by month in the fourth quarter of fiscaD20s as follows:

(in thousands, except per share de

Total Number ¢ Maximum Number ¢

Shares Purchas Shares that Me

Total Numbe Average as Part of Publicl Yet Be Purchase

Of Share Price Paii  Announced Plar Under the Plans

Period: Purchase per Shar or Program Programs (1
September 200 — — — 9,58(
October 200¢ 3 $21.9¢ 3 997
November 200! — — — 997
Total 3 $ 21.9¢ 3 997

(1) In September 2008, the Board of Directoriarized, for the period from October 1, 2008 thto@&gptember 30, 2009, the purchase of
up to 10,000,000 shares of our common stock, o€lwhP0,000 shares were purchased that period.dte®&er 2009, the Board of
Directors authorized, for the period from Octobe2Q09 through September 30, 2010, the purchasp tf 1,000,000 shares of our
common stock, at such times that management degchspsirchases to be an effective use of ¢

Stock Performance Graph and Cumulative Total Return

The graph below compares the cumulative total $tolcler return on our common stock with the cumutatbtal return on the NASDAQ
Composite Index and the NASDAQ Computer Index frteof the last five fiscal years ended Novembe2809, assuming an investment of
$100 at the beginning of such period and the reitwent of any dividends.

Comparison of 5 Year Cumulative Total Return*
Among Progress Software Corporation, the MASDAQ Composite Index and the MASDAG
Computer Index
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* $100 invested on 11/30/04 in stock or index, unidhg reinvestment of dividends.

November 30 2004 200t 200¢€ 2007 200¢ 200¢
Progress Software Corporation 100.0( 136.3( 119.4: 139.3¢ 93.7¢ 106.0¢
NASDAQ Composite 100.0( 106.4¢ 115.9° 126.9: 73.2% 102.2¢
NASDAQ Computel 100.0( 107.8¢ 115.4: 133.6¢ 71.81 116.2¢
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following tables set forth selected financiatadfor the last five fiscal years.

(In thousands, except per share de

Year ended November 3 200¢ 200¢ 2007 200¢€ 200t
Revenue $494,13 $515,56( $493,50( $447,06: $405,37¢
Income from operatior 51,13: 64,38: 57,21¢ 40,94 59,95(
Net income 32,75t 46,29¢ 42,28( 29,40! 46,251
Basic earnings per she 0.8z 1.1z 1.0z 0.7z 1.21
Diluted earnings per sha 0.8C 1.0¢ 0.9¢ 0.6¢ 1.12
Cash and shc-term investment 224,12: 118,52¢ 339,52¢ 241,31! 266,42(
Total asset 798,85( 752,37( 761,82¢ 670,23¢ 561,71!
Long-term debt, including current portic 1,022 1,352 1,657 1,93¢ 2,20(
Shareholde’ equity 555,45: 481,45: 517,87 444,56 374,00:

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Famcial Condition and Results of Operations
Overview

We are a global enterprise software company thaltles organizations to achieve higher levels ointass performance by improving their
operational responsiveness. Operational resporesgdn the ability of business processes and sgdtenespond to changing business
conditions and customer interactions as they odbfgr offer a portfolio of best-in-class, real-timesiness solutions providing visibility into
business systems and processes, event processagptind to business events that could affect paeoce, and business process managemer
enabling businesses to continually improve busipessesses with no disruption to their business alde provide enterprise data solutions
(data access and integration) and application dpweént platforms (for application development arahagement, and SaaS enablement). We
maximize the benefits of operational responsivemgske minimizing information technology (IT) comglity and total cost of ownership.

We derive a significant portion of our revenue fromternational operations. These operations aragily conducted in foreign currencies. As
a result, changes in the value of these foreigreagies relative to the U.S. dollar significantiygact our results of operations. In the first three
quarters of fiscal 2008, the weakening of the d@lar against most major currencies, primarily ¢eo and the British pound, positively
affected the translation of our results into U.8lats. In the last quarter of fiscal 2008 andfire three quarters of fiscal 2009, the
strengthening of the U.S. dollar against most majmrencies negatively affected the translationwfresults into U.S. dollars. In the fourth
quarter of fiscal 2009, the weakening of the U @lad against most major currencies positively etiéel the translation of our results into U.S.
dollars.

The most significant challenge we faced in 2009 thasadverse global economic environment. In amditd the impact of changes in the ve
of currencies described above, the adverse glamasicnic environment during 2009 also resulted @duotions in sales of our major products
and professional services engagements.

In fiscal 2009 we were organized in three repodagigments: (1) OpenEdge, which includes the OpgmBrbducts; (2) Enterprise
Infrastructure, which includes the Apama, Sonictidwal, Orbix and FUSE products; and (3) Data Istinacture, which includes the DataDir
Connect, DataDirect Shadow, Progress DataXtendOdojelctStore products. Our product lines are synausgwith our reportable segments or
business units.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2009, we reorgadiago three business units, which meet the cati segment reporting, for fiscal 2010:
Application Development Platforms, Enterprise Besi Solutions and Enterprise Data Solutions. ®ee 1tin this Form 10-K for further
description of our business units.

We did not make any acquisitions in fiscal 200%idnal 2008, we completed the acquisitions of ¥c8A (Xcalia) in February 2008,
Mindreef, Inc. (Mindreef) in June 2008 and IONASeptember 2008. Xcalia became part of our Datasifucture reportable segment and
Mindreef and IONA became part of our Enterprisedsfructure reportable segment. These acquisiti@ne designed to expand the size and
breadth of our business and/or add complementagugts and technologies to existing products. Vdendi make any acquisitions in fiscal
2007.

On January 8, 2010, we acquired Savvion, Inc.jvafaly held business enterprise software compasgd in Santa Clara, California, for
approximately $49 million, net of cash acquirednan is a provider of business process managesuwdtware. The Savvion products will
become part of our Enterprise Business Solutiogmsat. We expect to continue to
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pursue additional acquisitions during the remairaddiscal 2010. Our acquisition strategy has beexpand our business and/or add
complimentary products and technologies to ourtexjproduct sets.

We believe that existing cash balances togethdr fuitds generated from operations will be suffitienfinance our operations and meet our
foreseeable cash requirements (including plannpifat@xpenditures, lease commitments, debt paysremd other long-term obligations)
through at least the next twelve months. To themxhat we complete any future acquisitions, @shgosition could be reduced.

We see the most significant risks for fiscal 20d@tauing to be the macroeconomic climate, whichld@ause our customers to delay, forego
or reduce the amount of their investments in oodpcts or delay payments of amounts due to usirdedration risk associated with our just
completed acquisition of Savvion.

Results of Operations

The following table sets forth certain income arganse items as a percentage of total revenuethangkercentage change in dollar amounts of
such items compared with the corresponding peridatie previous fiscal year.

Percentage of Total Reven Percentage Chan
200¢ 200¢
Compare Compare
Year Ended November 3 200¢ 200¢ 2007 to 200¢ to 200
Revenue
Software license 36% 3% 38% (9% 3%
Maintenance and servic 64 63 62 (1) 6
Total revenue 10C 10C 10C (4 4
Costs of revenue
Cost of software license 2 2 2 (18) 18
Cost of maintenance and servi 13 13 14 ) 1
Amortization of acquired intangibles for purcha:
technology 4 3 2 49 29
Total costs of revent 19 18 18 1 6
Gross profil 81 82 82 (5) 4
Operating expense
Sales and marketir 37 38 39 @) 2
Product developmel 19 17 16 6 9
General and administratiy 12 12 12 4 1)
Amortization of other acquired intangibl 2 1 1 41 (12
Restructuring expens: 1 2 — (25) *
Impairment of goodwil — — 2 * *
Acquisitior-related expense — — — * *
Total operating expens 71 70 70 3 3
Income from operatior 10 12 12 (22) 13
Other income (expense), r 0 2 1 (100 23
Income before provision for income tay 10 14 13 (32) 14
Provision for income taxe 3 5 4 (34) 22
Net income 7% 9% 9% (29)% 9%

* not meaningfu

Fiscal 2009 Compared to Fiscal 2008

RevenueOur total revenue decreased 4% from $515.6 millidiiscal 2008 to $494.1 million in fiscal 2009. tabrevenue would have
increased by 1% if exchange rates had been coristlistal 2009 as compared to exchange ratedéctsh fiscal 2008. Excluding the impact
of changes in exchange rates, our revenue incrgasedpally due to revenue derived from the pradwcquired as part of the acquisition of
IONA, which are included in the Enterprise Infrasture product line, partially offset by a decressthe number of software licenses sold
from our major products and professional servicegagements as a result of the challenging glolmi@uic conditions in fiscal 2009.
Revenue for the Enterprise Infrastructure prodinet included approximately $57 million for all aé¢al 2009 versus approximately

$16 million for part of fiscal 2008 for productscatired as part of the acquisition of IONA. Changeprices in fiscal 2009 from fiscal 2008 «
not have a significant impact
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on our revenue. On a product line basis, our rezelaelined in the OpenEdge and Data Infrastrugitmduct lines, partially offset by an
increase in our Enterprise Infrastructure prodingt. |

Revenue from the OpenEdge product line decreas#dfitioi $331.4 million in fiscal 2008 to $275.9 rioh in fiscal 2009. Revenue from the
Enterprise Infrastructure product line increase®h3bm $85.4 million in fiscal 2008 to $128.2 milfi in fiscal 2009 as a result of the impact
of the acquisition of IONA as described above. Rexsfrom the Data Infrastructure product line dasesl 9% from $101.4 million in fiscal
2008 to $92.7 million in fiscal 2009. For an undensling of how our internal measure of product heeenue is determined see Note 12 of the
Consolidated Financial Statements appearing in&hisual Report on Form 10-K.

Software license revenue decreased 9% from $19@idmin fiscal 2008 to $175.6 million in fiscald®9. Software license revenue would t
decreased by 4% if exchange rates had been comsfistal 2009 as compared to exchange ratedéeteh fiscal 2008. Excluding the impact
of changes in exchange rates, the decrease inageftigense revenue was due to a decrease inveitités our OpenEdge and Data
Infrastructure product lines, partially offset hy iacrease in our Enterprise Infrastructure prodinet The Data Infrastructure and Enterprise
Infrastructure product lines accounted for 46%ajfvgare license revenue in fiscal 2009 as comptreiB% in fiscal 2008. Software license
revenue from both direct end users and indirechictls, primarily OpenEdge application partnersrei@sed in fiscal 2009 as compared to
fiscal 2008.

Maintenance and services revenue decreased 1%$8a813 million in fiscal 2008 to $318.6 million fiscal 2009. Maintenance and services
revenue would have increased by 4% if exchangs retd been constant in fiscal 2009 as comparexttaage rates in effect in fiscal 2008.
Excluding the impact of changes in exchange ratesincrease in maintenance and services revensi@rvaarily the result of an increase in
our installed customer base, primarily from theuwsitjon of IONA, and renewal of maintenance coatsapartially offset by a 22% decreas:
professional services revenue.

Total revenue generated in markets outside Nortleroa decreased 9% from $299.0 million in fiscad@@o $272.9 million in fiscal 2009 and
represented 57% of total revenue in fiscal 2008oaspared to 55% in fiscal 2009. Total revenue geeerin North America increased 2%
from $216.6 million in fiscal 2008 to $221.2 miltion fiscal 2009. Revenue from EMEA and Asia Paaifecreased by 11% and 3%,
respectively, in fiscal 2009 as compared to fi&208. This decline in revenue generated outsidéooth America was partially offset by a 3%
increase in revenue from Latin America. The de@éashe percentage of business derived from iaternal operations in fiscal 2009 is
primarily the result of the negative impact of figreexchange rates in fiscal 2009, partially oftsgthe success of our newer product lines.
Total revenue generated in markets outside Nortlega would have represented the same percentagebfevenue if exchange rates had
been constant in fiscal 2009 as compared to thieagge rates in effect in fiscal 2008.

Cost of Software LicenseSost of software licenses consists primarily ofts@d royalties, electronic software distributiassts, duplication

and packaging. Cost of software licenses decreb8%dfrom $9.5 million in fiscal 2008 to $7.8 milfidn fiscal 2009, and decreased as a
percentage of software license revenue from 5%/4o0¥he dollar decrease was primarily due to lowgalty expense for products and
technologies licensed or resold from third part@sst of software licenses as a percentage of addtlicense revenue may vary from period to
period depending upon the relative product mix.

Cost of Maintenance and Servic€ast of maintenance and services consists primafitpsts of providing customer support, educasiod
consulting. Cost of maintenance and services deet8% from $69.3 million in fiscal 2008 to $66.0lion in fiscal 2009, and remained the
same as a percentage of maintenance and servwegsieeat 21%. The dollar decrease in cost of maamtee and services was due to lower
headcount costs and lower usage of third-partyraoturs for service engagements. Our customer symatucation and consulting headcount
decreased by 9% from the end of fiscal 2008 tcetitof fiscal 2009.

Amortization of Acquired Intangibles for Purchaseethnology. Amortization of acquired intangibles for purch@sechnology primarily
represents the amortization of the value assignéatangible assets for technology obtained intess combinations. Amortization of acqui
intangibles for purchased technology increased #8% $13.0 million in fiscal 2008 to $19.5 millidn fiscal 2009. The increase was due to
amortization expense associated with the acquisitad Mindreef and IONA, which occurred in the seddalf of fiscal 2008.

Gross Profit. Our gross profit decreased 5% from $423.7 milliofiscal 2008 to $400.9 million in fiscal 2009h& gross profit percentage of
total revenue decreased from 82% in fiscal 2008184 in fiscal 2009. The decrease in our gross fppeficentage was due to the increase in
amortization expense of acquired intangibles facpased technology as described above.

Sales and Marketingsales and marketing expenses decreased 7% fromS&h@ibon in fiscal 2008 to $182.2 million in fiat 2009, and
decreased as a percentage of revenue from 38%9/40 e decrease in sales and marketing expensedugas changes in foreign exchange
rates and lower headcount costs resulting fronrésucturing activities that occurred in the
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fourth quarter of fiscal 2008 and in the first ¢peaiof fiscal 2009. Our sales support and marketieadcount decreased by 8% from the end of
fiscal 2008 to the end of fiscal 2009.

Product DevelopmenProduct development expenses increased 6% fron8 $&iflion in fiscal 2008 to $93.3 million in fisc&009, and
increased as a percentage of revenue from 17%24o TBe dollar increase was primarily due to headtoelated expenses for the
development teams from the Mindreef and IONA tratieas, which occurred in the second half of fis2@08. There were no capitalized
software development costs in either fiscal 2008szal 2009, due to the timing and stage of dgwlent of projects that might otherwise
qualify for capitalization under our software capization policy. Our product development headcanateased 3% from the end of fiscal 2008
to the end of fiscal 2009.

General and Administrativ&seneral and administrative expenses include this od®ur finance, human resources, legal, infolonagystems
and administrative departments. General and adiratiiee expenses decreased 4% from $62.1 millidisaal 2008 to $59.6 million in fiscal
2009, and remained the same as a percentage olueat 12%. General and administrative expensfscal 2008 include $3.0 million of
professional services fees related to the invetiig@f our historical stock option grant practi@esl shareholder derivative lawsuits, which
were resolved during fiscal 2009. In addition, tledlar decrease in fiscal 2009 compared to fis@@iRwas due to lower headcount related
expenses, partially offset by higher stock-basedpansation related to the separation agreemennteeeel into with Joseph W. Alsop, our
former chief executive officer. Our administrativeadcount decreased by 13% from the end of figu@8 20 the end of fiscal 2009.

Amortization of Other Acquired Intangibl. Amortization of other acquired intangibles priiharepresents the amortization of value assigned
to intangible assets obtained in business combinather than assets identified as purchaseddgn Amortization of other acquired
intangibles increased 41% from $6.4 million in &62008 to $9.0 million in fiscal 2009. The increas fiscal 2009 compared to fiscal 2008
was related to amortization expense associatedthétiacquisitions of Mindreef and IONA, which oaad in the second half of fiscal 2008.

Restructuring Expenst. During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008, our ragament approved, committed to and initiated planestructure and
improve efficiencies in our operations as a restttertain management and organizational changg®anrecent acquisitions. The total costs
associated with the restructuring in fiscal 200& %6.9 million, primarily related to employee searee, termination costs of automobile le:
for terminated employees and excess facilitiessclmstunused space.

During the first quarter of fiscal 2009, our managat approved, committed to and initiated planestructure and improve efficiencies in our
operations as a result of certain management ggahzational changes and our recent acquisitions.tdtal costs associated with the
restructuring was $5.2 million in fiscal 2009, pdrily related to employee severance and, to afdesdent, termination costs of automobile
leases for terminated employees and excess fasiitists for unused space.

Income from Operatior. Income from operations decreased 21% from $64llomin fiscal 2008 to $51.1 million in fiscal 2@ and

decreased as a percentage of total revenue fromd2@%. The decrease in fiscal 2009 as comparéddal 2008 was driven by the decrease
in gross profit of 5% and additional expenses iredias a result of our recent acquisitions. Owl to¢éadcount decreased 5% from the end of
fiscal 2008 to the end of fiscal 2009.

Other Income Other income decreased 100% from $9.6 milliofiscal 2008 to $0.1 million in fiscal 2009. The degse was primarily due to
a decrease in interest income resulting from lamearest rates and lower average cash and shantitsestment balances, and higher foreign
exchange losses.

Provision for Income TaxeOur effective tax rate decreased from 37.5% irafi2008 to 36.0% in fiscal 2009. The decreaseéreffiective ta:
rate in fiscal 2009 as compared to fiscal 2008 prawvarily due to the distribution of income in n@hS. jurisdictions with lower effective tax
rates. See Note 10 of the Consolidated Financ&geBtents appearing in this Annual Report on ForeK I6r further information.

Fiscal 2008 Compared to Fiscal 2007

RevenueOur total revenue increased 4% from $493.5 milliofiscal 2007 to $515.6 million in fiscal 2008. fRbrevenue would have
increased by 2% if exchange rates had been coristfistal 2008 as compared to exchange ratedéttsh fiscal 2007. Our revenue increased
principally due to an increase in the number ofwgaffe licenses sold and maintenance sales frormajor products. Changes in prices in fis
2008 from fiscal 2007 did not have a significanpant on our revenue. On a product line basis, @nue increased due to growth in the
Enterprise Infrastructure and DataDirect produwdi, partially offset by a decline in the OpenEdgmluct line. These product lines
represented our business unit structure in fiséaB2
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Revenue from the OpenEdge product line decreasefid®#6$336.6 million in fiscal 2007 to $331.4 milii in fiscal 2008. Revenue from the
Enterprise Infrastructure product line increasethZ8>m $83.0 million in fiscal 2007 to $109.3 milfi in fiscal 2008. The Enterprise
Infrastructure product line included the revenwarfrthe products acquired as part of the acquis@fd@NA (with such amount totaling
approximately $16 million in fiscal 2008). Reverfuem the DataDirect product line increased 5% fi®i3.9 million in fiscal 2007 to

$77.5 million in fiscal 2008. For an understandaidiow our internal measure of product line reveisugetermined see Note 12 of the
Consolidated Financial Statements appearing in&hisual Report on Form 10-K.

Software license revenue increased 3% from $18ilibmin fiscal 2007 to $192.2 million in fiscald®8. Software license revenue would h
increased by 1% if exchange rates had been corististal 2008 as compared to exchange ratedécteh fiscal 2007. The increase in
software license revenue in fiscal 2008, excludirgimpact of changes in exchange rates, was ghntlre to increases from the DataDirect
product line and the Enterprise Infrastructure pmdine (including the impact of the software lise revenue from the product lines acquired
as part of the acquisition of IONA from the acqtiisi date), partially offset by a decline in thee€dfdge product line. The DataDirect and
Enterprise Infrastructure product lines accountedi®% of software license revenue in fiscal 2008@mpared to 45% in fiscal 2007. Softw
license revenue from sales to direct end-userg@sed in fiscal 2008 as compared to fiscal 200Tigiig offset by a slight decline in sales
from indirect channels, including application parsmand OEMs.

Maintenance and services revenue increased 6%%88%.4 million in fiscal 2007 to $323.3 million fiscal 2008. Maintenance and services
revenue would have increased by 4% if exchangs ratd been constant in fiscal 2008 as comparexttaage rates in effect in fiscal 2007.
The increase in maintenance and services reverdegding the impact of changes in exchange rates, pvimarily the result of growth in our
installed customer base, renewal of maintenanceeawgnts, partially offset by a 6% decrease in psié@al services revenue.

Total revenue generated in markets outside Nortlerdga increased 6% from $281.7 million in fiscaDZ@o $299.0 million in fiscal 2008 and
represented 57% of total revenue in both fiscalr2@d fiscal 2008. Total revenue generated in Narnterica increased 2% from

$211.8 million in fiscal 2008 to $216.6 million fiscal 2009. Revenue from the three major regiartside of North America, consisting of
EMEA, Latin America and Asia Pacific, each incrahsefiscal 2008 as compared to fiscal 2007. Tmaknue generated in markets outside
North America would have represented 55% of taaénue if exchange rates had been constant il #6868 as compared to the excha
rates in effect in fiscal 2007. The increase inghecentage of business derived from internatiopatations in fiscal 2008 is primarily the
result of the positive impact of foreign exchangees in fiscal 2008 and the success of our nevgetyat lines.

Cost of Software LicensdSost of software licenses increased 18% from $8lliomin fiscal 2007 to $9.5 million in fiscal 2@) and increased
as a percentage of software license revenue frono8%o. The dollar increase was primarily due whieir royalty expense associated with
higher sales of third-party products. Cost of saftwlicenses as a percentage of software licensaue may vary from period to period
depending upon the relative product mix.

Cost of Maintenance and Servic€ast of maintenance and services increased 1%3$6816 million in fiscal 2007 to $69.3 million instial

2008, but decreased as a percentage of maintenadcgervices revenue from 22% to 21%. The decisasest of maintenance and services as
a percentage of maintenance and services reversidweao a decrease in professional services reyarhich has a lower margin than
maintenance revenue. The dollar increase in castaifitenance and services was due to higher heatioslated expenses, partially offset by
lower usage of third-party contractors. Our custosupport, education and consulting headcount asze by 21% from the end of fiscal 2007
to the end of fiscal 2008.

Amortization of Acquired Intangibles for Purchaseethnology. Amortization of acquired intangibles for purchésechnology increased 29%
from $10.1 million in fiscal 2007 to $13.0 millidn fiscal 2008. The increase was due to the additiamortization expense in fiscal 2008
associated with the purchased technology acquirglaei Xcalia, Mindreef, and IONA transactions.

Gross Profit. Our gross profit increased 4% from $406.7 millioriscal 2007 to $423.7 million in fiscal 2008h& gross profit percentage
remained the same at 82% of total revenue in figg&r and fiscal 2008 principally due to the matiscussed above.

Sales and Marketingsales and marketing expenses increased 2% from48llion in fiscal 2007 to $195.9 million in fiat 2008, but
decreased as a percentage of revenue from 39%840 & increase in sales and marketing expensegpnivaarily due to an increase in
headcount associated with the acquisition of IONAles and marketing expenses as a percentagalafeeénue decreased in fiscal 2008 as
compared to fiscal 2007 due to improved field spl@sluctivity. Our sales support and marketing lseadt increased by 8% from the end of
fiscal 2007 to the end of fiscal 2008.

18




Table of Contents

Product DevelopmenProduct development expenses increased 9% fron3 $&illion in fiscal 2007 to $87.8 million in fisc&008, and
increased as a percentage of revenue from 16%4o Tie dollar increase was primarily due to headtoelated expenses for the
development teams from the Xcalia, Mindreef and AQhinsactions, which occurred at various timesrdufiscal 2008. There were no
capitalized software development costs in eitherdi 2007 or fiscal 2008, due to the timing andetaf development of projects that might
otherwise qualify for capitalization under our sedte capitalization policy. Our product developmieeédcount increased 30% from the end of
fiscal 2007 to the end of fiscal 2008.

General and AdministrativeGeneral and administrative expenses decreasddoh¥$62.3 million in fiscal 2007 to $62.1 millian fiscal
2008, and remained the same approximate perceotageenue at 12%. General and administrative esgeimn fiscal 2008 also include
$3.0 million of professional services fees relatethe investigation of our historical stock optigrant practices and derivative lawsuits as
compared to $3.7 million in fiscal 2007. Our adrsirative headcount increased by 6% from the erfidcdl 2007 to the end of fiscal 2008.

Amortization of Other Acquired Intangibl. Amortization of other acquired intangibles deseth12% from $7.3 million in fiscal 2007 to
$6.4 million in fiscal 2008. The decrease in fis2808 compared to fiscal 2007 was related to geftdangibles from prior acquisitions
becoming fully amortized, partially offset by ampation expense related to intangible assets aedjuirthe Xcalia, Mindreef and IONA
acquisitions.

Restructuring Expenst. During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008, our ragament approved, committed to and initiated planestructure and
improve efficiencies in our operations as a resfittertain management and organizational changgsanrecent acquisitions. The total costs
associated with the restructuring was $6.9 millrimarily related to employee severance, termamatiosts of automobile leases for
terminated employees and excess facilities costsrfosed space.

Impairment of Goodwil. In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007, an inteimpairment test was performed as circumstancesaieli that an
impairment may have occurred in our EasyAsk repgrtinit. Based on the interim impairment testingvds determined that the EasyAsk
reporting unit’s carrying value exceeded its faitue. As a result, we recorded an impairment lésgpproximately $8.2 million, which was
equal to the amount by which the carrying valugaddwill assigned to the EasyAsk reporting uniteeded its implied fair value. No
impairment of goodwill was recorded in any of otiner reporting units as the fair values of our otfeporting units exceeded their carrying
values in fiscal 2007. In fiscal 2008, it was detered that no such impairments of goodwill existed.

Income from Operatior. Income from operations increased 13% from $57l@om in fiscal 2007 to $64.4 million in fiscal 28 and remained
the same as a percentage of total revenue at 1B8&4n€rease in income from operations in fiscal®88 compared to fiscal 2007 was
primarily due to revenue increasing at a faster tiadn operating expenses.

Other Income Other income increased 23% from $7.8 millionigtél 2007 to $9.6 million in fiscal 2008. The iease was related to lower
foreign exchange losses and an increase in int@sne, primarily resulting from higher averageenest rates, primarily from our ARS, and
higher average cash and investment balances.

Provision for Income TaxeOur effective tax rate increased from 35.0% indlR007 to 37.5% in fiscal 2008. The increase sdffective tax
rate in fiscal 2008 as compared to fiscal 2007 pramarily due to lower amounts of tax-exempt ingti@come and the final phase-out of the
extraterritorial income exclusion. See Note 10haf Consolidated Financial Statements appearingsndnnual Report on Form 10-K for
further information.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

At the end of fiscal 2009, our cash and sherin investments totaled $224.1 million. The ineeeaf $105.6 million since the end of fiscal 2!
was primarily due to cash generated from operatiamsclassification of auction rate securities AR short-term investments from non-
current assets (totaling approximately $18 millianyl the effect of year-over-year period end chaiigéoreign exchange rates on cash
balances. These ARS were acquired as part of thdsaiton of IONA. As described below, we have esslified these securities on the balance
sheet from long-term investments to short-term $tivents because we have the option to sell theseitses at par value beginning June 30,
2010. These ARS are classified as trading secsiatiel all changes in the fair value are recognizedrrent period earnings.

In addition to the $224.1 million of cash and skerim investments, we had investments with a falue of $40.7 million related to ARS that
are classified as noncurrent. These ARS are flgatite securities with longer-term maturities tivate marketed by financial institutions with
auction reset dates at primarily 28 or 35 day irgksrto provide short-term liquidity. The remainiogntractual maturities of these securities
range from 6 to 37 years. The underlying collatefdhe ARS consist of municipal bonds, which argured by monoline insurance companies,
and student loans, which are supported by the &dervernment as part of the Federal Family Edondtban Program (FFELP) and by the
monoline insurance companies.
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Beginning in February 2008, auctions for these gées began to fail, and the interest rates festhARS reset to the maximum rate per the
applicable investment offering document. At Noveni®@ 2008, our ARS investments totaled $72.4 anillat par value. During fiscal 2009,
noncurrent investments totaling $7.1 million wezdgemed at par by the issuers and $17.9 millioe wamlassified as short-term investments,
resulting in a net reduction of the par value af ARS investments classified as long-term to $47ilfion. These ARS are classified as
available-for-sale securities.

For each of the ARS classified as available-foe.sale evaluated the risks related to the structuniateral and liquidity of the investment, and
forecasted the probability of issuer default, aarcfiailure and a successful auction at par or amgdion at par for each future auction period.
The weighted average cash flow for each periodtivas discounted back to present value for eachrisgcBased on this methodology, we
determined that the fair value of our non-curreRSAinvestments is $40.7 million, and we recordetbak-to-market adjustment in
accumulated other comprehensive income of $6.7amitb reduce the value of our available-for-saRSAinvestments.

With the exception of the ARS acquired as parhefdcquisition of IONA, we will not be able to asseéhese remaining funds until a future
auction for these ARS is successful, we sell tloeiiges in a secondary market, or they are rededmehe issuer. As such, these remaining
investments currently lack short-term liquidity sare therefore classified as noncurrent on thenoelaheet at November 30, 2009. Based on
our cash and short-term investments balance aneteegb operating cash flows, we do not anticipagdabk of liquidity associated with these
ARS to adversely affect our ability to conduct Ingesis and believe we have the ability to hold tifiecédd securities throughout the estimated
recovery period, which we currently estimate tdwe to five years. We also believe that based erctirrent credit rating of the security issuer
and the third-party insurer underlying the investisewe will be able to collect contractual inteérasd principal payments and no loss due to
credit exposure exists. Therefore, the impairmenthese securities is considered only temporanatare. If the credit rating of either the
security issuer or the third-party insurer underlythe investments deteriorates significantly, vag/ilne required to adjust the carrying value of
the ARS through an impairment charge.

In November 2008, we accepted a settlement offérdrform of a rights offering from UBS Financiar8ices (UBS), the investment firm that
brokered the original purchases of the ARS thahuald. The rights offering provides us with a putiop to sell these securities at par value to
UBS during a period beginning on June 30, 2010céthe settlement agreement is a legally enforedainh commitment, the put option is
recognized as a financial asset at its fair vafuglcs million in our financial statements at Novasn 30, 2009, and is accounted for separately
from the associated securities. Changes in thevédire of the put option, based on the differemcesilue between the par value and the fair
value of the associated ARS, are recognized ireatiperiod earnings.

We generated cash from operations of $62.8 miilidiiscal year 2009, $87.2 million in fiscal yead@B, and $104.0 million in fiscal year 20
The components of our cash flows from operationgisoal years 2009, 2008 and 2007 are as follows:

(In thousands

Year Ended November 3 200¢ 200¢ 2007
Net income $ 32,75t $46,29¢ $ 42,28(
Depreciation, amortization and other noncash cls 61,94: 49,43: 58,67
Tax benefit (deficiency) from stock pla (310 1,12¢ 1,614
Changes in operating assets and liabili (31,629 (9,669 1,43¢

Total $ 62,75¢ $87,18: $104,00°

The fluctuation in the change in operating assetsliabilities between fiscal 2008 and fiscal 20@&s primarily the result of payments of
assumed liabilities acquired as part of the actjoisbf IONA and differences in the timing of maénance renewal billings. The fluctuation in
the change in operating assets and liabilities detwfiscal 2007 and fiscal 2008 was primarily tbguit of differences in the timing of
maintenance renewal billings. Our gross accoumsivable increased by $3.8 million from the endisdal 2008. Days sales outstanding
(DSO) in accounts receivable increased year ovar lyg four days to 65 days at the end of fiscal2&€ compared to 61 days at the end of
fiscal 2008 and 62 days at the end of fiscal 200&.target a DSO range of 60 to 80 days.

We purchased $7.4 million of property and equipniefiiscal year 2009, $8.2 million in fiscal yea®@B and $18.3 million in fiscal year 2007.
The purchases in each fiscal year consisted piynafrcomputer equipment, software and building &abehold improvements. We financed
these purchases primarily from cash generated @penations.

We purchased and retired 276,000 shares of our constock for $5.5 million in fiscal year 2009, 329000 shares for $111.5 million in fiscal
year 2008, and 1,290,000 shares for $38.0 milliofiscal year 2007. In September 2009, the Boal
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Directors authorized, for the period from Octobe2009 through September 30, 2010, the purchasp tf 1,000,000 shares of our common
stock, at such times that management deems suchgsas to be an effective use of cash.

We had no acquisitions in fiscal years 2009 and7200fiscal year 2008, we completed three acqaisitat a total cost of $140.3 million, net
of cash acquired. Each of these acquisitions wesuated for as a purchase, and accordingly, thdtsesf operations of the acquired
companies were included in our operating resutisifthe date of acquisition. In each case, the @selprice was paid in cash from available
funds. See Note 13 of the Consolidated FinancetieBtents appearing in this Annual Report on Foraf I6r further information

On January 8, 2010, we acquired Savvion, Inc.jvafaly-held company, for an aggregate purchaseemi approximately $49 million, net of
cash acquired. Savvion is a provider of businessgas management software. The Savvion produst fisilebecome part of our Enterprise
Business Solutions business unit. The acquisitidifo@ accounted for as a purchase, and accorditiggyresults of operations of Savvion will
be included in our operating results from the aditacquisition. The purchase price was paid in dewh available funds.

We expect to continue to pursue additional acqaisstduring the remainder of fiscal 2010. Our asijjioin strategy has been to expand our
business and/or add complimentary products anchtdadies to our existing product sets. To the extiesit we complete any future
acquisitions, our cash position could be reduced.

In December 2009, we announced a series of inigiatio better position us for long-term growth @angroved profitability. To execute these
initiatives, we announced that we are restructuongsales, development and marketing organizatisngell as other functions to better
optimize operations and to improve productivity aficiency. As a result, during the first quartdifiscal 2010, we will have reduced our
global workforce by approximately 230 to 260 pasit, representing approximately 13 to 14 perceonuofylobal workforce. This workforce
reduction is from substantially all functional unénd across all geographies in which we operateal® also consolidating offices in various
locations, including our offices in Nashua, New Hstmire and Dublin, Ireland during the first quaxéfiscal 2010. As a result of these
workforce reductions and office consolidations,auerently expect to incur in the aggregate a pxectaarge in the range of approximately
$19 million to $23 million. The estimated aggreget@rge consists of approximately $14 million t®& $iillion relating to our global workfort
reduction, consisting primarily of severance anstgamployment benefits, and approximately $5 millielating to our office consolidations.
We expect to record this charge primarily in thistfquarter of fiscal 2010. Substantially all osthharge will result in cash expenditures.

We include standard intellectual property indenm@ifion provisions in our licensing agreements edrdinary course of business. Pursuant to
our product license agreements, we will indemnifyld harmless, and agree to reimburse the indeeahifarty for losses suffered or incurred
by the indemnified party, generally business pasgtioe customers, in connection with certain pateopyright or other intellectual property
infringement claims by third parties with respexbur products. Other agreements with our custom@ngde indemnification for claims
relating to property damage or personal injury itésgifrom the performance of services by us or swlscontractors. Historically, our costs to
defend lawsuits or settle claims relating to surtemnity agreements have been insignificant. Adogig, the estimated fair value of these
indemnification provisions is immaterial.

We believe that existing cash balances togethér fwitds generated from operations will be suffitienfinance our operations and meet our
foreseeable cash requirements (including plannpifat@xpenditures, announced acquisitions, leagentitments, restructuring obligations,
debt payments and other long-term obligations)ughoat least the next twelve months.

Revenue Backlo— Our aggregate revenue backlog at November 3® 2@8 approximately $186 million, of which $146 lioih was included
on our balance sheet as deferred revenue, printatdyed to unexpired maintenance and support @ctistrAt November 30, 2009, the
remaining amount of backlog of approximately $4@Uion was composed of multi-year licensing arrangets of approximately $22 million
and open software license orders received buthippsd of approximately $18 million. Our backlogastlers not included on the balance s
is not subject to our normal accounting controlsifiblormation that is either reported in or derivfeam our basic financial statements.

Our aggregate revenue backlog at November 30, 2@88approximately $176 million, of which $144 nahi was included on our balance
sheet as deferred revenue, primarily related txpined maintenance and support contracts. At Nowr8b, 2008, the remaining amount of
backlog of approximately $32 million was composédhalti-year licensing arrangements of approxima&22 million and open software
license orders received but not shipped of appratéhg $10 million.

We typically fulfill most of our software licenseders within 30 days of acceptance of a purchaderoAssuming all other revenue recogni
criteria have been met, we recognize software $ieervenue upon shipment of the product, or ifvdedid electronically, when the customer
has the right to access the software. Because dnenmany elements governing
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when revenue is recognized, including when ordexshipped, credit approval obtained, completiomtd#rnal control processes over revenue
recognition and other factors, management has somteol in determining the period in which certa@wvenue is recognized. We frequently
have open software license orders at the end ajuaeer which have not shipped or have otherwidenet all the required criteria for revenue
recognition. Although the amount of open softwécerise orders may vary at any time, we generallpatdelieve that the amount, if any, of
such software license orders at the end of a pdatiuarter is a reliable indicator of future menfiance. In addition, there is no industry
standard for the definition of backlog and there/rna an element of estimation in determining theamt. As such, direct comparisons with
other companies may be difficult or potentially le&ling.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have no off-balance sheet arrangements as defileem 303(a)(4) of Regulation S-K.

Contractual Obligations

The following table details our contractual obligas as of November 30, 2009:

(In thousands

Payments Due by Peric

Less than 1-3 3-5 More than !

Contractual Obligation Total Yeal Year: Year: Year:
Long-term debf $ 1,022 $ 35¢ $ 664 $ — $ —
Interest payment on lo-term debt 117 69 48 — —
Operating lease 47,63 16,097 22,35¢ 8,64( 53E
Unrecognized tax benefits ( 3,281 — — — —
Total $52,05! $ 16,524 $23,07! $ 8,64( $ 53E

(1) This liability is not subject to fixed payment tesrand the amount and timing of payments, if anyickvtve will make related to th
liability are not known. See Note 10 of the Condaled Financial Statements appearing in this AnReglort on Form 10-K for
additional information

Critical Accounting Policies

Management'’s discussion and analysis of finan@abdion and results of operations are based uporcansolidated financial statements
which have been prepared in accordance with acomuptinciples generally accepted in the Unitedé&daf America. We make estimates and
assumptions in the preparation of our consolidéitethcial statements that affect the reported arteoohassets and liabilities, revenue and
expenses and related disclosures of contingentsaasd liabilities. We base our estimates on hisabexperience and various other
assumptions that are believed to be reasonable timeleircumstances. However, actual results méigrdrom these estimates.

We have identified the following critical accourgipolicies that require the use of significant jodmts and estimates in the preparation of our
consolidated financial statements. This listingas a comprehensive list of all of our accountindjgies. For further information regarding the
application of these and other accounting policeg, Note 1 of the Consolidated Financial Statesnagopearing in this Annual Report on F¢
10-K.

Revenue Recognition — Our revenue recognition goficsignificant because revenue is a key compoaiéatting results of operations. In
determining when to recognize revenue from a cust@mrangement, we are often required to exeradgnment regarding the application of
our accounting policies to a particular arrangemiéat example, judgment is required in determinifigether a customer arrangement has
multiple elements. When such a situation existdginent is also involved in determining whether \@rspecific objective evidence

(VSOE) of fair value for the undelivered elementsts. Such judgments can materially impact the @amhof revenue that we record in a given
period. While we follow specific and detailed rubesd guidelines related to revenue recognitionma&e and use significant management
judgments and estimates in connection with thermmegegecognized in any reporting period, particylarithe areas described above, as we
collectability. If management made different esti@seor judgments, material differences in the tgrof the recognition of revenue could
occur.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts — We maintain atoalance for doubtful accounts for estimated logssslting from the inability of
customers to make required payments. We establistaliowance using estimates that we make baséactors such as the composition of the
accounts receivable aging, historical bad deb@ngbs in payment patterns, changes to custometveogtthiness and current economic trends.
If we used different estimates, or if the finan@ahdition of
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customers were to deteriorate, resulting in an impant of their ability to make payments, we wotadjuire additional provisions for doubtful
accounts that would increase bad debt expense.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets — We had goodwililaret intangible assets of $304.9 million at Novent0, 2009. We assess the
impairment of goodwill on an annual basis and whenevents or changes in circumstances indicatatiracarrying value of the asset may
be recoverable. We would record an impairment anhédrguch an assessment were to indicate thaathedlue of such assets was less than the
carrying value. When we evaluate potential impairte@utside of our annual measurement date, judgimeaquired in determining whether
an event has occurred that may impair the valugootiwill or intangible assets. Factors that conftidate that an impairment may exist incl
significant underperformance relative to plan argderm projections, significant changes in busirggategy, significant negative industry or
economic trends or a significant decline in oucktprice or in the value of one of our reportingtsifior a sustained period of time. We utilize
either discounted cash flow models or other vatunathodels, such as comparative transactions anketnawultiples, to determine the fair val
of our reporting units. The determination of repagtunits also requires management judgment. Weaidenwhether a reporting unit exists
within a reportable segment based on the avaitghfidiscrete financial information that is regljareviewed by segment management. We
utilize undiscounted cash flows to determine thevalue of our intangible assets. We must makeragsions about future cash flows, future
operating plans, discount rates and other factotisdse models. Different assumptions and judgrdetgrminations could yield different
conclusions that would result in an impairment geaio income in the period that such change oreht@tion was made.

Income Tax Accounting — We had a net deferred &setof $41.6 million at November 30, 2009. We rda@luation allowances to reduce
deferred tax assets to the amount that is morégltkan not to be realized. We consider schedwednsals of temporary differences, projected
future taxable income, ongoing tax planning strigeg@nd other matters in assessing the need fatharaimount of a valuation allowance. If
were to change our assumptions or otherwise deterthat we were unable to realize all or part ofreat deferred tax asset in the future, an
adjustment to the deferred tax asset would be eldaiincome in the period that such change oreht@tion was made.

Management judgment is also required in evaluatihgther a tax position taken or expected to bentéka tax return, based on the weight of
available evidence, indicates that it is more {ikkblan not that, on an evaluation of the techmcalits, the tax position will be sustained on
audit, including resolution of any related appemal§tigation processes. Management judgment is dguired in measuring the tax benefit as
the largest amount that is more than 50% likelpaihg realized upon ultimate settlement. If manag@made different estimates or
judgments, material differences in the amount aettfor uncertain tax positions would occ

Stock-Based Compensation — We record stock-basegpeosation expense based on the fair value of 4taskd awards measured at the
grant date and recognized over the relevant sepéded. We estimate the fair value of each stoagell award on the measurement date using
either the current market price or the Black-Schalgtion valuation model. The Black-Scholes optiatuation model incorporates
assumptions as to stock price volatility, the expedife of options, a risk-free interest rate a@iddend yield. Many of these assumptions are
highly subjective and require the exercise of managnt judgment. If management made different eséisnar judgments, material differences
in the amount of stock-based compensation wouldrocc

Investments in Debt Securities — We have approxigei56.9 million at fair value (par value of $65rllion) in investments related to

auction rate securities (ARS), of which $40.7 roilliare classified as noncurrent at November 309 286r each of our ARS, we evaluate the
risks related to the structure, collateral anditigy of the investment, and forecast the probapiif issuer default, auction failure and a
successful auction at par, or a redemption atfpaeach future auction period. Based on the resiflthis assessment, we record either a mark-
to-market adjustment in accumulated other comprgikierincome or an other-than-temporary impairméatrge in other income in our
statement of operations. For ARS acquired as fahecacquisition of IONA and classified as tradsegurities, we record all changes in fair
value in current period earnings. For further infation regarding the ARS acquired as part of thgiaition of IONA, see Notes 2 and 3 of
Consolidated Financial Statements appearing inAhisual Report on Form 10-K. If we used differessamptions or the credit rating of either
the security issuer or the third-party insurer uhyileg the investments deteriorates, we may beireduo adjust the carrying value of our
available-for-sale ARS through an other-than-terapoimpairment charge in current period earnings.

Restructuring Charges — We periodically recordreestiring charges resulting from restructuring operations (including consolidations
and/or relocations of operations), changes to tategjic plan, or managerial responses to decliimdsmand, increasing costs, or other market
factors. The determination of restructuring chamgegiires management judgment and may include celsted to employee benefits, such as
costs of severance and termination benefits, atimh@®s of costs for future lease commitments aess facilities, net of estimated future
sublease income. In determining the amount ofdldities charge, we are required to estimate $actors as future vacancy rates, the time
required to sublet properties and sublease rateselTestimates are reviewed quarterly based onrkrneal estate market conditions and the
credit-worthiness of subtenants, and may resukwsions to established facility reserves.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements
Accounting Standards Codificatio

In June 2009, the Financial Accounting Standardsr8¢FASB) issued The FASB Accounting Standardsifdadion™ (the Codification). Tk
Codification is the official single source of authative U.S. generally accepted accounting priesgGAAP). All existing accounting
standards are superseded and all other accountidgrgce not included in the Codification will benstdered non-authoritative. The
Codification does not change GAAP. We adopted théification in the fourth quarter of fiscal 200hdimpact on our financial statements
from the Codification adoption was limited to dizslires, as all references to previous authorita®eeunting literature were superseded b
Codification.

Determining Whether Instruments Granted in She-Based Payment Transactions Are Participating Seities

In June 2008, the FASB issued an accounting stdrttlat provides that unvested shhesed payment awards that contain nonforfeitagtes

to dividends or dividend equivalents (whether paidinpaid) are participating securities and musnbkided in the computation of earnings
per share pursuant to the two-class method. Upoptash, a company is required to retrospectivelystdts earnings per share data (including
any amounts related to interim periods, summarieamings and selected financial data) to confaith the provisions of this standard. As
required, we adopted this standard on Decembed,and there was no impact from adoption on ousalidated financial statements.

Determination of the Useful Lives of Intangible Asts

In April 2008, the FASB issued a standard that aisehe factors that should be considered in deugoenewal or extension assumptions
used to determine the useful life of a recognizedrigible asset. We adopted this standard on Demeint2009, and there was no impact from
adoption on our consolidated financial statements.

Business Combination

In December 2007, the FASB issued revised standardsisiness combinations and accounting and iieagast noncontrolling interests in
consolidated financial statements. The reviseddstals will significantly change the financial acotng and reporting of business combina
transactions. The most significant changes fromectipractice will require Companies to recogniaetingent consideration arrangements at
their acquisition-date fair values, with subsequadratnges in fair value generally reflected in eagsj with certain exceptions, recognize
preacquisition loss and gain contingencies at thejuisition-date fair values; capitalize in-pracessearch and development assets; expense
acquisition-related transaction costs as incuraed; limit the capitalization of acquisition-relategstructuring as of the acquisition date. In
addition, changes in accounting for deferred tasetigaluation allowances and acquired income taemainties after the measurement period
will be recognized in earnings rather than as gnsathent to the cost of acquisition. We adopted #itdandard on December 1, 2009, and be
this standard will have a material effect on tmaficial accounting for any acquisition completadrabecember 1, 2009.

Iltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures Aout Market Risk

We are exposed to a variety of risks, includingngjes in interest rates affecting the return onimugstments and foreign currency fluctuatic
We have established policies and procedures to geamiar exposure to fluctuations in interest ratesfareign currency exchange rates.

Exposure to market rate risk for changes in intarges relates to our investment portfolio. Weéhawt used derivative financial instrument
our investment portfolio. We place our investmenith high-quality issuers and have policies limiting, amotigeo things, the amount of cre
exposure to any one issuer. We seek to limit deféal by purchasing only investment-grade se@sitOur investments have an average
remaining maturity of less than two years or ingérate resets of less than 60 days and are phnfixeéd-rate instruments. In addition, we
have classified all of our debt securities as add-for-sale, except for certain ARS which aressified as trading. The available-for-sale
classification reduces the income statement expdsuinterest rate risk if such investments ard letil their maturity date because change
fair value due to market changes in interest rategecorded on the balance sheet in accumulated cdmprehensive income. Based on a
hypothetical 10% adverse movement in interest rétespotential losses in future earnings, faiueadf risk-sensitive instruments and cash
flows are immaterial. Additionally, see further dission regarding market risks with our investm@ém®RS under Liquidity and Capital
Resources in Item 7 of this Form 10-K.
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We use derivative instruments to manage exposutedtations in the values of foreign currenciehjch exist as part of our on-going
business operations. Certain assets and foredaatesactions are exposed to foreign currency €sk.objective for holding derivatives is to
eliminate or reduce the impact of foreign currerisit. We periodically monitor our foreign curreneyposures to enhance the overall
effectiveness of our foreign currency hedge pas#tidrincipal currencies hedged include the euritisB pound, Brazilian real, Japanese yen,
South African rand and Australian dollar. We do eoter into derivative instruments for speculafiveposes, nor do we hold or issue any
derivative instruments for trading purposes. Weemito certain derivative instruments that may oqualify for hedge accounting. Although
derivatives we have entered into do not qualifyfedge accounting, we believe that such instrurmemetslosely correlated with the underlying
exposure, thus managing the associated risk.

We generally use foreign currency option contréitds are not designated as hedging instrumentedgéheconomically a portion of forecasted
international cash flows for up to one year infilteire. All foreign currency option contracts aeeorded at fair value in other current assets on
the balance sheet at the end of each reportinggarid expire within one year. In fiscal 2009, éssef ($1.4) million on foreign currency

option contracts, primarily representing premiuraglpn expired contracts, were recorded in othewrime (expense), net in the statement of
operations.

We also use forward contracts that are not desgneas hedging instruments to hedge economicallimpact of the variability in exchange
rates on accounts receivable and collections demats in certain foreign currencies. We generadydt hedge the net assets of our
international subsidiaries. All forward contracte aecorded at fair value in other current assetthe balance sheet at the end of each reporting
period and expire within 90 days. In fiscal 2008ing of $4.2 million from realized net gains an@rmges in the fair value of our forward
contracts were recognized in other income in thtestent of operations, primarily offset by unreadizosses on the offsetting positions.

The table below details outstanding foreign curyeiocward and option contracts at November 30, 2008re the notional amount is
determined using contract exchange rates:

(In thousands

Notional Valug Fair Value
Foreign currency forward contracts to sell U.Slats| $ 88,19 $ (19
Foreign currency forward contracts to purchase doBars 8,98: 1
Foreign currency option contracts to purchase do8ars 109,77" 2,007
Total $ 206,95 $ 1,99¢

There were no foreign currency option contractstaumding at November 30, 2008. The table belowildaiatstanding foreign currency
forward contracts at November 30, 2008 where thmnal amount is determined using contract exchaatgs:

(In thousands

Notional Value Fair Value
Foreign currency forward contracts to sell U.Slats| $ 57,96¢ $ (46
Foreign currency forward contracts to purchase daars 14,81 (180)
Total $  72,78( $ (226
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Progress Software Corporation
Bedford, MA

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balgineets of Progress Software Corporation anddiatiss (the “Company”) as of
November 30, 2009 and 2008, and the related calaeli statements of income, shareho’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three y
in the period ended November 30, 2009. These finhatatements are the responsibility of the Comjpmmanagement. Our responsibility i
express an opinion on these financial statemerssdoan our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighamigUnited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to sbteasonable assurance about whether the finestatements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on aliasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digids in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting principged and significant estimates made by managenewntelhas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial stateteg@resent fairly, in all material respects, tinaricial position of Progress Software
Corporation and subsidiaries as of November 30920@ 2008, and the results of their operationstlagid cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended November 30, 2009, ifioconty with accounting principles generally acaspin the United States of Americ

We have also audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Blo@inited States), the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting as of Mowber 30, 2009, based on the criteria establighbddrnal Control—Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidribe Treadway Commission and our report datedaky 29, 2010 expressed an
unqualified opinion on the Company’s internal cohtver financial reporting.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
Boston, Massachusetts
January 29, 2010
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Consolidated Financial Statements

Consolidated Balance Sheets

(In thousands, except share da

November 30 200¢ 200¢
Assets
Current asset:
Cash and equivalen $175,87: $ 96,48:
Shor-term investment 48,24¢ 22,04«
Total cash and sh«term investment 224,12: 118,52¢
Accounts receivable (less allowances of $7,650®92and $7,944 in 200: 98,87: 94,79¢
Other current asse 20,19 18,66¢
Deferred tax asse 14,43: 14,26
Total current asse 357,61¢ 246,25
Property and equipment, r 59,62¢ 63,14%
Intangible assets, n 86,38¢ 108,86¢
Goodwill 218,49¢ 233,38!
Deferred tax asse 30,63¢ 29,61¢
Investments in auction rate securit 40,71« 62,36«
Other asset 5,36 8,73¢
Total $798,85( $752,37(
Liabilities and Shareholde’ Equity
Current liabilities:
Current portion of lon-term debt $ 35¢ $ 33
Accounts payabl 12,40( 11,59:
Accrued compensation and related ts 44,47: 46,00:
Income taxes payab 4,082 3,92¢
Other accrued liabilitie 24,36¢ 43,75(
Shor-term deferred revent 141,24 135,78t
Total current liabilities 226,92 241,38!
Long-term debt, less current portir 664 1,022
Long-term deferred revent 4,511 7,951
Deferred tax liabilitie: 3,44 10,02!
Other noncurrent liabilitie 7,854 10,53
Commitments and contingencies (note
Shareholder equity:
Preferred stock, $.01 par value; authorized, 1@@®shares; issued, no
Common stock, $.01 par value, and additional paidappital; authorized, 100,000,000 shares; issndd
outstanding, 40,604,031 in 2009 and 39,903,718 247,26" 216,26:
Retained earnings, including accumulated other cehgmsive loss of $(3,385) in 2009 and $(14,03.
2008 308,18" 265,19:
Total shareholde’ equity 555,45 481,45:
Total $798,85( $752,37(

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Income

(In thousands, except per share de

Year Ended November 3 200¢ 200¢ 2007
Revenue
Software license $175,56¢ $192,21° $187,08(
Maintenance and servic 318,57: 323,34 306,42(
Total revenu 494,13 515,56( 493,50(
Costs of revenue
Cost of software license 7,77¢ 9,53¢ 8,05(
Cost of maintenance and servi 65,96 69,32: 68,61
Amortization of acquired intangibles for purchasechnology 19,45¢ 13,03: 10,09:
Total costs of revent 93,20z 91,88¢ 86,75¢
Gross profil 400,93¢ 423,67. 406,74«
Operating expense
Sales and marketir 182,22° 195,94° 191,43¢
Product developmel 93,26: 87,78¢ 80,34
General and administratiy 59,61: 62,08 62,27(
Amortization of other acquired intangibl 9,047 6,42¢ 7,30:
Restructuring expens 5,21¢ 6,91¢ —
Impairment of goodwil — — 8,174
Acquisitior-related expense 44C 12¢ —
Total operating expens 349,801 359,28t 349,52¢
Income from operatior 51,13: 64,38: 57,21¢
Other income (expense
Interest income and oth 2,70z 10,38¢ 9,86:
Foreign currency los (2,659 (758) (2,030
Total other income, n¢ 48 9,627 7,831
Income before provision for income tay 51,18( 74,01( 65,047
Provision for income taxe 18,42t 27,71 22,761
Net income $ 32,75¢ $ 46,29¢ $ 42,28(
Earnings per shar
Basic $ 0.8z $ 1.1c $ 1.0Z
Diluted $ 0.8C $ 1.0¢ $ 0.9¢
Weighted average shares outstand
Basic 40,10: 41,03t 41,554
Diluted 41,04] 42,67 43,94

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity

(In thousands

Year Ended November 3 200¢ 200¢ 2007
Common stock and additional p-in capital:
Balance, beginning of ye: $216,26: $240,64° $197,74¢
Exercise of employee stock optic 9,054 18,82( 36,14«
Issuance of stock under the employee stock purghias: 5,74C 6,68t 6,24¢
Repurchase of common sta (5,05¢) (72,057 (22,329
Present value of payments fo-pricing of stock option (42 — (2,609
Stocl-based compensatic 21,53¢ 19,31¢ 20,87¢
Tax benefit (deficiency) from stock pla (22€) 2,84¢ 4,562
Balance, end of yei 247,26" 216,26 240,64’
Retained earning:
Balance, beginning of ye: 265,19: 277,22 246,81¢
Net income 32,75t 46,29¢ 42,28(
Other comprehensive incon
Unrealized gains (losses) on investme 31¢ (4,685 15¢
Translation adjustmen 10,33( (14,18)) 3,56¢
Comprehensive incorr 43,40« 27,43( 46,007
Adoption of FIN 48 — (12 —
Repurchase of common sto (408) (39,459 (15,596
Balance, end of ye: 308,18: 265,19: 277,22
Total shareholde’ equity $555,45. $481,45. $517,87-

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(In thousands

Year Ended November 3 200¢ 200¢ 2007

Cash flows from operating activitie
Net income $ 32,75t $ 46,29¢ $ 42,28(

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigeal by operating activitie:
Depreciation and amortization of property and emgpt 11,90( 10,657 9,49:
Impairment of certain ERP cos — — 2,38¢
Loss on disposal of property and equiprr — — 178
Amortization of capitalized software co: — — 17¢
Amortization of intangible asse 28,50¢ 19,457 17,39¢
Impairment of goodwil — — 8,174
Stock-based compensatic 21,53¢ 19,31¢ 20,87¢
Tax benefit (deficiency) from stock pla (22€) 2,84¢ 4,562
Excess tax benefit from stock ple (84) (1,72%) (2,94
Allowances for accounts receival — (20%) 96¢
Deferred income taxe (367) (3,956 (4,127%)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, neffetts from acquisition:

Accounts receivabl 2,281 (3,829 (8,25%)
Other asset (352 7,26¢ 973
Accounts payable and accrued expet (26,79 (6,86€) (2,277)
Income taxes payab 3,30( (5,1672) 1,35(
Deferred revenu (9,696 3,08( 12,80¢
Net cash provided by operating activit 62,75¢ 87,18 104,000

Cash flows from investing activitie
Purchases of investments availi-for-sale (80,617 (143,499 (334,29¢)
Sales and maturities of investments avail-for-sale 79,33 354,75! 243,51¢
Purchases of property and equipm (7,369 (8,213 (18,489
Purchase of technolog — — (1,800
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired and purchaseeméttlement — (140,28) —
Increase in other noncurrent ass (53] (208 (547
Net cash provided by (used for) investing actigi (9,179 62,55( (111,609

Cash flows from financing activitie
Issuance of common sto 14,75 25,50¢ 42,49¢
Repurchase of common sto (5,46€) (111,51) (38,03)
Excess tax benefit from stock ple 84 1,72¢ 2,94¢
Payment of lon-term debt (330 (305) (281
Net cash provided by (used for) financing actig 9,04( (84,58¢) 7,13¢
Effect of exchange rate changes on ¢ 16,76¢ (22,540 7,891
Net increase in cash and equivale 79,38¢ 42,60¢ 7,43(C
Cash and equivalents, beginning of y 96,48¢ 53,87¢ 46,44¢
Cash and equivalents, end of y $175,87: $ 96,48¢ $ 53,87¢

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Note 1: Nature of Business and Summary of Significe Accounting Policies
The Company

We are a global supplier of application infrastwietsoftware and services for the development,ayepent, integration and management of
business applications. We develop, market andildigé& our products to business, industry and gavieris worldwide. We also provide
consulting, training and customer support services.

Accounting Principles

We prepare our consolidated financial statemerdsaganompanying notes in conformity with accountinigpciples generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statemeaguires management to make estimates and assomitat affect the amounts reporte
the financial statements and accompanying notesiahcesults could differ from those estimates.

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include eapants and those of our subsidiaries (all of whidhwholly-owned). We eliminate all
intercompany balances and transactions.

Foreign Currency Translation

For foreign operations where the local currenayoissidered to be the functional currency, we teteshssets and liabilities into U.S. dollars at
the exchange rate on the balance sheet date. Waaimincome and expense items at average rage<loénge prevailing during each period.
We accumulate translation adjustments in other eehgnsive income (loss), a component of sharehslldguity.

For foreign operations where the U.S. dollar issidered to be the functional currency, we transtad@etary assets and liabilities into U.S.
dollars at the exchange rate on the balance shéet\We re-measure non-monetary assets and liebilitto U.S. dollars at historical exchange
rates. We translate income and expense items edgveates of exchange prevailing during each geWde recognize translation adjustments
currently as a component of foreign currency gaitoss in the statement of income.

Revenue Recognition

We recognize software license revenue upon shipofahe product or, if delivered electronically, @hthe customer has the right to acces
software, provided that the license fee is fixedl@ierminable, persuasive evidence of an arrangeenxéts and collection is probable. We do
not license our software with a right of return geherally do not license our software with comudisi of acceptance. If an arrangement does
contain conditions of acceptance, we defer recagndf the revenue until the acceptance criteréaraet or the period of acceptance has pa
If software licenses are sold on a subscriptionshbage recognize the license fee ratably over thessription period. We generally recognize
revenue for products distributed through applicapartners and distributors when sold through ¢oethd-user.

We generally sell our software licenses with maiatee services and, in some cases, also with ¢omgsservices. For the undelivered
elements, we determine vendor-specific objectivdence (VSOE) of fair value to be the price chargien the undelivered element is sold
separately. We determine VSOE for maintenanceiaatdnnection with a software license based oratheunt that will be separately charged
for the maintenance renewal period. We determin®& $or consulting services by reference to the arhobarged for similar engagements
when a software license sale is not involved.

We generally recognize revenue from software liesrsold together with maintenance and/or consustamgices upon shipment using the
residual method, provided that the above criteaigelbeen met. If VSOE of fair value for the undetad elements cannot be established, we
defer all revenue from the arrangement until théiexeof the point at which such sufficient VSOEedoexist or all elements of the arrangement
have been delivered, or if the only undeliverednglet is maintenance, then we recognize the em@edtably. If payment of the software
license fees is dependent upon the performancensfuiting services or the consulting services asemtial to the functionality of the licensed
software, then we recognize both the software ieeand consulting fees using the percentage of letiom method.
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We recognize maintenance revenue ratably overetine of the applicable agreement. We generally neizegevenue from services, primarily
consulting and customer education, as the relatedcgs are performed.
Warranty Costs

We make periodic provisions for expected warramists. Historically, warranty costs have been inigant.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

We maintain an allowance for doubtful accountsefstimated losses resulting from the inability oftomers to make required payments. We
establish this allowance using estimates that wieerbased on factors such as the composition ai¢beunts receivable aging, historical bad
debts, changes in payment patterns, changes tonceistreditworthiness and current economic trends.

A summary of activity in the allowances againstagots receivable is as follows:

(In thousands

Year Ended November 3 200¢ 200¢ 2007
Beginning balanc $ 7,94« $ 9,45¢ $ 8,54¢
Charged to (benefit to) costs and expetr — (20%) 96¢
Write-offs and othe (2,029 (40€) (364)
Translation adjustmen 73t (909) 30t
Ending balanci $ 7,65( $ 7,944 $ 9,45¢

Cash Equivalents and Investments

Cash equivalents include short-term, highly ligudestments purchased with remaining maturitieicfe months or less. We classify
investments, which consist of auction rate se@sjtstate and municipal obligations, U.S. governraeaurities, certificates of deposit and
corporate bonds and notes, as investments avafiabale which are stated at fair value, excepttain student loan auction rate securities
(ARS), which are classified as trading securiti#e. include aggregate unrealized holding gains assels as a component of accumulated
comprehensive income in shareholders’ equity, editgrertain ARS classified as trading, where afized gains and losses are recorded in
current period earnings.

Supplemental Cash Flow Information

In fiscal years 2009, 2008 and 2007, we paid $t@lkon, $29.8 million and $21.7 million in incontaxes, respectively, net of refunds
received. In fiscal year 2008, we received refundis the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) of $1.8iomlrelated to the filing of original tax
returns and amended tax returns from prior yeagfuriRls in fiscal years 2009 and 2007 were insigaifi.

In each of the fiscal years 2009, 2008 and 2005h paid for interest on long-term debt totaled $8itlion.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Our financial instruments that potentially subjestto concentrations of credit risk consist prittyaof cash and equivalents, investments and
trade receivables. We have cash investment poldigsh, among other things, limit investments tedstment-grade securities. We perform
ongoing credit evaluations of our customers, aedigk with respect to trade receivables is furth@éigated by the diversity, both by
geography and by industry, of the customer base.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amount of our cash and equivalent@ats receivable and accounts payable approxinfeateglue due to the short-term nature
of these instruments. We base the fair value oftdeom investments on current market prices, whithexception of certain ARS classified as
trading securities. The fair value of noncurremeistments, as well as certain ARS classified abrtgasecurities in short-term investments, is
based on discounted cash flow models (Note 2).caneying value of the put option related to the Affhits offering is based on the differei

in value between the par value and the fair vafub®associated ARS. The carrying value of longatdebt (Note 11) approximates its fair
value. We measure and record
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derivative financial instruments at fair value (Hdf). We elect fair value measurement for certaiarfcial assets on a case by case basis.

Derivative Instruments

We record all derivatives, whether designated uigiveg relationships or not, on the balance sheftiavalue. We use derivative instrument
manage exposures to fluctuations in the value r@ido currencies, which exist as part of our omgdiusiness operations. Certain assets and
forecasted transactions are exposed to foreigmrieayrrisk. Our objective for holding derivativegdseliminate or reduce the impact of these
exposures. We periodically monitor our foreign emgy exposures to enhance the overall economifeadtiefeness of our foreign currency
hedge positions. Principal currencies hedged ircthe euro, British pound, Brazilian real, Japaryeseand Australian dollar. We do not enter
into derivative instruments for speculative purggs®r do we hold or issue any derivative instrutséor trading purposes.

We enter into certain derivative instruments ttandt qualify for hedge accounting and are notglesied as hedges. Although these
derivatives do not qualify for hedge accounting,bedieve that such instruments are closely comdlatith the underlying exposure, thus
managing the associated risk. The gains or lossas¢hanges in the fair value of such derivativarinments that are not accounted for as
hedges are recognized in earnings.

Property and Equipment

We record property and equipment at cost. We repoyderty and equipment purchased in business eatibns at fair values which are then
treated as the cost. We provide for depreciati@haanortization on the straight-line method overeékmated useful lives of the related assets
or the remaining initial or current terms of legsgkichever is shorter. Useful lives by major astass are as follows: computer equipment
software, three to seven years; buildings and ingmreents, five to thirty-nine years; and furniturel dixtures, five to seven years.

Product Development Costs

We expense product development costs as incurredditvnot capitalize any software development costiscal years 2009, 2008 and 2007.
All previously capitalized amounts were fully amped as of the end of fiscal 2007.

Stock-based Compensation

Stock-based compensation expense reflects thedhie of stock-based awards measured at the gaémiatid recognized over the relevant
service period. We estimate the fair value of estobk-based award on the measurement date usieg #ie current market price or the Black-
Scholes option valuation model. The Black-Schofetsoo valuation model incorporates assumption®asdck price volatility, the expected

life of options, a risk-free interest rate and demd yield. We recognize stock-based compensatiparse on a straight-line basis over the
service period of the award, which is generallgfjrears for options, and three years for restristedk units and restricted stock awards.

Goodwill, Other Intangible Assets and Long-lived Asets

Goodwill is the amount by which the cost of acqdinet assets in a business acquisition exceedddithalue of net identifiable assets on the
date of purchase. We evaluate goodwill or othearigible assets with indefinite useful lives, if afor impairment annually or on an interim
basis when events and circumstances arise thagitedin impairment may have occurred. To condesetiimpairment tests of goodwill, we
compare the fair value of a reporting unit to #srging value. If the reporting unit’'s carrying ualexceeds its fair value, we record an
impairment loss to the extent that the carryingigaf goodwill exceeds its implied fair value. Watimate the fair values of our reporting units
using discounted cash flow models or other valmatimdels, such as comparative transactions andetiaxtdtiples. During fiscal 2009 and
fiscal 2008, we completed our annual testing fgpamment of goodwill and, based on those testsgloded that no impairment of goodwill
existed. We perform our annual testing on Decertibdrof each year. In addition, there were no triggegmgnts that required an interim
impairment test in fiscal 2009.

Long-lived assets primarily include property andipqent and intangible assets with finite livesr@iased technology, capitalized software
and customer-related intangibles). We periodicadisiew long-lived assets for impairment whenevesrgs or changes in business
circumstances indicate that the carrying amouthefassets may not be fully recoverable or thatifedul lives of those assets are no longer
appropriate. We base each impairment test on aaesgm of the undiscounted cash flows to the cagyialue of the asset. If impairment is
indicated, we write down the asset to its estimé@dvalue based on a discounted cash flow aralysifiscal 2007, we recorded a write-down
of long-lived assets associated with a specifidtpiarty provided element of the implementatiomafew ERP system of $2.4 million. The
write-down was
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necessitated by the conclusion that it was notsadbé to proceed further with the implementatiothefthird-party application.

Income Taxes

We provide for deferred income taxes resulting ftemporary differences between financial and tex@&dome. We record valuation
allowances to reduce deferred tax assets to thestntiwat is more likely than not to be realized.

We recognize and measure uncertain tax positikkentar expected to be taken in a tax return utifjz two-step approach. We first determine
if the weight of available evidence indicates tihégd more likely than not that the tax positionlivbie sustained on audit, including resolution of
any related appeals or litigation processes. Therskstep is that we measure the tax benefit aatgest amount that is more likely than nc
be realized upon ultimate settlement. We recogmiezest and penalties related to uncertain takipas in our provision for income taxes on
our consolidated statements of income.

Comprehensive Income

The components of comprehensive income includaddition to net income, unrealized gains and losseigvestments and foreign currency
translation adjustments.

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) idensp of the following components:

(In thousand:)

November 30 200¢ 200¢
Cumulative translation adjustme $ 87C $ (9,459
Accumulated unrealized losses on investm (4,255 (4,579

Total accumulated comprehensive | $ (3,385 $(14,039

The tax effect on accumulated unrealized losséav@stments was $2.4 million and $2.7 million atvdmber 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Subsequent Events

We evaluated subsequent events through the datgnamdur consolidated financial statements wesaead on January 29, 2010.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements
Accounting Standards Codificatio

In June 2009, the Financial Accounting Standardsr@¢FASB) issued The FASB Accounting Standardsifi@adion™ (the Codification). Tt
Codification is the official single source of authative U.S. generally accepted accounting priesgGAAP). All existing accounting
standards are superseded and all other accountidgrgce not included in the Codification will bensidered non-authoritative. The
Codification does not change GAAP. We adopted tbdification in the fourth quarter of fiscal 200h& impact on our financial statements
from the Codification adoption was limited to dizslires, as all references to previous authoritaibe®unting literature were superseded b
Codification.

Determining Whether Instruments Granted in She-Based Payment Transactions Are Participating Seities

In June 2008, the FASB issued an accounting stdrttiat provides that unvested shhesed payment awards that contain nonforfeitagles

to dividends or dividend equivalents (whether paidinpaid) are participating securities and musnbkided in the computation of earnings
per share pursuant to the two-class method. Upoptaxh, a company is required to retrospectivelysidts earnings per share data (including
any amounts related to interim periods, summaliesamings and selected financial data) to confaith the provisions of this standard. As
required, we adopted this standard on Decembed(9,2and there was no impact from adoption on ounsglidated financial statements.
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Determination of the Useful Lives of Intangible Asts

In April 2008, the FASB issued a standard that aisehe factors that should be considered in deugjoenewal or extension assumptions
used to determine the useful life of a recognizedrigible asset. We adopted this standard on Demeint2009, and there was no impact from
adoption on our consolidated financial statements.

Business Combination

In December 2007, the FASB issued revised standardsisiness combinations and accounting and ieagast noncontrolling interests in
consolidated financial statements. The reviseddstals will significantly change the financial acotng and reporting of business combina
transactions. The most significant changes fromettipractice will require Companies to recogniaetingent consideration arrangements at
their acquisition-date fair values, with subsequaratnges in fair value generally reflected in eagsj with certain exceptions, recognize
preacquisition loss and gain contingencies at thejuisition-date fair values; capitalize in-pracessearch and development assets; expense
acquisition-related transaction costs as incuraed; limit the capitalization of acquisition-relategstructuring as of the acquisition date. In
addition, changes in accounting for deferred tasetgaluation allowances and acquired income taemtainties after the measurement period
will be recognized in earnings rather than as gnsathent to the cost of acquisition. We adopted #itdndard on December 1, 2009, and be
this standard will have a material effect on tmaficial accounting for any significant acquisitimesnpleted after December 1, 2009.

Note 2: Investments
A summary of our investments by major security tgp&lovember 30, 2009 is as follows:

(In thousands

Cos Unrealize« Unrealize« Fair
Security Type Basis Gain: Losse Value
State and municipal bond obligatic $10,37: $ 27z $ 3 $10,64(
US government and agency securi 11,07: — — 11,07:
Auction rate securitie— municipal bond: 27,95( — (4,20%) 23,74t
Auction rate securitie- student loan 19,50( — (2,537 16,96¢
Certificates of depos 11,65: — (0] 11,65
Subtotal- available-for-sale securitie 80,54¢ 272 (6,740 74,07¢
Put option related to ARS rights offeril — 1,59¢ — 1,59¢
Auction rate securitie- student loan 17,74( — (1,596 16,14«
Subtotal- trading securitie: 17,74( 1,59¢ (1,596) 17,74(
Total $98,28¢ $ 1,86¢ $ (8,336 $91,81¢
Such amounts are classified on our balance shé&&ihsgmber 30, 2009 as follows:
(In thousands
Cast Shor-termr Long-term
Security Type Equivalent Investment Investment
State and municipal bond obligatic $ — $ 10,64( $ —
US government and agency securi 2,50( 8,57 —
Auction rate securitie— municipal bond: — — 23,74t
Auction rate securitie- student loan — — 16,96¢
Certificates of depos 35€ 11,29¢ —
Subtotal- availablefor-sale securitie 2,85¢ 30,50¢ 40,71«
Put option related to ARS rights offeril — 1,59¢ —
Auction rate securitie- student loan — 16,14« —
Subtotal- trading securitie: — 17,74( —
Total $ 2,85¢ $ 48,24¢ $ 40,71«
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For each of the ARS classified as available-foe.sale evaluated the risks related to the structunkgteral and liquidity of the investment, and
forecasted the probability of issuer default, aarcfiailure and a successful auction at par or amgdion at par for each future auction period.
The weighted average cash flow for each periodtivas discounted back to present value for eachrisgcBased on this methodology, we
determined that the fair value of our non-curreRSAinvestments is $40.7 million. We recorded a ntasknarket adjustment in accumulated
other comprehensive income of $6.7 million to resltie value of our available-for-sale ARS investtaen

In November 2008, we accepted a settlement offdrarform of a rights offering from UBS Financiar8ices (UBS), the investment firm that
brokered the original purchases of the ARS thahuld as a result of our acquisition of IONA Techogies PLC (IONA). The rights offering
provides us with a put option to sell these segiat par value, which was $17.7 million at Novem®0, 2009, to UBS during a period
beginning on June 30, 2010. Since the settlemeareatent is a legally enforceable firm commitmeme, put option is recognized as a finan
asset at its fair value of $1.6 million in our firdal statements at November 30, 2009, and is ateddor separately from the associated
securities. Changes in the fair value of the ptibop based on the difference in value betweerp#revalue and the fair value of the associated
ARS, are recognized in current period earnings.

With the exception of the ARS acquired as partefdcquisition of IONA as described above, we mdll be able to access these remaining
funds until a future auction for these ARS is sgstal, we sell the securities in a secondary madkethey are redeemed by the issuer. As ¢
these remaining investments currently lack shortrtigquidity and are therefore classified as nonent on the balance sheet at November 30,
2009. Based on our cash and short-term investnbatsce and expected operating cash flows, we tamizipate the lack of liquidity
associated with these ARS to adversely affect bilityato conduct business and believe we haveathity to hold the affected securities
throughout the estimated recovery period, whiclcureently estimate to be two to five years. We &isbieve that based on the current credit
rating of the security issuer and the third-pansuirer underlying the investments, we will be dbleollect contractual interest and principal
payments and no loss due to credit exposure eXistsefore, the impairment on these securitiesiisiclered only temporary in nature. If the
credit rating of either the security issuer or thied-party insurer underlying the investments detates significantly, we may be required to
adjust the carrying value of the ARS through anampent charge.

A summary of our investments by major security tgp&lovember 30, 2008 is as follows:

(In thousands

Cos Unrealizec Unrealize( Fair
Security Type Basis Gains Losse Value
State and municipal bond obligatic $16,90: $ 107 $ (5) $17,00:
US government and agency securi 2,71¢ 1 — 2,72(
Auction rate securitie— municipal bond: 33,89 — (4,420 29,47
Auction rate securitie- student loan 20,80« — (2,747 18,06:
Corporate bonds and not 2,001 — (2) 1,99¢
Subtotal- availabl«-for-sale securitie 76,31¢ 10¢€ (7,16¢) 69,25¢
Auction rate securitie- student loan 18,00( — (2,850 15,15(
Subtotal- trading securitie 18,00( — (2,850 15,15(
Total $94,31¢ $ 10¢ $(10,019 $84,40¢
Such amounts are classified on our balance shé&&ihsgmber 30, 2008 as follows:
(In thousands
Shor-termr Long-term
Security Type Investment Investment
State and municipal bond obligatic $ 17,00: $ —
US government and agency securi 2,72( —
Auction rate securitie— municipal bond: 16 29,45t
Auction rate securitie- student loan 304 17,75¢
Corporate bonds and not 1,99¢ —
Subtotal- available-for-sale securitie 22,04+ 47,21«
Auction rate securitie- student loan — 15,15(
Subtotal- trading securitie — 15,15(
Total $ 22,04 $ 62,36¢
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The fair value of debt securities at November 3@Pand November 30, 2008, by contractual matustgs follows:

(In thousands

November 30 200¢ 200¢
Due in one year or less ( $80,39¢ $78,16¢
Due after one yes 9,82¢ 6,24(

Total $90,22: $ 84,40¢

(1) Includes ARS which are tendered for inte-rate setting purposes periodically throughout thsaryBeginning in February 2008, auctit
for these securities began to fail, and therefoesé investments currently lack short-term ligyidithe remaining contractual maturities
of these securities range from 6 to 37 years. Wighexception of the trading ARS acquired as plathie acquisition of IONA which are
subject to the UBS rights offering discussed abaxewill not be able to access these funds urftitare auction for these ARS is

successful, we sell the securities in a secondanken, or they are redeemed by the iss

Investments with continuous unrealized lossesdss than twelve months and twelve months or greaigtheir related fair values were as

follows at November 30, 2009:

(In thousands

Less tha 12 month
12 month or greate Total Total
Fair Unrealize( Fair Unrealize( Fair Unrealize(
Security Type Value Losse Value Losse Value Losse
State and municipal bond obligatic $ 83t $ (3) $ — $ — $ 83t $ €))
US government and agency securi — — — — — —
Auction rate securitie— municipal bond — — 23,74¢ (4,205 23,74¢ (4,205
Auction rate securitie- student loan — — 33,16! (4,127%) 33,16: (4,127)
Certificates of depos 10¢ (1) — — 10¢ (D
Total $ 944 $ (4) $56,90¢ $ (8,339 $57,85! $ (8,336

Investments with continuous unrealized lossesdss than twelve months and twelve months or greaittheir related fair values were as

follows at November 30, 2008:

(In thousands

Less tha 12 month
12 month or greate Total Total
Fair Unrealize« Fair Unrealize« Fair Unrealize«
Security Type Value Losse: Value Losse: Value Losse
State and municipal bond obligatic $ 1,55C $ (5) — — $ 1,55( $ (5)
US government and agency securi — — — — — —
Auction rate securitie— municipal bond 29,471 (4,420 — — 29,47: (4,420)
Auction rate securitie- student loan 33,21 (5,597 — — 33,218 (5,597
Corporate bonds and nol 1,99¢ (2 — — 1,99¢ (2
Total $66,23: $(10,01¢) — — $66,23: $(10,019)

The unrealized losses associated with state andcipahobligations, certificates of deposit andmanate bonds and notes are attributable to
changes in interest rates. The unrealized lossesiased with ARS are discussed above. Managenoast ot believe any unrealized losses
represent other-than-temporary impairments baseslioevaluation of available evidence as of Noven3@e 2009.
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Note 3: Fair Value Measurements

The following table details the fair value measueais within the fair value hierarchy of our finaalcassets:

(In thousands

Fair Value Measurements at the Reporting Date U
Quoted Prices

Active Market: Significant Othe Significan

Nov. 30 Using Identice Observable Inpu Unobservabl

Description 200¢ Assets (Level ] (Level 20 Inputs (Level 3
State and municipal bond obligatic $10,64( $ 10,64( $ — $ —
US government and agency securi 11,072 11,072 — —
Auction rate securitie— municipal bond: 23,74* — — 23,74*
Auction rate securitie- student loan 33,11 — — 33,11
Certificates of depos 11,652 11,652 — —
Put option related to ARS rights offeril 1,59¢ — — 1,59¢
Foreign exchange derivativ (12 — (12 —
Total $91,80¢ $ 33,36¢ $ (12 $ 58,45¢

The valuation technique used to measure fair viueur Level 1 and Level 2 assets is a market@gogh, using prices and other relevant
information generated by market transactions inwmgiidentical or comparable assets. The valuagohrique used to measure fair value for
our Level 3 assets is an income approach, wherexpected weighted average future cash flows wismdnted back to present value for €
asset, except for the put option related to the AB!®s offering, which is based on the differeirt@alue between the par value and the fair
value of the associated ARS.

The following table reflects the activity for ounéncial assets measured at fair value using L&wugbuts:

(In thousands

Level &

Financia

Asset:

Balance, December 1, 20 $65,21¢
Redemption: (7,200
Unrealized gains included in accumulated other cetmgnsive incom 44(
Unrealized gain on ARS trading securities inclugedther income 1,25¢
Unrealized loss on put option related to ARS rigiffering included in other incon (1,259
Balance, Nov. 30, 20C $ 58,45«

Note 4: Derivative Instruments

We generally use foreign currency option contrétds are not designated as hedging instrumentsdgehneconomically a portion of forecasted
international cash flows for up to one year infilteire. All foreign currency option contracts aeeorded at fair value in other current assets on
the balance sheet at the end of each reportinggand expire within one year. In fiscal 2009, &ssef ($1.4) million on foreign currency

option contracts, primarily representing premiuragipn expired contracts, were recorded in othesrime (expense), net in the statement of
operations.

We also use forward contracts that are not destgnat hedging instruments to hedge economicallintpact of the variability in exchange
rates on accounts receivable and collections demated in certain foreign currencies. We generailydt hedge the net assets of our
international subsidiaries. All forward contracte eecorded at fair value in other current assetthe balance sheet at the end of each reporting
period and expire within 90 days. In fiscal 2008ing of $4.2 million from realized net gains anamges in the fair value of our forward
contracts were recognized in other income in theestent of operations, primarily offset by unreadizosses on the offsetting positions.
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The table below details outstanding foreign curyeiocward and option contracts at November 30, 2088re the notional amount is
determined using contract exchange rates:

(In thousands

Notional Valug Fair Value
Foreign currency forward contracts to sell U.Slatsl $ 88,19: $ (13
Foreign currency forward contracts to purchase doBars 8,98: 1
Foreign currency option contracts to purchase do8ars 109,77 2,007
Total $ 206,95 $ 1,99t

There were no foreign currency option contractstaumiding at November 30, 2008. The table belowildaiatstanding foreign currency
forward contracts at November 30, 2008 where thmnal amount is determined using contract exchaatgs:

(In thousands

Notional Valug Fair Value
Foreign currency forward contracts to sell U.Slats| $ 57,96¢ $ (46
Foreign currency forward contracts to purchase doBars 14,81: (180)
Total $  72,78( $ (226
Note 5: Property and Equipment
Property and equipment consists of the following:
(In thousand:)
November 30 200¢ 200¢
Computer equipment and softw: $ 59,85( $ 56,69:
Land, buildings and leasehold improveme 57,38¢ 49,81:
Furniture and fixture 9,90/ 9,711
Total 127,14 116,21¢
Less accumulated depreciation and amortize 67,51¢ 53,06¢
Property and equipment, r $ 59,62¢ $ 63,14
Note 6: Intangible Assets and Gooduwiill
Intangible assets are composed of the followingi@ant classes at November 30, 2009:
(In thousands
Gros:
Carrying Accumulate: Net Book
Amount Amortizatior Value
Purchased technolog $124,85: $ 61,19 $63,66:
Custome-related and othe 59,61 36,89( 22,72]
Total $184,46¢ $ 98,08( $86,38¢
Intangible assets are composed of the followingifigant classes at November 30, 2008:
(In thousands
Gros:
Carrying Accumulate: Net Bool
Amouni Amortizatior Value
Purchased technolog $120,06! $ 41,98 $ 78,08:
Custome-related and othe 59,46¢ 28,67¢ 30,78¢
Total $179,53: $ 70,66 $108,86¢
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We amortize intangible assets assuming no expeetédual value. The weighted average amortizatemog for all intangible assets is

6.6 years, including 6.5 years for purchased telciyyoand 6.7 years for customer-related and otitanpible assets. Amortization expense
related to these intangible assets was $28.5 mjl$49.5 million and $17.4 million in fiscal yeét809, 2008 and 2007, respectively. We
estimate future amortization expense from intamgétssets held as of November 30, 2009, to be $2ilion, $19.1 million, $15.4 million,
$8.9 million and $6.9 million in fiscal years 201011, 2012, 2013 and 2014, respectively.

Changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for disgear 2009 by segment, as reported for fiscaD2B0as follows:

(In thousands

Acquisitions

Balanct and Purchas Balanct

Dec. 1 Accounting Translatiol Nov. 30

200¢ Adjustment: Write-dowr Adjustment 200¢

OpenEdge segme $ 2,96¢ $ = = $ 64C $ 3,60¢
Enterprise Infrastructure segme 123,61° (15,810 — — 107,80°
Data Infrastructure segme 106,80( — — 282 107,08:
Total $233,38! $ (15,810 — $ 928 $218,49¢

The decrease in goodwill from the end of fiscal0s primarily related to recognition of tax betsefprimarily net operating loss carry-
forwards, changes to the tax attributes of ceitaims in the preliminary allocation of the purchasiee and reductions in the value of assumed
liabilities, primarily pre-acquisition contingensi@and income taxes payable, from the acquisitid®bdfA in September 2008.

Changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for fisgear 2008 by segment, as reported for fiscaB2@0as follows:

(In thousands

Acquisitions an

Balanct Purchas Balanct

Dec. 1 Accounting Translatiol Nov. 30

2007 Adjustment Write-dowr Adjustment 200¢

OpenEdge and SO $ 30,26¢ $ 81,41« — $ (915 $110,76¢
DataDirect 88,23 4,23¢ — — 92,47(
Other 30,55¢ — — (407) 30,14"
Total $149,05° $ 85,65( — $ (1,329 $233,38!

Note 7: Earnings Per Share

We compute basic earnings per share using the tegigiverage number of common shares outstanding.oiMpute diluted earnings per sh
using the weighted average number of common sloatstanding plus the effect of outstanding dilusteck options, using the treasury stock
method, and outstanding restricted and deferrezkstoits. The following table sets forth the cadtidn of basic and diluted earnings per share
for each fiscal year:

(In thousands, except per share de

Year Ended November 3 200¢ 200¢ 2007
Net income $32,75¢ $46,29¢ $42,28(
Weighted average shares outstanc 40,10: 41,03t 41,55¢
Dilutive impact from common stock equivalel 93¢ 1,642 2,38¢
Diluted weighted average shares outstan: 41,04: 42,67 43,94
Basic earnings per she $ 0.82 $ 1% $ 1.0Z
Diluted earnings per sha $ 0.8C $ 1.0¢ $ 0.9¢

Stock options to purchase approximately 6,382,0@0es, 3,440,000 shares and 2,379,000 shares ofi@ostock were excluded from the
calculation of diluted earnings per share in fisesrs 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively, becéiese toptions were anti-dilutive.
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Note 8: Shareholders’ Equity
Preferred Stock

Our Board of Directors is authorized to establish or more series of preferred stock and to fix @etgérmine the number and conditions of
preferred shares, including dividend rates, redemgnd/or conversion provisions, if any, prefenand voting rights. At November 30,
2009, our Board of Directors had not issued aniesearf preferred stock.

Common Stock

A summary of share activity is as follows:

(In thousands

Year Ended November 3 200¢ 200¢ 2007
Beginning balanc 39,90¢ 42,38( 41,17"
Shares issue 98¢€ 1,43i 2,50¢
Shares repurchased and reti (27€) (3,912 (1,290
Shares forfeite: (10 (1) (15)
Ending balanci 40,60 39,90¢ 42,38(

In fiscal 2009, we issued 16,000 shares with aviaine of $0.4 million to non-employee membershef Board the Directors.

Common Stock Repurchases

In fiscal years 2009, 2008 and 2007, we purchaeddetired 276,000 shares, 3,912,000 shares af0,000 shares, respectively, of our
common stock for $5.5 million, $111.5 million an8850 million, respectively. Included in the shaepurchases for fiscal 2009 were 12,000
shares withheld from employees for payment of taatding $0.3 million.

In September 2009, the Board of Directors authdrifer the period from October 1, 2009 through 8egier 30, 2010, the purchase of up to
1,000,000 shares of our common stock, at such tihegsnmanagement deems such purchases to be ativeffiese of cash. There were 997,000
shares of common stock available for repurchaserithis authorization at November 30, 2009.

Stock Options and Stock Awards

We currently have one shareholder-approved stamk foom which we can issue equity securities, idiclg options, deferred stock awards and
restricted stock. In fiscal 2008, our board of dioes and shareholders approved the 2008 Stoclo®atid Incentive Plan, which replaced the
1992 Incentive and Nonqualified Stock Option Pliwe, 1994 Stock Incentive Plan and the 1997 Stocénrtive Plan (collectively, the Previous
Plans). The Previous Plans solely exist to satistgtanding options previously granted under tipdses. The 2008 Plan permits the grantin
stock awards to officers, members of the Board ioé@ors, employees and consultants. Awards uriege2008 Plan may include nonqualified
stock options, incentive stock options, grantsasfditioned or restricted stock, unrestricted grarfitstock, grants of stock contingent upon the
attainment of performance goals, deferred stoctswand stock appreciation rights. The options g@uptior to fiscal 2005 generally vest over
five years and have terms of ten years. Optionstgdasince fiscal 2005 generally vest over fivergead have terms of seven years. A total of
25,340,000 shares are issuable under these pfanbkjah 383,000 shares were available for gramN@atember 30, 2009.

We have adopted two stock plans for which the aggirof shareholders was not required: the 2002 Nalified Stock Plan (2002 Plan) and
the 2004 Inducement Stock Plan (2004 Plan). Th@ Zén permits the granting of stock awards to executive officer employees and
consultants. Executive officers and members oBibard of Directors are not eligible for awards unitie 2002 Plan. Awards under the 2002
Plan may include nongualified stock options, grarfitsonditioned or restricted stock, unrestricteangs of stock, grants of stock contingent
upon the attainment of performance goals and sippkeciation rights. The options granted priorisodl 2005 generally vest over five years
and have terms of ten years. The options grantex $iscal 2005 generally vest over five years laank terms of seven years. A total of
6,500,000 shares are issuable under the 2002 ¢flarmich 611,000 shares were available for gratNatember 30, 2009.
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The 2004 Plan is reserved for persons to whom weigsae securities as an inducement to become getploy us pursuant to the rules and
regulations of the NASDAQ Stock Market. Awards unttee 2004 Plan may include nonqualified stockansi grants of conditioned or
restricted stock, unrestricted grants of stockntgraf stock contingent upon the attainment ofgrenince goals and stock appreciation rights.
The options granted prior to fiscal 2005 generadigt over five years and have terms of ten yedrs.options granted since fiscal 2005
generally vest over five years and have termsaésgears. A total of 1,000,000 shares are issuaider the 2004 Plan, of which 236,000
shares were available for grant at November 309200

A summary of stock option activity under all plaass follows:

(In thousands, except per share de

Weighted Averag

Numbe Exercise Pric

of Share Per Shar

Options outstanding, December 1, 2( 9,76¢ $ 23.0%
Grantec 1,45¢ 22.81
Exercisec (510 17.7¢
Cancelec (605) 27.1(
Options outstanding, November 30, 2( 10,10¢ $ 23.0i

For various exercise price ranges, characterisficgitstanding and exercisable stock options atdidher 30, 2009 are as follows:

(Number of shares in thousanc

Options Outstandin Options Exercisabl
Weightec

Average Weightec Weightec

Range of Number o Remaining Average Number o Average
Exercise Price Share Life (in years Exercise Pric Share Exercise Pric
$12.0¢-18.7¢ 2,19¢ 2.7¢ $ 15.7¢ 2,167 $ 15.77
19.28-21.5C 1,981 5.1¢ 20.0¢ 1,232 20.3¢
21.8€-23.4¢ 1,94: 4.5C 22.2¢ 1,252 22.3¢
23.9(-29.9¢ 2,15¢ 5.04 26.8¢ 1,06¢ 27.1¢
30.71-32.4( 1,831 3.8¢ 31.3¢ 1,38¢ 31.2i
$12.0€-32.4( 10,10¢ 4.2¢€ $ 23.07 7,10¢ $ 22.4i

Options outstanding that have vested and thatqrected to vest as of November 30, 2009 are azwell

(In thousands, except per share de

Weightec
Average Weightec Aggregat
Outstandini Remaining Average Intrinsic
Options Life (in years Exercise Pric Value (1
Vested 7,10¢ 3.6 $ 22.4 $24,76(
Expected to ves 2,671 5.5 24.7¢ 4,40(
Total 9,78t 4.17 $ 23.04 $29,16(

(1) The aggregate intrinsic value was calcul&i@sed on the difference between the closing pficaiiostock on November 30, 2009 of
$24.08 and the exercise prices for a-the-money options outstandin
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A summary of the status of our restricted stockrd&at November 30, 2009 is as follows:

(In thousands, except per share de

Weighted Averag

Numbe Grant dat

of Share Fair value

Restricted stock awards outstanding, December@d8 16 $ 26.0¢
Grantec — —
Vested 3 26.0¢
Cancelec (8) 26.0¢
Restricted stock awards outstanding, November G09 5 $ 26.0¢

The restricted stock awards vest semi-annually av@ree-year period.

A summary of the status of our restricted stocksuat November 30, 2009 is as follows:

(In thousands, except per share de

Weighted Averag

Numbe Grant dat

of Share Fair value

Restricted stock units outstanding, December 18: — —
Grantec 364 $ 22.0¢
Issued (68) 22.01
Cancelec 3 22.01
Restricted stock units outstanding, November 309: 29¢ $ 22.11

Each restricted stock unit represents one shazerofmon stock. The restricted stock units vest samuially over a three-year period.

A summary of the status of our deferred stock uatitdovember 30, 2009 is as follows:

(In thousands, except per share de

Weighted Averag

Numbe Grant dat

of Share Fair value

Deferred stock units outstanding, December 1, : 47 $ 26.8¢
Grantec — —
Issued (12) 28.62
Deferred stock units outstanding, November 30, 2 35 $ 26.2¢

Each deferred stock unit (DSU) represents one sifavar common stock. All DSU grants have been nmtaden-employee members of our
Board of Directors. The DSUs are fully vested oteds# grant, but do not have voting rights and ealy be converted into common stock
when the recipient ceases being a member of thedBoa

The fair value of outright stock awards, restricséack awards, restricted stock units and DSUSs|iskto the closing price of our common
stock on the date of grant.
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The following table provides the classificationsbéck-based compensation expense as reflected roogolidated statements of income:

(In thousands

Year Ended November 3 200¢ 200¢ 2007
Cost of software licenst $ 37 $ 72 $ 12¢
Cost of maintenance and servit 94¢ 1,17¢ 1,51¢
Sales and marketir 5,83( 6,982 7,97¢
Product developmel 4,041 4,58¢ 5,08:
General and administrati 10,68( 6,50¢ 8,17t

Total stocl-based compensation expe! 21,53¢ 19,31¢ 22,88¢
Income tax benefit included in provision for incotages (5,167 (4,632) (5,72¢)

Total stocl-based compensation expense, net o $16,37¢ $14,68t¢ $17,15¢

In fiscal 2009, we recognized stock-based comp@rsakpense of $4.9 million in connection with teyation modifications related to a
Separation Agreement that we entered into withplo$®. Alsop, our co-founder and former Presidert @hief Executive Officer. Pursuant to
the Separation Agreement, Mr. Alsop’s employmenhws terminated on June 30, 2009.

The Separation Agreement provides for two modiitcet to Mr. Alsop’s existing stock options. Firfite Separation Agreement provides for
the acceleration of vesting of Mr. Alsop’s unvesséack options, which represent the right to puseh254,464 shares of our common stock.
Second, the Separation Agreement extends the amefduring which Mr. Alsop may exercise all of siigck options following the
termination of his employment. Under the termshef Eeparation Agreement, Mr. Alsop will be entittedexercise all of his outstanding stock
options, representing options to purchase a téthJ76,500 shares of our common stock, until adier of (a) the original expiration date for
each such option or (b) March 31, 2014.

We estimated the fair value of options and emplateek purchase plan shares granted in fiscal Y39, 2008 and 2007 on the measurel
dates using the Black-Scholes option valuation maita the following weighted average assumptions:

Year Ended November 3 200¢ 200¢ 2007
Stock Purchase Pla
Expected volatility 30.7% 23.2% 25.2%
Risk-free interest rat 0.8% 4.1% 4.€%
Expected life in year 2.1 1.3 1.3
Expected dividend yiel None None None
Stock Options
Expected volatility 26.% 24.% 26.5%
Risk-free interest rat 2.0% 2.9% 4.5%
Expected life in year 4.7 4.8 4.¢
Expected dividend yiel None None None

For each option award, the expected life in yeatsased on historical exercise patterns and pasingetermination behavior. Expected
volatility is based on historical volatility of ostock, and the risk-free interest rate is basetherJ.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at theetim
of grant. We do not currently pay cash dividend®oncommon stock and do not anticipate doing séhfe foreseeable future. Accordingly,
our expected dividend yield is zero.

For each stock purchase plan award, the expedtenh lyears is based on the period of time betwberbeginning of the offering period and
date of purchase, plus an additional holding peoidithree months. Expected volatility is based wmtdmical volatility of the company’s stock,
and the risk-free interest rate is based on the Tr&asury yield curve in effect at each purchaséog.

Based on the above assumptions, the weighted avesdignated fair value of options granted in figedrs 2009, 2008 and 2007 was $6.34,
$6.46 and $10.11 per share, respectively. We apedtttie estimated fair value of options to expenss the vesting period. The weighted
average estimated fair value for shares issuedriodel 991 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (ESPRdalfyears 2009, 2008 and 2007 was
$6.28, $7.24 and $7.04 per share, respectivelyaiartize the estimated fair value of shares issuelér the ESPP to expense over the vesting
period using a graded vesting model.
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Other reasonable assumptions about these factold pmvide different estimates of fair value. Fetehanges in stock price volatility, life of
options, interest rates and dividend practiceanyf, may require changes in our assumptions, wtochd materially affect the calculation of
fair value.

Total unrecognized stock-based compensation expaasef expected forfeitures, related to unvestedk options and unvested restricted
stock awards amounted to $23.9 million at Noven®@r2009. These costs are expected to be recogovagd weighted average period of
2.9 years.

During fiscal years 2009, 2008 and 2007 the follaywctivity occurred under our plans:

(In thousands

Year Ended November 3 200¢ 200¢ 2007
Total intrinsic value of stock options on date eissd $ 2,56¢ $ 14,46 $32,76’
Total fair value of DSUs on date vesi 69t 872
Total fair value of restricted stock awards on degstec 82 — 2,08:
Total fair value of restricted stock units on degsted 1,57¢ — —

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

The Employee Stock Purchase Plan (ESPP) perngiibleliemployees to purchase up to a maximum of (8D shares of our common stock
through accumulated payroll deductions. The ESRRaH27-month offering period comprised of nine ¢éhmeonth purchase periods. The
purchase price of the stock is equal to 85% ofekser of the market value of such shares at thmbi@g of a 27-month offering period or the
end of each thresronth segment within such offering period. If tharket price at any of the nine purchase periotisis than the market pri
on the first date of the 27-month offering periedbsequent to the purchase, the offering pericdnselled and the employee is entered into a
new 27-month offering period with the then curremarket price as the new base price. We issued 38&ares, 301,000 shares and 292,000
shares with weighted average purchase prices ol $1%$22.30 and $21.42 per share, respectivelisdéal years 2009, 2008 and 2007,
respectively. At November 30, 2009, approximateéd®,800 shares were available and reserved fornssuander the ESPP.

Note 9: Retirement Plan

We maintain a retirement plan covering all U.S. Eaypes under Section 401(k) of the Internal Reveboge. Company contributions to the
plan are at the discretion of the Board of Direst@nd totaled approximately $4.0 million, $5.2 railland $5.5 million for fiscal years 2009,
2008 and 2007, respectively.

Note 10: Income Taxes

The components of pretax income are as follows:

(In thousand:)

Year Ended November 3 200¢ 200¢ 2007
United State! $32,27¢ $49,46: $50,48:
Non-U.S. 18,90! 24,54¢ 14,56:

Total $51,18( $74,01( $ 65,04
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The provisions for income taxes are comprised effthiowing:

(In thousand:)

Year Ended November 3 200¢ 200¢ 2007
Current:
Federa $10,11¢ $20,13: $19,04¢
State 1,38: 1,63¢ 2,64¢
Foreign 7,29:% 9,90( 5,20:
Total current 18,79: 31,67( 26,89
Deferred:
Federa 1,94¢ (2,499 (2,896
State (36) (459) (21%
Foreign (2,279 (2,009 (1,016
Total deferrec (367) (3,956 (4,127%)
Total $18,42¢ $27,71¢ $22,767
The tax effects of significant items comprising deferred taxes are as follows:
(In thousands
November 30 200¢ 200¢
Deferred tax asset
Accounts receivabl $ 1,541 $ 1,911
Other current asse 1,11¢ 41C
Capitalized research cos 4,12: 5,54¢
Accrued compensatic 1,90: 2,80¢
Accrued liabilities and othe 9,45¢ 17,05¢
Deferred revenu 2,97¢ 1,061
Stoclk-based compensatic 12,97 9,60¢
Tax credit and loss carryforwar 40,58 34,79
Gross deferred tax assi 74,67( 73,19
Valuation allowanct (21,66%) (21,100
Total deferred tax asse 53,00: 52,091
Deferred tax liabilities
Goodwill (8,187 (4,414
Depreciation and amortizatic (3,195 (13,819
Total deferred tax liabilitie (11,376 (18,237)
Total $ 41,62¢ $ 33,85¢

The valuation allowance primarily applies to neeigting loss carryforwards, unutilized tax creditsl capital loss carryforwards in
jurisdictions or under conditions where realizatismot assured. The increase in the valuatiomaliee during fiscal 2009 and fiscal 2C
primarily related to either the creation or acdiosi of net operating loss carryforwards or exdasscredits.

At November 30, 2009, we have net operating losyfawards of $53.7 million expiring on varioustda through 2026 and $29.3 million that
may be carried forward indefinitely. At November, 2009, we have tax credit carryforwards of apprately $11.8 million expiring on
various dates through 2029 and $0.6 million thay v carried forward indefinitely.
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A reconciliation of the U.S. federal statutory raddhe effective tax rate is as follows:

Year Ended November 3 200¢ 200¢ 2007
Tax at U.S. federal statutory r¢ 35.(% 35.(% 35.(%
Foreign rate difference 2.7 1.7 1kt
State income taxes, n 1.7 1.7 2.4
Research credit (3.7 2.9 (2.€)
Tax-exempt interes (0.5 2.7 (4.6)
Nondeductible sto-based compensatic 5.2 3.2 3.3
Other 0.C 0.8 0.C
Total 36.(% 37.5% 35.%

The calculation of our tax liabilities involves dieg with uncertainties in the application of corapltax regulations in a multitude of
jurisdictions across our global operations. We geize potential liabilities and record tax liabdi for anticipated tax audit issues in the Un
States and other tax jurisdictions based on oimatt of whether, and the extent to which, addéldaxes will be due. We adjust these
reserves in light of changing facts and circumstanbowever, due to the complexity of some of thesertainties, the ultimate resolution n
result in a payment that is materially differerttrfr our current estimate of the tax liabilitiesoifr estimate of tax liabilities proves to be less
than the ultimate assessment, an additional ctiargepense would result. If payment of these amsultimately proves to be less than the
recorded amounts, the reversal of the liabiliti@sild result in income tax benefits being recognirethe period when we determine the
liabilities are no longer necessary.

A reconciliation of the balance of our unrecognitaxi benefits is as follows:

(In thousands

November 30 200¢ 200¢
Beginning balanc $ 4,78¢ $ 4,361
Tax position related to current ye — 32t
Settlements with tax authoriti (2,329 (1,119)
Tax positions acquire — 1,20¢
Lapses due to expiration of the statute of limitasi (180 —
Ending balanc $ 3,281 $ 4,78¢

We recognize interest and penalties related torteiogax positions as a component of our provid@rincome taxes. In fiscal years 2009 and
2008, we included $0.2 million and $0.5 millionspectively, of estimated interest and penaltiehénprovision for income taxes. We had
accrued $0.9 million of estimated interest and fiemsaat the end of each of November 30, 2009 amdelhber 30, 2008.

We have not provided for U.S. income taxes on thdistributed earnings of non-U.S. subsidiarieshase earnings have been permanently
reinvested or would be principally offset by foneigx credits. Cumulative undistributed foreignniags were approximately $31.5 million at
November 30, 200¢

During fiscal 2009, we settled our appeal with litternal Revenue Service related to audits forquerithrough fiscal 2005 with no material
impact to our consolidated financial statementateStaxing authorities are currently examining iooome tax returns for years through fiscal
2008. Our state income tax returns have been exahuinare closed by statute for all years pridisttal 2004, and we are no longer subject to
audit for those periods.

Tax authorities for certain non-U.S. jurisdicticare also examining returns affecting unrecogniagdenefits, none of which are material to
our balance sheet, cash flows or statements ofriecdVith some exceptions, we are generally no Ibagbject to tax examinations in nahS.
jurisdictions for years prior to fiscal 20C

We believe that we have adequately provided forreagonably foreseeable outcomes related to owrudits and that any settlement will not
have a material adverse effect on our consolidiwadicial position or results of operations. Howewkere can be no assurances as to the
possible outcomes.
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Note 11: Long-term Debt, Commitments and Contingeries
Long-term Debt

In connection with the purchase of a building adjgdo our headquarters building, we were requioegssume the existing mortgage under the
terms of the agreement. The mortgage, securedebdyuiiding, had a remaining principal balance o#%aillion with a fixed annual interest

rate of 8.05% at the time of the purchase. We repgy the entire outstanding balance at any timgestuto a potential penalty based on
interest rates in effect at that time. The finalpant is due in June 2012.

Future principal and interest payments are asvaio

(In thousands

Principa Interes

2010 $ 35¢ $ 69
2011 38¢ 39
2012 27¢€ 9
Total $ 1,02: $ 117

Leasing Arrangements

We lease certain facilities and equipment undercantelable operating lease arrangements. Futurienonin rental payments under these
leases are as follows at November 30, 2009:

(In thousands

2010 $16,09°
2011 12,43¢
2012 9,92
2013 5,751
2014 2,88:
Thereaftel 53t

Total $47,63:

Total rent expense, net of sub-rental income whidhsignificant, under operating lease arrangesess approximately $12.4 million,
$11.2 million and $11.5 million in fiscal years 20008 and 2007, respectively.

Guarantees and Indemnification Obligations

We include standard intellectual property indenm@ifion provisions in our licensing agreements edrdinary course of business. Pursuant to
our product license agreements, we will indemrtifyld harmless, and agree to reimburse the indeethifarty for losses suffered or incurred
by the indemnified party, generally business pasgtioe customers, in connection with certain pateopyright or other intellectual property
infringement claims by third parties with respexbur products. Other agreements with our custom@ngde indemnification for claims
relating to property damage or personal injury ttésy from the performance of services by us or swlscontractors. Historically, our costs to
defend lawsuits or settle claims relating to surtemnity agreements have been insignificant. Adogig, the estimated fair value of these
indemnification provisions is immaterial.

We are subject to various other legal proceedingscéaims, either asserted or unasserted, whiske @&ithe ordinary course of business. While
the outcome of these other claims cannot be petlieith certainty, management does not believetttembutcome of any of these other legal
matters will have a material adverse effect onamnsolidated financial position or results of opierss.
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Note 12: Business Segments and International Opeiahs

Operating segments as defined under GAAP are coempemf an enterprise about which discrete findmcfarmation is available and
regularly reviewed by the chief operating decigsioaker in deciding how to allocate resources andsasgerformance. We base our segment
information on a management approach which utilmasinternal reporting structure and we disclasesnue and operating income based t
internal accounting methods. Our chief operatingjsien maker is our Chief Executive Officer.

In fiscal 2009 we were organized in three busingsts which were reportable segments: (1) OpenBdbéesh includes the OpenEdge produ
(2) Enterprise Infrastructure, which includes thgafa, Sonic, Actional, Orbix and FUSE products; @)data Infrastructure, which includes
the DataDirect Connect, DataDirect Shadow, DataXtemd ObjectStore products. Our product lines gmersymous with our reportable
segments or business units.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2009, we reorgadiago three business units, which meet the cat segment reporting, for fiscal 2010:

(1) Application Development Platforms, which inchsdthe OpenEdge, Orbix and ObjectStore productEr{erprise Business Solutions,
which includes the Apama, Sonic, Progress Actiamal FUSE products; and (3) Enterprise Data Solstiaich includes the DataDirect
Connect, DataDirect Shadow, DataXtend and datacgsrplatform products. We will report our segmesiults under this structure in the first
quarter of fiscal 2010.

We do not manage our assets, capital expenditottes; income or provision for income taxes by segiri/e manage such items on a
consolidated company basis.

The following table provides revenue and incomenfi@perations from our reportable segments:

(In thousands

Year Ended November 3 200¢ 200¢ 2007
Revenue
OpenEdge segme $275,89! $331,42! $336,54.
Enterprise Infrastructure segme 128,17( 85,43( 59,56(
Data Infrastructure segme 92,74 101,40: 97,39¢
Reconciling item: (2,671 (2,696 —
Total $494,13' $515,56( $493,50(
Income (loss) from operation
OpenEdge segme $142,95! * *
Enterprise Infrastructure segme (28,942) * *
Data Infrastructure segme (4,655) * *
Reconciling item: (58,229 * *
Total $ 51,13: * *

* We did not include prior year comparisons facdme from operations as it is not practical téatesthe fiscal 2007 and 2008 data into the
fiscal 2009 structure or the fiscal 2009 data thfiscal 2007 and 2008 structu

The reconciling items within revenue represent pase accounting adjustments for deferred reveragedeto acquisitions, as such amounts
are not deducted from internal measurements of sagmvenue. Amounts included under reconcilingngavithin income from operations
represent amortization of acquired intangiblesslsisased compensation, restructuring and acquisigtated expenses, purchase accounting
adjustments for deferred revenue and certain uretha administrative expenses.

Our revenues are derived from licensing our pragjuanid from related services, which consist of teaiance and consulting and education.
Information relating to revenue from external cas¢os by revenue type is as follows:

(In thousands

Year Ended November 3 200¢ 200¢ 2007
Software license $175,56¢ $192,21° $187,08(
Maintenance 279,13¢ 272,53: 252,56:
Consulting and educatic 39,43: 50,81 53,85¢

Total $494,13° $515,56( $493,50(




Table of Contents

In the following table, revenue attributed to No#thnerica includes shipments to customers in theddinstates and Canada and licensing to
certain multinational organizations. Revenue fromndpe, Middle East and Africa (EMEA), Latin Ameriaad Asia Pacific includes shipments
to customers in each region, not including cenairtinational organizations, plus export shipments each region that are billed from the
United States. Information relating to revenue frexternal customers from different geographicaaaiie as follows:

(In thousands

Year Ended November 3 200¢ 200¢ 2007
North America $221,17: $216,57- $211,78:
EMEA 208,00: 234,03° 225,16¢
Latin America 33,88¢ 32,90: 29,15¢
Asia Pacific 31,07¢ 32,047 27,39¢

Total $494,13° $515,56( $493,50(

Revenue from the United Kingdom totaled $57.9 willi$68.8 million and $72.0 million for fiscal ysa2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively. No
other country outside of the United States accalifitemore than 10% of our consolidated total rexeim any year presented. Long-lived
assets totaled $55.3 million, $60.4 million and 26@illion in the United States and $9.7 millio8.& million and $10.6 million outside of the
United States at the end of fiscal years 2009, 20@B2007, respectively. No individual country édgsof the United States accounted for i
than 10% of our consolidated long-lived assets g-lived assets exclude goodwill and intangible &ssehich are not allocated to specific
geographies as it is impracticable to do so.

Note 13: Business Combinations

On January 8, 2010, we acquired all of the equitgrests in Savvion, Inc., a privately-held compdayan aggregate purchase price of
approximately $49 million, net of cash acquiredn8an is a provider of business process managesuwdtware. The Savvion product lines v
become part of our Enterprise Business Solutios#less unit. The acquisition will be accountedd®ml purchase, and accordingly, the results
of operations of Savvion will be included in oureoating results from the date of acquisition. Thechase price was paid in cash from
available funds.

Fiscal 2008 Transactions:

. On February 5, 2008, we acquired, through a w-owned subsidiary, the stock of Xcalia SA (Xcalia) & cash payment
$4.9 million, net of cash acquired. Xcalia is adierin providing data access and integration forise oriented architectures. The
purpose of the acquisition was to expand the proffierings within the Data Infrastructure prodline. We accounted for the
acquisition as a purchase, and accordingly, weided the results of operations of Xcalia in ourrafirg results from February 5,
2008, the date of acquisition. In addition, we pdiigct transaction costs related to this acqoisitf $0.9 million. We paid the
purchase price in cash from available fur

. On June 13, 2008, we acquired substantially athefassets and assumed certain liabilities of Miefiiinc. (Mindreef) for a cas
payment of $6.0 million, net of cash acquired. Mawf develops and sells quality assurance andatadiu solutions for SOA
deployments. The purpose of the acquisition wapand the capabilities of our Actional product getich is included in our
Enterprise Infrastructure product line. We accodrite the acquisition as a purchase, and accorgimgt included the results of
operations of Mindreef in our operating resultsrirdune 13, 2008, the date of acquisition. In aoldjtive paid direct transaction
costs related to this acquisition of $0.2 millid¥e paid the purchase price in cash from availalohel$.

. On September 12, 2008, we completed the acquisifit®@NA Technologies PLC (IONA) for $4.05 per shan cash, representi
a cash payment of approximately $125.1 million,afetash acquired. IONA is a provider of SOA infrasture products and
services. The purpose of the acquisition was tad®a our Enterprise Infrastructure product line. deounted for the acquisition
as a purchase and accordingly, we included thedtsesiuoperations of IONA in our operating resdttam September 12, 2008, the
date of acquisition. In addition, we paid direarsaction costs related to this acquisition of $3illon. We paid the purchase price
in cash from available fund
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The final allocation of the purchase prices, oraggregate basis, was as follows:

(In thousandy)

Total
Cash and shc-term investment $ 28,56
Accounts receivabl 5,62¢
Property and equipme 1,77¢
Investments in auction rate securit 17,00(
Deferred tax asse 4,94¢
Other asset 3,437
Acquired intangible assets (assigned lives of 8 years, 77,12(
Goodwill (tax deductible 2,051
Goodwill (not deductible for tax purpose 67,78¢
Accounts payable and other liabiliti (32,36¢)
Deferred revenu (9,120
Total 166,81
Less: cash acquire (26,536
Net cash pail $140,28:

The value of the intangible assets acquired asgbaine acquisition of IONA was $52.2 million fougghased technology and $16.9 million for
customer-related and other intangibles with a weidtaverage amortization period of 7.3 years a@d¢&ars for each class of intangible assets,
respectively. The value of goodwill (not deductifide tax purposes) associated with the acquisiibiONA was $63.4 million.

The following table sets forth supplemental, unsgedlpro forma financial information that assumessahquisition of IONA was completed at
the beginning of each pro forma period presentée.imformation for the twelve months ended Novengi:r2008 includes our historical
results for fiscal 2008 and the historical resaftfONA for the nine-month period ended June 3@M&@ue to different fiscal period ends. The
information for the twelve months ended NovemberZ®7 includes our historical results for fisc@&DZ and the historical results of IONA for
the twelve-month period ended September 30, 2007 ta different fiscal periods.

The unaudited pro forma results include estimatesassumptions regarding increased amortizationtangible assets related to the
acquisition, decreased interest income relateést paid for the purchase price of the acquisaiot the related tax effects, which we believe
are reasonable. However, pro forma results areexgssarily indicative of the results that wouldéhaccurred if the acquisitions had occurred
on the date indicated, or that may result in therki

(In thousands, except per share data, unaudi

Year Ended November 3 200¢ 2007
Pro forma revenu $567,54¢ $575,85:
Pro forma net incom 27,38¢ 33,11¢
Pro forma diluted earnings per sh 0.64 0.7t

We have not included financial information for Xieahnd Mindreef in the pro forma results as théohisal operations were not significant to
our consolidated financial statements either irdligily or in the aggregate.
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In connection with certain of the above acquissione established reserves for exit costs relatéalilities closures and related costs and
employee severance included as part of the purgiticeeallocation. The amounts included under aisbursements are net of proceeds
received from sublease agreements. A summary witgds as follows:

(In thousands

Facilities Closure Employee Severan

and Related Cos And Related Benefi Total
Balance, December 1, 20 $ 1,56¢ — $ 156¢
Reversal of previously established rese (365) — (365)
Cash disbursemen (86%) — (863)
Balance, November 30, 20 33¢ — 33¢€
Establishment of reserve related to 10! 7,617 $ 3,17z 10,78¢
Cash disbursemen (560 (1,98%) (2,547
Balance, November 30, 20! 7,39: 1,18¢ 8,57¢
Adjustment to previously established rese 201 — 201
Cash disbursemen (2,475 (2,185 (3,660
Other 70C — 70C
Balance, November 30, 20! $ 581¢ $ —  $5,81¢

Adjustments to reserves have been recorded dusatmes in estimates related to facilities relatgbrses. The amounts included in the Other
category represent rent accretion and foreign nayréranslation adjustments. The balance of thititfes closures and related costs is expected
to be paid over a period of time ending in 2013.

For the restructuring reserve described aboveltbg-serm portion is included in other accrued ilitibs and the long-term portion is included
in other non-current liabilities on the balanceett® November 30, 2009.

Note 14: Restructuring Charge
Q1 2009 Restructuring Plan

During the first quarter of fiscal 2009, our managat approved, committed to and initiated planestructure and improve efficiencies in our
operations as a result of certain management ayjahi@ational changes and recent acquisitions. dtaé éxpected costs associated with the
restructuring aggregated to $5.2 million, of wh&h0 million remained to be paid at November 3@20hese costs primarily related to
employee severance and facilities related expeaselsywere recorded to the restructuring expensdtiém within our consolidated statements
of income. The excess facilities and other cogisagent termination costs of automobile leasesrigployees that have been terminated and
excess facilities costs for unused space. As destin Note 12, restructuring charges are not atextto segments, but managed on a
consolidated company basis.

Q4 2008 Restructuring Plan

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008, our mas@gnt approved, committed to and initiated planestructure and improve efficiencies in
our operations as a result of certain managemehbeganizational changes and recent acquisitions.tdtal expected costs associated witt
restructuring aggregated to $6.6 million, of wh@h1 million remained to be paid at November 3@20hese costs primarily related to
employee severance and facilities related expeasesywere recorded to the restructuring expensdtém within our consolidated statements
of income. The excess facilities and other cogisasent termination costs of automobile leasesrigsloyees that have been terminated and
excess facilities costs for unused space.
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A summary of the combined activity for the aboventimned restructuring actions is as follows:

(In thousands

Excess Facilitie

Employee Severan

and Other Cos and Related Benef Total
Balance, December 1, 20 $ — $ — $ —
Establishment of reserve related to restructu 67€ 6,23¢ 6,91¢
Cash disbursemen — (748 (748
Balance, November 30, 20! 67€ 5,491 6,167
Establishment of reserve related to Q1 2009 retsirung 394 5,28( 5,674
Adjustments to reserve related to Q4 2008 restring (35€) 10z (259)
Adjustments to reserve related to Q1 2009 restringj 83 (28¢) (205)
Cash disbursements related to Q4 2008 restruct (271) (5,80¢) (6,079
Cash disbursements related to Q1 2009 restruct (160) (4,957%) (5,119
Translation adjustmen 6 432 43¢
Balance, November 30, 20! $ 372 $ 252 $ 624

Adjustments to reserves have been recorded dusattges in estimates related to employee severawckeilities related expenses, and were
recorded to the restructuring expense line iterhiwibur consolidated statements of income. Thenoal@f the employee severance and relatec
benefits will be paid in fiscal 2010. The balané¢he excess facilities and related costs is exguktd be paid over a period of time ending in

fiscal 2010.

In December 2009, we announced a series of iméiatio better position us for long-term growth angroved profitability. To execute these
initiatives, we announced that we are restructuongsales, development and marketing organizatisnsell as other functions to better
optimize operations and to improve productivity &fiiciency. As a result, during the first quartdifiscal 2010, we will reduce our global
workforce by approximately 230 to 260 positionqresenting approximately 13 to 14 percent of oabgl workforce. This workforce
reduction is from substantially all functional unénd across all geographies in which we operateal® also consolidating offices in various
locations, including our offices in Nashua, New Heimire and Dublin, Ireland during the first quaéfiscal 2010. As a result of these
workforce reductions and office consolidations,auerently expect to incur in the aggregate a pxectarge in the range of approximately
$19 million to $23 million. The estimated aggregel@rge consists of approximately $14 million t® $dillion relating to our global workfort
reduction, consisting primarily of severance andtfmployment benefits, and approximately $5 millielating to our office consolidations.
We expect to record this charge primarily in thietfquarter of fiscal 2010. Substantially all asthharge will result in cash expenditures.

Note 15: Selected Quarterly Financial Data (unaudéd)

(In thousands, except per share d)

First Secon Third Fourtr
Quarte Quarte Quarte Quarte

2009:
Revenue $120,86( $117,04° $119,43: $136,79°
Gross profil 96,48: 94,45: 96,907 113,09:
Income from operation 4,71¢ 11,54: 9,09z 25,78(
Net income 3,652 6,90¢ 5,521 16,67¢
Diluted earnings per sha 0.0¢ 0.17 0.1z 0.4C
Basic earnings per she 0.0¢ 0.17 0.14 0.41

2008:
Revenue $121,56° $127,94: $126,62( $139,43:
Gross profil 98,951 105,24¢ 103,88t 115,58
Income from operation 17,14¢ 20,60¢ 18,10% 8,52¢
Net income 12,83¢ 14,47 12,53 6,452
Diluted earnings per sha 0.2¢ 0.3¢ 0.3C 0.1¢
Basic earnings per she 0.3( 0.3 0.31 0.1€

53




Table of Contents

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountason Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
(a) Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedure

Our management maintains disclosure controls ancegures as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-LiG¢er the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”) that asghed to provide reasonable assurance that iafamrequired to be disclosed in our
reports filed or submitted under the Exchange Agrbcessed, recorded, summarized and reportethwlitime periods specified in the
SEC's rules and forms, and that such informaticeccisumulated and communicated to our managemehiding our Chief Executive Officer
and Chief Financial Officer (our principal execwtigfficer and principal financial officer, respegly), as appropriate, to allow for timely
decisions regarding required disclosure.

Our management, including the chief executive effiand the chief financial officer, carried outesaluation of the effectiveness of our
disclosure controls and procedures as of the etttegberiod covered by this report. Based on thiduation, our chief executive officer and
chief financial officer concluded that our discloseontrols and procedures were effective to enthatethe information required to be
disclosed in the reports filed or submitted by ndar the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 was rexhyrgrocessed, summarized and reported
within the requisite time periods.

In connection with our review of our second quafisral 2009 financial results, we determined thiatdid not have adequate operation of
internal controls to ensure the accurate and camplecumulation of information used to report ttzesnent of cash flows on a timely basis.
We believe that the design of the existing finahcliese and reporting review controls in place wdsquate, but more specific review
procedures intended to identify errors in the @a@umulation process did not operate effectivelictvinesulted in the material weakness. Due
to such factors, we do not believe that the mdterakness existed prior to the second quarteiscéf 2009. As a result of this material
weakness, an error was identified after finaneitdrimation was reported in our fiscal second quatess release, but was corrected prior to
filing our Form 10-Q for the three month period eddMay 31, 2009.

The error resulted in a reclassification of amouaforted as net cash provided by operating aetviaf $12.9 million, and an increase in the
net cash provided by investing activities and an®ueported related to the effect of exchangecah#mges on cash by an aggregate offsetting
amount. The error did not impact our total cash egquivalents as of any reported date or the tétahges in cash and equivalents for the
period.

During the third quarter of fiscal 2009, we enaated remediation plan. In order to ensure thatréwveew controls operate as designed, we
implemented various enhancements to the existivigwecontrol structure to remediate the materiahkess. Such enhancements ensure that
the review procedures around data accumulationpeeating effectively and included improving inteficommunication and additional cross
checking and data validation via a reconciliatipreadsheet.

As of November 30, 2009 we have gathered sufficeidence, based upon the frequency and timingebperation of these review
enhancements, to provide us with reasonable agmiragarding the reliability of the data used in@ash flow and a more detailed overall
review of our financial statements. Based on thicsent evidence gathered, Management considersrtaterial weakness surrounding the
accurate and complete accumulation of informatieeduo report the statement of cash flows on alyitvesis remediated as of November 30,
2009.

(b) Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The management of Progress Software Corporatiesfgonsible for establishing and maintaining adegurernal control over financial
reporting, as such term is defined in ExchangeRdes 13a-15(f). Because of its inherent limitagicinternal control over financial reporting
may not prevent or detect misstatements. Our iatexntrol system was designed to provide reaseraggurance to our management and
board of directors regarding the preparation airdpf@sentation of published financial statements.

Our management assessed the effectiveness ofteumahcontrol over financial reporting as of Nou®n 30, 2009. In making this assessment,
we used the criteria set forth by the Committe8mdnsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commis€dSO) in Internal Control—
Integrated Framework. Based on our assessmentliegdénhat, as of November 30, 2009, our intermaitml over financial reporting is
effective based on those criteria.
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The effectiveness of our internal control over fioi@al reporting as of November 30, 2009 has beelitediby Deloitte & Touche LLP, an
independent registered public accounting firm,taged in their report which is included herein.

(d) Changes in internal control over financial repating

No changes in our internal control over financegaorting occurred during the quarter ended NoverBBeP009 that have materially affect
or are reasonably likely to materially affect, @uternal control over financial reporting.

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Progress Software Corporation
Bedford, MA

We have audited the internal control over finansgplorting of Progress Software Corporation andlidries (the “Company”) as of
November 30, 2009 based on criteria establishdnternal Control — Integrated Frameworksued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Camsamanagement is responsible for maintaining effedtiternal control over financi
reporting and for its assessment of the effectigsrmd internal control over financial reportingclided in the accompanyindanagement’s
Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financialgeting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on@wenmpanys internal control ove
financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stededof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti@iq@nited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to sbteasonable assurance about whether effectivenaiteontrol over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Our auditudeld obtaining an understanding of internal corgvar financial reporting, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, testing and etiaguthe design and operating effectiveness ofiiraiecontrol based on the assessed risk, and
performing such other procedures as we consideredssary in the circumstances. We believe thadwdit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed by, or under the supenvidi the company’s principal executive
and principal financial officers, or persons pemigrg similar functions, and effected by the compatypard of directors, management, and
other personnel to provide reasonable assuraneediag the reliability of financial reporting anltket preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generallymedeaccounting principles. A company’s internaitcol over financial reporting includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertaihearaintenance of records that, in reasonablel dataurately and fairly reflect the transacti
and dispositions of the assets of the companypr@jide reasonable assurance that transactione@reded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with gengmaadcepted accounting principles, and that receiptsexpenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of ngangent and directors of the company; and (3) pewésonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized astjion, use, or disposition of the company’s assleat could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internaltcohover financial reporting, including the positl of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements duertor or fraud may not be prevented or detected timely basis. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the effectiveness of the internaltoarover financial reporting to future periods atebject to the risk that the controls may
become inadequate because of changes in conditibtigt the degree of compliance with the policeprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all mialerespects, effective internal control over figal reporting as of November 30, 2009
based on the criteria establishedriternal Control — Integrated Framewoissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrike
Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stasdz the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@nited States), the consolidated
financial statements of the Company as of andheryear ended November 30, 2009 and our reportl dateuary 29, 2010 expressed an
unqualified opinion on those financial statements.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
Boston, Massachusetts
January 29, 2010
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Item 9B. Other Information

None.

PART IlI

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corpora¢ Governance

The information required by this Item 10 is incorgted by reference to our definitive Proxy Statenfenthe Annual Meeting of Shareholders
to be held on April 27, 2010, which will be filedttvthe Securities and Exchange Commission (SECater than 120 days after
November 30, 200¢

The following information is provided with respeaotthe members of our Board of Directors.

Barry N. Bycoff
Executive Chairman
Progress Software Corporation

Ram Gupta
Former President and Chief Executive Officer
CAST Iron Systems, Inc.

Charles F. Kane
President and Chief Operating Officer
One Laptop Per Child

David A. Krall
Executive Chairman
QSecure, Inc.

Michael L. Mark
Lead Independent Director
Progress Software Corporation

Richard D. Reidy
President and Chief Executive Officer
Progress Software Corporation

The following table sets forth certain informatim@garding our executive officers.

Name Age Position

Barry R. Bycoff 61 Executive Chairman of the Boa

Richard D. Reidy 50 President and Chief Executive Officer and Dire:

Joseph A. Andrew 53 Vice President, Human Resour¢

John Bate: 39 Chief Technology Officer and Head of Corporate Depment
David A. Bensor 5C Senior Vice President and Chief Information Offi

Gary G. Conwa 56 Senior Vice President and Chief Marketing Offi

James D. Freedm: 61 Senior Vice President and General Coul

John P. Goodsa 45 Vice President and General Manager, Enterprise Balations
David G. Irelanc 63 Executive Vice President and General Manager, Appbn Development Platforn
Christopher Larse 51 Senior Vice President, Global Field Operati

Norman R. Robertso 61 Senior Vice President, Finance and Administratiod @hief Financial Office

Kenneth W. Rug 45 Vice President and General Manager, Enterpriser@gsi Solution

Mr. Bycoff became our Executive Chairman in Mar€l®2 and has been a director since March 2007. Magn2005 to July 2007, Mr. Bycc
was a venture partner of Pequot Ventures, the vewctpital arm of Pequot Capital Management, Ind.feom July 1996 to November 2004,
Mr. Bycoff was Chairman and CEO of Netegrity, Inc.

Mr. Reidy has been President and Chief Executife€@fsince March 2009. Prior to that time, Mr. Reivas Chief Operating Officer from
September 2008 to March 2009. Prior to that tineewhs Executive Vice President, a positior
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assumed in December 2007. Prior to December 200 7R#dy was President, DataDirect Technologieddiin. Mr. Reidy joined us in 1985.
Mr. Andrews has been Vice President, Human Resegioee he joined us in February 1997.

Dr. Bates has been Chief Technology Officer anddH#eCorporate Development since December 2008r Ryithat time, Dr. Bates was Vice
President and General Manager, Apama Division flaly 2007 to November 2009. Prior to that timewaes Vice President, Apama Products.
Dr. Bates co-founded Apama Limited, a predecessmpany acquired by Progress, in 1995.

Mr. Benson joined us in June 2009 as Senior ViesiBent and Chief Information Officer. Prior torjmig us, Mr. Benson served as Senior
Vice President, Chief Information Officer for NeWsrporation, a diversified media and entertainnoempany, from May 2003 to
August 2008.

Mr. Conway joined us in November 2008 as Senioe\Reesident and Chief Marketing Officer. Priordamjng us, Mr. Conway was Senior
Vice President, Marketing at SprintNextel, Inc.fwivhom he was employed from 2004 until August 2006

Mr. Freedman has been Senior Vice President anér@eBounsel since August 2004. Prior to that tireewas Vice President and General
Counsel. Mr. Freedman joined us in 1992.

Mr. Goodson has been a Vice President and Genexahlyer since December 2007. In his current capadityGoodson is responsible for our
Enterprise Data Solutions business unit. Prior éaénber 2007, Mr. Goodson was Vice President, Rtddperations, for DataDirect
Technologies Division. Mr. Goodson joined DataDir€echnologies Limited, a predecessor company aeduliy Progress, in 1992.

Mr. Ireland has been Executive Vice President sibeeember 2007. In his current capacity, he isamsible for our Application Development
Platform business unit. Prior to December 2007, Itand was President, Progress OpenEdge Divisilbnlreland joined us in 1997.

Mr. Larsen joined us in September 2009 as Senioe Yiresident, Global Field Operations. Prior toifa us, Mr. Larsen served as President
and Chief Operating Officer of Allegro Developmeatprovider of energy trading risk management saféwfrom January 2008 until
January 2009. Prior to that time, Mr. Larsen wasdtitive Vice President of Global Field OperationICO Software, an enterprise softw
company, from September 2003 to April 2007.

Mr. Robertson has been Senior Vice President, Emand Administration and Chief Financial Officerce 2000. Mr. Robertson joined us in
1996.

Mr. Rugg has been a Vice President and General §arsance December 2007. In his current capacity Rdgg is responsible for the
Enterprise Business Solutions business unit. Rsi@ecember 2007, Mr. Rugg was Vice President, lzbDevelopment for the ObjectStore
and Real Time divisions. Prior to that time, Mr.ggyoined eXcelon Corporation, a predecessor cognpaquired by Progress, in 1992.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this Item 11 is incorqed by reference to our definitive Proxy Statenfienthe Annual Meeting of Shareholders
to be held on April 27, 2010, which will be filedtivthe SEC not later than 120 days after Noven3i6e2009.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial @vners and Management

The information required by this Item 12 is incorqed by reference to our definitive Proxy Statenfienthe Annual Meeting of Shareholders
to be held on April 27, 2010, which will be filedttvthe SEC not later than 120 days after Noven38e2009.
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Information related to securities authorized feumsnce under equity compensation plans as of Noge8th 2009 is as follows:

(In thousands, except per share data)

Number o Weightec-averag  Number o

Securities to k Exercist Securitie

Issued Upo Price o Remaining

Exercise ¢ Outstandin Available

Outstandin Options For

Options, Warran Warrant: Future

Plan Categorn and Right and Right Issuanc
Equity compensation plans approved by shareho(d¢ 737:(2) % 23.11 1,01¢3)

Equity compensation plans not approved by sharehs|@) 2,73 22.9¢ 84¢

Total 10,10¢ $ 23.0i 1,86

(1) Consists of the 1992 Incentive and Nonquedifstock Option Plan, 1994 Stock Incentive Pla®,718tock Incentive Plan, 2008 Stock
Option and Incentive Plan and 1991 Employee Stagkhse Plan (ESPF

(2) Does not include purchase rights accruing undeE®IEP because the purchase price (and therefoneithieer of shares to be purchas
will not be determined until the end of the purehasriod.

(3) Includes 590,000 shares available for future isseamder the ESPI
(4) Consists of the 2002 Nonqualified Stock Plan ard2®04 Inducement Plan described bel

We have adopted two equity compensation plan2@0 Nonqualified Stock Plan (2002 Plan) and the42@ducement Stock Plan (2004
Plan), for which the approval of shareholders watsrequired. We intend that the 2004 Plan be reskfor persons to whom we may issue
securities as an inducement to become employed Ipyitsuant to the rules and regulations of the NAQOlobal Select Market. Executive
officers and members of the Board of Directorsrareeligible for awards under the 2002 Plan. Anceige officer or director would be
eligible to receive an award under the 2004 Pldy as an inducement to join us. Awards under thg22Plan and the 2004 Plan may include
nonqualified stock options, grants of condition&ztk, unrestricted grants of stock, grants of stwahtingent upon the attainment of
performance goals and stock appreciation rightsta of 7,500,000 shares are issuable under theptans.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transa@ins, and Director Independence
The information required by this Item 13 is incomgted by reference to our definitive Proxy Statenfienthe Annual Meeting of Shareholders
to be held on April 27, 2010, which will be filedtitvthe SEC not later than 120 days after Noven3i6e2009.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information required by this Item 14 is incorqed by reference to our definitive Proxy Statenfienthe Annual Meeting of Shareholders
to be held on April 27, 2010, which will be filedtitvthe SEC not later than 120 days after Noven3i6e2009.

PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules
(a) Documents Filed as Part of this Annual Reportmm Form 10-K

1. Financial Statements (included in Item 8 of thimAal Report on Form -K):

Report of Independent Registered Public Accourf&imm
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of November 30, 200200¢
Consolidated Statements of Income for the yearghgridovember 30, 2009, 2008 and 2(

Consolidated Statements of Sharehol' Equity for the years ending November 30, 2009, 2808 2007
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—  Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yerading November 30, 2009, 2008 and 2
—  Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme
2. Financial Statement Schedu
Financial statement schedules are omitted as tteegither not required or the information is othisenincluded in the consolidated financial
statements.
(b) Exhibits

Documents listed below, except for documents folldwy parenthetical numbers, are being filed agh@gshDocuments followed by
parenthetical numbers are not being filed herewatfitti, pursuant to Rule 12b-32 of the General RuldsRegulations promulgated by the SEC
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the Aeference is made to such documents as previfilestyas exhibits with the SEC. Our file
number under the Act is 0-19417.

2.2 Implementation Agreement, dated as of Jun@@38, by and among IONA Technologies PLC, SPKugitjons Limited and, with
respect to Section 7.4 and Section 7.7 only, PesgB®ftware Corporation (

3.1 Restated Articles of Organization, as amende
3.2 By-Laws, as amended and restated
4.1 Specimen certificate for the Common Stock

10.1* 1992 Incentive and Nonqualified Stock Option F

10.2* 1994 Stock Incentive Ple

10.3* 1997 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended and redfa

10.4* Employee Retention and Motivation Agreement as aladrand restated, executed by each of the ExedDffieers (6)
10.5* 2002 Nonqualified Stock Plan, as amended and ess(&)

10.6* 2004 Inducement Stock Plan, as amended and re¢&

10.7* Progress Software Corporation 1991 Employee Stockhase Plan, as amended and restate

10.8* Progress Software Corporation 2008 Stock Optionlacentive Plan (10

10.9* Form of Notice of Grant of Stock OptiongdaBrant Agreement under the Progress Software Catipa 2008 Stock Incentive Plan
(11)

10.10*  Progress Software Corporation Corporate ExecutiveuB Plan (12
10.11*  Progress Software Corporation 2009 Fiscal YeardiwreCompensation Program, as amended
10.13*  Form of Deferred Stock Unit Agreement under thegRess Software Corporation 2008 Stock Incentive Pld)

10.14* Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreemér Non-Employee Directors under the Progredtw#me Corporation 2008 Stock
Incentive Plan (Initial Grant) (1t

10.15*  Form of Nor-Qualified Stock Option Agreement for N-Employee Directors under the Progress Software @atjpn 2008 Stoc
Incentive Plan (Annual Grant) (1

10.16.1° Employment Letter Agreement, dated May 12, 2@99%and between Progress Software Corporation any Ba Bycoff regarding
the terms of Mr. Bycofs employment as Executive Chairman of the Boaidi#ctors of Progress Software Corporation (

10.16.2° Letter Agreement, dated January 15, 2010, by atwldem Progress Software Corporation and Barry MoByegarding the
extension of Mr. Bycofs employment as Executive Chairman of the Boaidictors of Progress Software Corporat

10.17*  Employment Letter, dated as of May 12, 2009, betw®gress Software Corporation and Richard D. yR¢ifl)
10.18* Amended and Restated Employee Retentidrviotivation Agreement, dated as of October 1320y and between Progress
Software Corporation and Richard D. Reidy (
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10.19* Severance Agreement, dated as of October 13, P@d®een Progress Software Corporation and RichaRiditly (20)
10.20* Separation Agreement, dated as of June 30, 2008ebr Progress Software Corporation and Josephl¥8pA21)
10.21* Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement under thegRess Software Corporation 2008 Stock Incentiea

21.1 List of Subsidiaries of the Registre

23.1 Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP, Independent Regexd Public Accounting Firr

31.1 Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of the Saek-Oxley Act of 200z- Richard D. Reidy

31.2 Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of the Saek-Oxley Act of 2002- Norman R. Robertsa

32.1 Certification Pursuant to Section 906 of the Saek-Oxley Act of 200z

(1) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 of For-K filed June 26, 200¢

(2) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of For-K filed May 1, 2006

(3) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of For-K filed September 22, 200

(4) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of For-K filed May 1, 2006

(5) Incorporated by reference to Appendix B to ourmiéifie Proxy Statement filed March 27, 201

(6) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of For-K filed January 6, 200¢

(7) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 of oumAal Report on Form -K for the year ended November 30, 20
(8) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 of ounAal Report on Form -K for the year ended November 30, 20
(9) Incorporated by reference to Appendix A to our kigiffe Proxy Statement filed April 10, 20C

(10) Incorporated by reference to Appendix A to our wigifre Proxy Statement filed March 24, 20!

(11) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of For-K filed on April 28, 2008

(12) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to ouaerly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended May 31, 20
(13) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to ouaferly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended May 31, 20
(14) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 of For-K filed on April 28, 200¢

(15) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of For-K filed on April 28, 2008

(16) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of For-K filed on April 28, 2008

(17) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.21 to ouaerly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended May 31, 20
(18) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.22 to ouaferly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended May 31, 20
(19) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of For-K/A filed on October 19, 200¢

(20) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of For-K/A filed on October 19, 200¢

(21) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to ouaf@erly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended August 30, 20
* Management contract or compensatory plan or armaggein which an executive officer or director @@ participate

(c) Financial Statement Schedules

All schedules are omitted because they are notagtydé or the required information is shown onfihancial statements or notes thereto.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereduolp authorized, on the 29th day of January, 2010.
PROGRESS SOFTWARE CORPORATIC

By: /sl RICHARD D. REIDY

Richard D. Reidy
President and Chief Executive Offic

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xga Act of 1934, this report has been signed belpthe following persons on behalf of 1
registrant and in the capacities and on the datisated.

Signature Title Date
/s RICHARD D. REIDY President, Chief Executive Officer and Direc January 29, 201
Richard D. Reidy (Principal Executive Officer)
/sl NORMAN R. ROBERTSO! Senior Vice President, Finance ¢ January 29, 201
Norman R. Robertson Administration and Chief Financi

Officer (Principal Financial Officel

/s/ DAVID H. BENTON, JR Vice President and Corporate Contro January 29, 201
David H. Benton, Ji (Principal Accounting Officer)

/s/ BARRY N. BYCOFF Executive Chairman of the Boa January 29, 201
Barry N. Bycoff

/sl RAM GUPTA Director January 29, 201

Ram Gupt:

/s CHARLES F. KANE Director January 29, 201
Charles F. Kan

/s/ DAVID A .KRALL Director January 29, 201
David A. Krall

/s| MICHAEL L. MARK Director January 29, 201

Michael L. Mark
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Exhibit 10.1

PROGRESS SOFTWARE CORPORATION
1992 INCENTIVE AND NONQUALIFIED STOCK OPTION PLAN

SECTION 1. PURPOSE

This 1992 Incentive and Nonqualified Stocki@ptPlan (the “Plan”) of Progress Software Corpiorgta Massachusetts corporation (the
“Company”), is designed to provide additional intvea to executives and other key employees of the@any, its parent and subsidiaries. The
Company intends that this purpose will be effedtgdhe granting of incentive stock options (“IndeatStock Options”) as defined in
Section 422 of the Internal Revenue Code of 198@&naended (the “Code”), and nonqualified stockanti(“Nonqualified Options”under the
Plan which afford such executives and key emplogeespportunity to acquire or increase their pretary interest in the Company through
acquisition of shares of its Common Stock. The Camygntends that Incentive Stock Options issueceutite Plan will qualify as “incentive
stock options” as defined in Section 422 of the €add the terms of the Plan shall be interpretedaordance with this intention. The terms
“parent” and “subsidiary” shall have the respectiveanings set forth in Section 425 of the Code.




SECTION 2. ADMINISTRATION

2.1 The Plan shall be administered by a Cotemithe “Committee”) consisting of at least twomnters of the Company’s Board of
Directors (the “Board”)None of the members of the Committee shall be ficevfor other employee of the Company, and nordl slave bee
granted any incentive stock option or nonqualifiption under this Plan or any other stock optianpdf the Company within one year prior to
service on the Committee. It is the intention & @ompany that the Plan shall be administered pjritgrested personstithin the meaning ¢
Rule 16b-3 under the Securities Exchange Act 04188t the authority and validity of any act takemot taken by the Committee shall not be
affected if any person administering the Plan isandisinterested person. Except as specificaligmeed to the Board under the terms of the
Plan, the Committee shall have full and final autlydo operate, manage and administer the Plabpetwalf of the Company. Action by the
Committee shall require the affirmative vote of ajomity of all members thereof.

2.2 Subject to the terms and conditions ofRten, the Committee shall have the power:
(a) To determine from time to time the perseligible to receive options and the options t@lkented to such persons under the Plan and
to prescribe the terms,
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conditions, restrictions, if any, and provisionsh{@h need not be identical) of each option granteder the Plan to such persons;

(b) To construe and interpret the Plan andbaptgranted thereunder and to establish, amenidiesmoke rules and regulations for
administration of the Plan. In this connection, @@nmittee may correct any defect or supply anyssion, or reconcile any inconsistency
in the Plan, or in any option agreement, in the meamand to the extent it shall deem necessarymedignt to make the Plan fully effective.
All decisions and determinations by the Committethie exercise of this power shall be final andilsig upon the Company and optionees;

(c) To make, in its sole discretion, any df thllowing changes to any outstanding option grdninder the Plan: (i) to reduce the exel
price, (ii) to accelerate the vesting scheduldipnt¢ extend the expiration date; and

(d) Generally, to exercise such powers amketéorm such acts as are deemed necessary or erpaalpromote the best interests of the
Company with respect to the Plan.

SECTION 3. STOCK

3.1 The stock subject to the options grantedkuthe Plan shall be shares of the Compaythorized but unissued common stock, or s
of the Company’s common stock held in treasury,
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5.01 par value (the “Common StockThe total number of shares that may be issued potsa options granted under the Plan shall no¢ed
an aggregate of 1,000,000 shares of Common Stockided, however, that the class and aggregate auoflshares which may be subject to
options granted under the Plan shall be subjestijiostment as provided in Section 8 hereof.

3.2 Whenever any outstanding option undePtlhe expires, is cancelled or is otherwise ternaishgbther than by exercise), the shares of
Common Stock allocable to the unexercised porticsuoh option may again be the subject of optiamten the Plan.
SECTION 4. ELIGIBILITY

4.1 Incentive Stock Options under the Plan imagranted only to executives and other key engasyf the Company or its parent or
subsidiaries. Nonqualified Options may be grantedfticers or other key employees of the Companigsoparent or subsidiaries, and to
members of the Board and consultants or other perato render services to the Company (regardfesbether they are also employees),
provided, however, that no such option may be gt a person who is a member of the Committéeeatime of grant.

4.2 Except as may otherwise be permitted byabde or other applicable law or regulation, reefitive Stock Option shall be granted to an
individual who, at the time the option is grantedins (including ownership attributed pursuant tot®a
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425 of the Code) more than ten percent (10%) ofdted combined voting power of all classes of ktotthe Company or any parent or
subsidiary (a “greater-than-ten-percent stockhd)denless such Incentive Stock Option provideg {fjahe purchase price per share shall not
be less than one hundred ten percent (110%) dathemarket value of the Common Stock at the timehsoption is granted, and (ii) that such
option shall not be exercisable to any extent dfterexpiration of five (5) years from the datésigranted.

4.3 The aggregate fair market value (deterthatehe time the option is granted) of the Comi&tock with respect to which Incentive
Stock Options are exercisable for the first timeay optionee during any calendar year (under thie &d any other plans of the Company or
any parent or subsidiary for the issuance of ineergtock options) shall not exceed $100,000 (chgreater amount as may from time to time
be permitted with respect to incentive stock oggtibg the Code or any other applicable law or retgaia
SECTION 5. TERMINATION OF EMPLOYMENT OR DEATH OF ORONEE

5.1 Except as may be otherwise expressly gemvherein, options shall terminate on the eadlier

(i) the date of expiration thereof,

(i) the date of termination of the optioneetaployment with or services to the Company byitdause (as determined by the Company), or
voluntarily by the optionee; or
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(iii) ninety (90) days after the date of ten@iion of the optionee’s employment with or sersitethe Company by it without cause;
provided, that Nonqualified Options granted to persons atenot employees of the Company need not, urtlesSdmmittee determines
otherwise, be subject to the provisions set fartblauses (ii) and (iii) above.

An employment relationship between the Companythadptionee shall be deemed to exist during anpgén which the optionee is
employed by the Company or its parent or any sidryidWhether authorized leave of absence, or agsen military or government service,

shall constitute termination of the employmenttieteship between the Company and the optionee bbaletermined by the Committee at the
time thereof.

As used herein, “cause” shall mean (x) anyeni@tbreach by the optionee of any agreement totwitne optionee and the Company are
both parties, (y) any act or omission to act byahonee which may have a material and adversetedi the Company’s business or on the
optionee’s ability to perform services for the Camp, including, without limitation, the commissiohany crime (other than ordinary traffic
violations), or (z) any material misconduct or nnetieneglect of duties by the optionee in connettiath the business or affairs of the
Company or any affiliate of the Company.

5.2 In the event of the death or permanenttatad disability of the holder of an option thatsubject to clause (ii) or (iii) of Section 5.1
above prior to termination of the
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optionee’s employment with or services to the Comypand before the date of expiration of such optsuch option shall terminate on the
earlier of such date of expiration or two yearsoiwing the date of such death or disability. Aftee death of the optionee, his/her executors,
administrators or any person or persons to whorhdiiption may be transferred by will or by thevdeof descent and distribution, shall have
the right, at any time prior to such terminatianekercise the option to the extent the optioneg evditled to exercise such option immediately
prior to his/her death. An optionee is permaneatig totally disabled if he/she is unable to engagmy gainful activity by reason of any
medically determinable physical or mental impairtghich can be expected to last for a continuousgef not less than 12 months;
permanent and total disability shall be determiimealiccordance with Section 22(e)(3) of the Codetapdegulations issued thereunder.

SECTION 6. TERMS OF THE OPTION AGREEMENTS

Each option agreement shall be in writing shall contain such terms, conditions, restrictighany, and provisions as the Committee shall
from time to time deem appropriate. Such provisionsonditions may include without limitation restions on transfer, repurchase rights, or
such other provisions as shall be determined byCttiramittee; providethatsuch additional provisions shall not be inconsisteith any other
term or condition of the Plan and such additional
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provisions shall not cause any Incentive Stock @pgranted under the Plan to fail to qualify asrexentive option within the meaning of
Section 422 of the Code. The shares of stock issugimn exercise of an option by any executiveceffi director or beneficial owner of more
than ten percent of the Common Stock of the Compaany not be sold or transferred except that suahestimay be issued upon exercise of
such option) by such officer, director or beneficaner for a period of six months following theagt of such option.

Option agreements need not be identical, &cth ®ption agreement by appropriate language stedlide the substance of all of the
following provisions:

6.1 Expiration Notwithstanding any other provision of the Plarobany option agreement, each option shall expir¢he date specified in
the option agreement, which date shall not, incee of an Incentive Stock Option, be later thantéimth anniversary (fifth anniversary in the
case of a greater-than-ten-percent stockholdafeflate on which the option was granted, or asifipe in Section 5 of this Plan.

6.2_Exercise Each option may be exercised, so long as itlid ead outstanding, from time to time in part sraawhole, subject to any
limitations with respect to the number of shargsafhich the option may be exercised at a partictilae and to such other conditions as the
Committee in its discretion may specify upon gragtihe option.

6.3 Purchase Pric&he purchase price per share under




each option shall be determined by the Committeékeatime the option is granted; provided, howetteat the option price of any Incentive
Stock Option shall not, unless otherwise permiltgdhe Code or other applicable law or regulatlmn]ess than the fair market value of the
Common Stock on the date the option is granted%d@dthe fair market value in the case of a gretitan-ten-percent stockholder). For the
purpose of the Plan the fair market value of then@wmn Stock shall be the closing price per shartherdate of grant of the option as reported
by a nationally recognized stock exchange, ohéf@ommon Stock is not listed on such an exchaagyeported by NASDAQ, or, if the
Common Stock is not quoted on NASDAQ), the fair neékalue as determined by the Committee.

6.4 Transferability of OptionsOptions shall not be transferable by the opticsteerwise than by will or under the laws of deseerd
distribution, and shall be exercisable, duringdrider lifetime, only by him or her.

6.5 Rights of OptioneedNo optionee shall be deemed for any purpose thdewner of any shares of Common Stock subjeahyooption
unless and until the option shall have been exedgisirsuant to the terms thereof, and the Complzaily/ lsave issued and delivered the shares
to the optionee.

6.6_Repurchase RighThe Committee may in its discretion provide utos grant of any option hereunder that the Comzhiayl have an
option to repurchase upon such terms and conditisrdetermined by the Committee all or any numbshares
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purchased upon exercise of such option. The repsecprice per share payable by the Company shalldfeamount or be determined by such
formula as is fixed by the Committee at the time diption for the shares subject to repurchaseaistgd. In the event the Committee shall g
options subject to the Company’s repurchase optiencertificates representing the shares purchasesdiant to such option shall carry a
legend satisfactory to counsel for the Companyrriefg to the Company'’s repurchase option.

SECTION 7. METHOD OF EXERCISE; PAYMENT OF PURCHASRICE

7.1 Any option granted under the Plan mayxera@sed by the optionee by delivering to the Conypan any business day a written notice
specifying the number of shares of Common Stoclotiteonee then desires to purchase and specifiimgddress to which the certificates for
such shares are to be mailed (the “Notice”), acarga by payment for such shares.

7.2 Payment for the shares of Common Stockhaged pursuant to the exercise of an option bbathade either by (i) cash, certified che
bank draft or postal or express money order equiddd option price for the number of shares spatifin the Notice, or (ii) with the consent of
the Committee, shares of Common Stock of the Companing a fair market value equal to the optioieg@pf such shares, or (iii) with the
consent of the Committee, such other consideratiuich is acceptable to the Committee and whichahtzér market
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value equal to the option price of such sharefivpmwith the consent of the Committee, a combimatdf (i), (i) and/or (iii). For the purpose of
the preceding sentence, the fair market value lmaresof Common Stock so delivered to the Compaaljl bb determined in the manner
specified in Section 6.3. As promptly as practieaddter receipt of the Notice and accompanying gaithe Company shall deliver to the
optionee certificates for the number of shares wapect to which such option has been so exerds®eed in the optionee’s name; provided,
however, that such delivery shall be deemed effefcteall purposes when the Company or a stockstearagent of the Company shall have
deposited such certificates in the United Stateis mddressed to the optionee, at the addressfigabni the Notice.

SECTION 8. CHANGES IN COMPANY’S CAPITAL STRUCTURE

8.1 Rights of CompanyThe existence of outstanding options shall nfatcafin any way the right or power of the Companyt®
stockholders to make or authorize, without limdatiany or all adjustments, recapitalizations, gaaizations or other changes in the
Company’s capital structure or its business, orraryger or consolidation of the Company, or anyéssf Common Stock, or any issue of
bonds, debentures, preferred or prior prefererakgir other capital stock ahead of or affecting @ommon Stock or the rights thereof, or the
dissolution or liquidation of the Company, or any
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sale or transfer of all or any part of its assetsusiness, or any other corporate act or procgedihether of a similar character or otherwise.

8.2 Recapitalization, Stock Splits and Dividenlf the Company shall effect a subdivision or aittion of shares or other capital
readjustment, the payment of a stock dividend tloemincrease or reduction of the number of shaféise Common Stock outstanding, in any
such case without receiving compensation therefondney, services or property, then (i) the numblass, and price per share of shares of
stock subject to outstanding options hereundet beadppropriately adjusted in such a manner antitle an optionee to receive upon exercise
of an option, for the same aggregate cash consioerséhe same total number and class of sharbe as she would have received as a rest
the event requiring the adjustment had he or skecesed his or her option in full immediately priorsuch event; and (ii) the number and class
of shares with respect to which options may betgdnnder the Plan shall be adjusted by substifdtinthe total number of shares of
Common Stock then reserved for issuance underléretRat number and class of shares of stock lleabtvner of an equal number of
outstanding shares of Common Stock would own asethigt of the event requiring the adjustment.

8.3 Merger without Change of Contrd\fter a merger of one or more corporations it® €Company, or after a consolidation of the
Company and one or more corporations in
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which (i) the Company shall be the surviving cogimm, and (ii) the stockholders of the Company ediately prior to such merger or
consolidation own after such merger or consolidatibares representing at least fifty percent (56t)e voting power of the Company, each
holder of an outstanding option shall, at no addi cost, be entitled upon exercise of such ogtiaeceive in lieu of the number of shares as
to which such option shall then be so exercisahkenumber and class of shares of stock or otlerrisies to which such holder would have
been entitled pursuant to the terms of the agreenfenerger or consolidation if, immediately priorsuch merger or consolidation, such
holder had been the holder of record of a numbshafes of Common Stock equal to the number oesHar which such option was
exercisable.

8.4 Sale or Merger with Change of Contriflthe Company is merged into or consolidatechwaihother corporation under circumstances
where the Company is not the surviving corporat@nif there is a merger or consolidation where@oenpany is the surviving corporation but
the stockholders of the Company immediately prwosuch merger or consolidation do not own aftehsuaerger or consolidation shares
representing at least fifty percent (50%) of théngpower of the Company, or if the Company isiliited, or sells or otherwise disposes of

substantially all of its assets to another corponatvhile unexercised options remain outstandindeurthe Plan, (i) subject to the provisions of
clause (iii) below, after the
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effective date of such merger, consolidation, kigtion, sale or disposition, as the case may lw lkalder of an outstanding option shall be
entitled, upon exercise of such option, to receivdieu of shares of Common Stock, shares of stiebk or other securities, cash or property as
the holders of shares of Common Stock receiveduanitsto the terms of the merger, consolidationyitigtion, sale or disposition; (ii) the
Committee may accelerate the time for exercisél efrexercised and unexpired options to and afgate prior to the effective date of such
merger, consolidation, liquidation, sale or disfiosj as the case may be, specified by the Comenitte(iii) all outstanding options may be
cancelled by the Committee as of the effective datny such merger, consolidation, liquidationesa disposition provided that (x) notice of
such cancellation shall be given to each holdemodption and (y) each holder of an option shalehéie right to exercise such option to the
extent that the same is then exercisable or, iDbmittee shall have accelerated the time foraserof all unexercised and unexpired opti

in full during the 30-day period preceding the effee date of such merger, consolidation, liquidiatisale or disposition.

8.5_Adjustments to Common Stock Subject tad@hst Except as hereinbefore expressly provided, theeiby the Company of shares of
stock of any class, or securities convertible sitares of stock of any class, for cash or propertfor labor or services, either upon direct sale
or upon the exercise of
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rights or warrants to subscribe therefor, or upmmversion of shares or obligations of the Compamertible into such shares or other
securities, shall not affect, and no adjustmentaagon thereof shall be made with respect to, tingber or price of shares of Common Stock
then subject to outstanding options.

8.6 MiscellaneousAdjustments under this Section 8 shall be deteechby the Committee, and such determinations bleatbnclusive. No
fractional shares of Common Stock shall be issumttuthe Plan on account of any adjustment spedifmve.

SECTION 9. GENERAL RESTRICTIONS

9.1 Investment Representatioihe Company may require any person to whom aiormofg granted, as a condition of exercising such
option, to give written assurances in substancef@mad satisfactory to the Company to the effect thach person is acquiring the Common
Stock subject to the option for his or her own agtdor investment and not with any present inteamof selling or otherwise distributing the
same, and to such other effects as the Companysdeecessary or appropriate in order to comply feitleral and applicable state securities
laws.

9.2 Compliance with Securities LawEhe Company shall not be required to sell ordsmoy shares under any option if the issuanceaf su
shares shall constitute a violation by the optiomeby the Company of any provisions of any lawegulation of any governmental authority.
In addition, in
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connection with the Securities Act of 1933, as niowffect or hereafter amended (the “Act”), uporrise of any option, the Company shall
not be required to issue such shares unless then@tea has received evidence satisfactory to tinéoeffect that the holder of such option will
not transfer such shares except pursuant to anatips statement in effect under such Act or usias opinion of counsel satisfactory to the
Company has been received by the Company to tketeffat such registration is not required. Anyed®ination in this connection by the
Committee shall be final, binding and conclusivete event the shares issuable on exercise gbtoncare not registered under the Act, the
Company may imprint upon any certificate represgnshares so issued the following legend or angrddgend which counsel for the
Company considers necessary or advisable to cowifiiythe Act and with applicable state securitess:

The shares of stock represented by this certificatee not been registered under the Securitie®iI933 or under the securities laws of
State and may not be sold or transferred except apoh registration or upon receipt by the Corponadf an opinion of counsel satisfact:
to the Corporation, in form and substance satisfgdb the Corporation, that registration is najuieed for such sale or transfer.

The Company may, but shall in no event begaltéid to, register any securities covered herebyupmt to the Act; and in the event any
shares are so registered the Company may removiegeryd on certificates representing such shates Company shall not be obligated to
take any other affirmative action in
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order to cause the exercise of an option or theisse of shares pursuant thereto to comply withlamor regulation of any governmental
authority.

9.3 Employment ObligationThe granting of any option shall not impose ugeCompany any obligation to employ or continuentloy
any optionee; and the right of the Company to teatd the employment of any officer or other empéogkall not be diminished or affected by
reason of the fact that an option has been granthiin or her.

SECTION 10. AMENDMENT OR TERMINATION OF THE PLAN

The Board of Directors may modify, revise @minate this Plan at any time and from time tcetiexcept that the class of persons eligible
to receive options and the aggregate number oéshissuable pursuant to this Plan shall not begdtor increased, other than by operation of
Section 8 hereof, without the consent of the stotikdrs of the Company.

SECTION 11. NONEXCLUSIVITY OF THE PLAN

Neither the adoption of the Plan by the BaafrBirectors nor the submission of the Plan todteekholders of the Company for approval
shall be construed as creating any limitationshenpiower of the Board of Directors to adopt sudtepincentive arrangements as it may deem
desirable, including, without
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limitation, the granting of stock options otherwthan under the Plan, and such arrangements meighae applicable generally or only in
specific cases.

SECTION 12. EFFECTIVE DATE AND DURATION OF PLAN

The Plan shall become effective upon its adogty the Board of Directors provided that thecktwlders of the Company shall have
approved the Plan within twelve (12) months prot following the adoption of the Plan by the Bharhe Plan shall terminate (i) when the
total amount of the Stock with respect to whichiamt may be granted shall have been issued upoex#reise of options or (ii) by action of
the Board of Directors pursuant to Section 10 Hemgbichever shall first occur.

* % * % % * x *
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EXHIBIT 10.2

PROGRESS SOFTWARE CORPORATION
1994
STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN
SECTION 1. General Purpose of the Plan; Definitions

The name of the plan is the Progress Soft@arporation 1994 Stock Incentive Plan (the “Plaithe purpose of the Plan is to encourage
and enable the officers, employees and directqranaf other persons providing services to, Progse$isvare Corporation (the “Company”)
and its Subsidiaries upon whose judgment, initeatind efforts the Company largely depends for tlceesssful conduct of its business to
acquire a proprietary interest in the Companys Hriticipated that providing such persons withraadistake in the Company’s welfare will
assure a closer identification of their interesithwthose of the Company, thereby stimulating tleffiorts on the Company’s behalf and
strengthening their desire to remain with the Comypa

The following terms shall be defined as sethfteelow:
“Act” means the Securities Exchange Act of4,9%s amended.

“Award” or “Awards”, except where referring foparticular category of grant under the Planll éhaude Incentive Stock Options, Non-
Qualified Stock Options, Conditioned Stock Awardsyestricted Stock Awards, Performance Share AwandsStock Appreciation Rights.

“Board” means the Board of Directors of then@uany.

“Cause’means (i) any material breach by the participargnyf agreement to which the participant and the fizom are both parties, (ii) a
act or omission to act by the participant which rhaye a material and adverse effect on the Compdiginess or on the participant’s ability
to perform services for the Company, including hwiit limitation, the commission of any crime (otltgain ordinary traffic violations), or
(iif) any material misconduct or material neglettlaties by the participant in connection with thesiness or affairs of the Company or any
affiliate of the Company.

“Change of Control” shall have the meaningfegth in Section 15.

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 188@&mended, and any successor Code, and ralégsdregulations and interpretations.
“Conditioned Stock Award” means an Award geghpursuant to Section 6.

“Committee” shall have the meaning set forttsection 2.

“Disability” means disability as set forth 8ection 22(e)(3) of the Code.

“Effective Date” means the date on which thenRs approved by stockholders as set forth iniGed 7.

“Eligible Person” shall have the meaning setlf in Section 4.

“Fair Market Value” on any given date meares ¢kosing price per share of the Stock on such aateported by a nationally recognized
stock exchange, or, if the Stock is not listed ochsan exchange, as reported by NASDAQ, or, ifStuek is not quoted on NASDAQ, the fair
market value of the Stock as determined by the Cibtieen

“Incentive Stock Option” means any Stock Optiesignated and qualified as an “incentive stqatioo” as defined in Section 422 of the
Code.
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“Non-Qualified Stock Option” means any Stocgtion that is not an Incentive Stock Option.

“Normal Retirement” means retirement from aetemployment with the Company and its Subsididriescordance with the retirement
policies of the Company and its Subsidiaries timeeffect.

“Outside Director” means any director whoiginot an employee of the Company or of any “&fféd group,” as such term is defined in
Section 1504(a) of the Code, which includes the gamy (an “Affiliate”), (ii) is not a former emplogeof the Company or any Affiliate who is
receiving compensation for prior services (othantbenefits under a tax-qualified retirement pldurjng the Company’s or any Affiliate’s
taxable year, (iii) has not been an officer of @@mpany or any Affiliate and (iv) does not receigeuneration from the Company or any
Affiliate, either directly or indirectly, in any pacity other than as a director.

“Option” or “Stock Option” means any optiongarchase shares of Stock granted pursuant tooBesti

“Performance Share Award” means an Award g@@pursuant to Section 8.

“Stock” means the Common Stock. $.01 par vakereshare, of the Company, subject to adjustrmntsuant to Section 3.
“Stock Appreciation Right” means an Award geghpursuant to Section 9.

“Subsidiary” means a subsidiary as set fantBéction 424 of the Code.

“Unrestricted Stock Award” means Awards granpersuant to Section 7.

SECTION 2. Administration of Plan; Committee Authority to SetéParticipants and Determine Award

(a) CommitteeThe Plan shall be administered by a Committee“@uoenmittee”) consisting of at least two Outside éditors. None of the
members of the Committee shall have been grantgdaard under this Plan (other than pursuant taiBe&(c)) or any other stock option
plan of the Company (other than the Company’s 1I9®dctors’ Stock Option Plan) within one year priorservice on the Committee. It is the
intention of the Company that the Plan shall beiadiered by “disinterested persons” within the miag of Rule 16b-3 under the Act, but the
authority and validity of any act taken or not taksy the Committee shall not be affected if anysparadministering the Plan is not a
disinterested person. Except as specifically reskte the Board under the terms of the Plan, ther@ittee shall have full and final authority
operate, manage and administer the Plan on behtié ompany. Action by the Committee shall requive affirmative vote of a majority of
all members thereof.

(b) Powers of Committedhe Committee shall have the power and authorityrémt Awards consistent with the terms of the Pilaciuding
the power and authority:

(i) to select the officers and other employegsnd persons providing services to, the Compartyits Subsidiaries to whom Awards r
from time to time be granted;

(i) to determine the time or times of graentd the extent, if any, of Incentive Stock Optidden-Qualified Stock Options, Conditioned
Slock, Unrestricted Stock, Performance Shares amck@\ppreciation Rights, or any combination of theegoing, granted to any one or
more participants;

(iii) to determine the number of shares tacbeered by any Award;

(iv) to determine and modify the terms andditians, including restrictions, not inconsisteritwthe terms of the Plan, of any Award,
which terms and conditions may differ among indindtlAwards and participants, and to approve thifof written instruments evidencing

the Awards;
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(v) to accelerate the exercisability or vestiri all or any portion of any Award;

(vi) subject to the provisions of Section %ifg)to extend the period in which any outstandBtgck Option or Stock Appreciation Right
may be exercised:

(vii) to reduce the per-share exercise priceny outstanding Stock Option or Stock AppreciatRight (but not to less than 85% of Fair
Market Value on the date the reduction is made);

(viii) to determine whether, to what extentdainder what circumstances Stock and other am@aiytsble with respect to an Award shall
be deferred either automatically or at the electibthe participant and whether and to what exteatCompany shall pay or credit amounts
equal to interest (at rates determined by the Cdtea)ior dividends or deemed dividends on suchrddée and

(ix) to adopt, alter and repeal such rulesdglines and practices for administration of therPand for its own acts and proceedings as it
shall deem advisable; to interpret the terms angigions of the Plan and any Award (including rethtvritten instruments); to make all
determinations it deems advisable for the admaistn of the Plan; to decide all disputes arismgannection with the Plan; and to
otherwise supervise the administration of the Plan.

All decisions and interpretations of the Corted shall be binding on all persons, including@wenpany and Plan participants.

SECTION 3. Shares Issuable under the Plan; Mergers; Substituti

(a) Shares Issuabl&he maximum number of shares of Stock with resfmeathich Awards (including Stock Appreciation Rightnay be
granted under the Plan shall be 1,000,000. Forgsapof this limitation, the shares of Stock undeg any Awards which are forfeited,
cancelled, reacquired by the Company or otherveisaihated (other than by exercise) shall be added to the shares of Stock with respect to
which Awards may be granted under the Plan so &snihpe participants to whom such Awards had beeviqursly granted received no bene
of ownership of the underlying shares of Stock toclv the Award related. Subject to such overalitition, any type or types of Award may
be granted with respect to shares, including Ineer&tock Options. Shares issued under the Planb@authorized but unissued shares or
shares reacquired by the Company.

(b) Limitation on Awardsln no event may any Plan participant be granted i&/éincluding Stock Appreciation Rights) with respto
more than 100,000 shares of Slock in any calenéar. yrhe number of shares of Stock relating to @arl granted to a Plan participant in a
calendar year that is subsequently forfeited, d&tter otherwise terminated shall continue to adoward the foregoing limitation in such
calendar year. In addition, if the exercise pritarmAward is subsequently reduced, the transastiati be deemed a cancellation of the
original Award and the grant of a new one so tlwh ltransactions shall count toward the maximuneshissuable in the calendar year of each
respective transaction.

(c) Stock Dividends, Mergers, eto.the event that after approval of the Plan bydtoekholders of the Company in accordance with
Section 17, the Company effects a stock dividetmtkssplit or similar change in capitalization affieg the Stock, the Committee shall make
appropriate adjustments in (i) the number and kihnshares of stock or securities with respect tactviwards may thereafter be granted
(including without limitation the limitations sedrth in Sections 3(a) and (b) above), (ii) the neménd kind of shares remaining subject to
outstanding Awards, and (iii) the option or purdahasice in respect of such shares. In the eveahpfmerger, consolidation, dissolution or
liquidation of the Company, the Committee in iteesdiscretion may, as to any outstanding Awardsergich substitution or adjustment in the
aggregate number of shares reserved for issuamtzr thre Plan and in the number and purchase pfiaay() of shares subject to such Awards
as it may determine and as may be permitted byetines of such
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transaction, or accelerate, amend or terminate Auards upon such terms and conditions as it gimallide (which, in the case of the
termination of the vested portion of any Award, |stejuire payment or other consideration which @@nmittee deems equitable in the
circumstances), subject, however, to the provisafrdection 1 5.

(d) Substitute Awardshe Committee may grant Awards under the Plan xstsution for stock and stock based awards heldroployees
of another corporation who concurrently become eyg#s of the Company or a Subsidiary as the resalimerger or consolidation of the
employing corporation with the Company or a Sulasigor the acquisition by the Company or a Subsydié property or stock of the
employing corporation. The Committee may direct the substitute awards be granted on such terchs@mditions as the Committee
considers appropriate in the circumstances. Theeshvehich may be delivered under such substitugrdsvshall be in addition to the maxim
number of shares provided for in Section 3(a) dalthe extent that the substitute Awards are hdtirénted to persons whose relationship to
the Company does not make (and is not expectedikethem subject to Section 16(b) of the Act; @ndjyranted in substitution for awards
issued under a plan approved, to the extent thgrireel under Rule 16b-3 (or any successor rule utgeAct), by the stockholders of the
entity which issued such predecessor awards.

SECTION 4. Eligibility.

Awards may be granted to officers or other &mployees of the Company or its Subsidiaries,tamdembers of the Board and consultants
or other persons who render services to the Compegsirdless of whether they are also employedg){bke Persons”), provided, however,
that members of the Committee at the time of grexdept for the purposes of Section 7(c), shallcooistitute Eligible Persons.

SECTION 5. Stock Options.
Any Stock Option granted under the Plan sbalin such form as the Committee may from timenetapprove.

Stock Options granted under the Plan may theeincentive Stock Options or Non-Qualified St@fations. To the extent that any option
does not qualify as an Incentive Stock Optionhélksconstitute a Non-Qualified Stock Option.

No Incentive Stock Option shall be grantedarrttie Plan after December 31, 2003.

(a) Grant of Stock Option§.he Committee in its discretion may grant Incen®teck Options only to employees of the Compangryr
Subsidiary. The Committee in its discretion mayngftdon-Qualified Stock Options to Eligible PersoStock Options granted pursuant to this
Section 5 (a) shall be subject to the followingnsrand conditions and the terms and conditioneofi@ 13 and shall contain such additional
terms and conditions, not inconsistent with thenteof the Plan, as the Committee shall deem ddsirab

(i) Exercise PriceThe exercise priced per share for the Stock covieyel Stock Option granted pursuant to this Sedi¢a) shall be
determined by the Committee at the time of gramtshall be, in the case of Incentive Stock Optiomd,less than 100% of Fair Market
Value on the date of grant. If an employee ownis dleemed to own (by reason of the attributiongalpplicable under Section 424(d) of
Code) more than 10% of the combined voting poweloflasses of stock of the Company or any-Subsjddr parent corporation and an
Incentive Stock Option is granted to such employtee option price shall be not less than 1 10%aif Market Value on the grant date.

(i) Option TermThe term of each Stock Option shall be fixed by@wenmittee, but no Incentive Stock Option shalkkercisable more
than ten years after the date the option is grafiteah
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employee owns or is deemed to own (by reason céttiniution rules of Section 424(d) of the Code)renthan 10% of the combined voting
power of all classes of stock of the Company or &ulgsidiary or parent corporation and an Inceriterk Option is granted to such
employee, the term of such option shall be no rtiwaia live years from the date of grant.

(iii) Exercisability; Rights of a Sharehold&tock Options shall become vested and exercisalslech lime or times, whether or not in
installments, as shall be determined by the Coremit or after the grant date. The Committee mapwalime accelerate the exercisability
of all or any portion of any Stock Option. An optee shall have the rights of a shareholder ontp abares acquired upon the exercise of a
Stock Option and not as to unexercised Stock Ogtion

(iv) Method of ExerciseStock Options may be exercised in whole or in garidelivering written notice of exercise to thengmany,
specifying the number of shares to be purchasednéat of the purchase price may be made by oneooe of the following methods:

(A) In cash, by certified or bank check oretinstrument acceptable to the Committee;

(B) In the form of shares of Stock that aréthen subject to restrictions under any Compaay gf permitted by the Committee, in
discretion. Such surrendered shares shall be valuEdir Market Value on the exercise date; or

(C) By the optionee delivering to the Compargroperly executed exercise notice together wilvocable instructions to a broker to
promptly deliver to the Company cash or a checlapleyand acceptable to the Company to pay the psecprice; provided that in the
event the optionee chooses to pay the purchase gsiso provided, the optionee and the broker sbalply with such procedures and
enter into such agreements of indemnity and othereanents as the Committee shall prescribe asditimonof such payment procedure.
Payment instruments will be received subject téectibn.

The delivery of certificates representing shareStotk to be purchased pursuant to the exerciagstbck Option will be contingent upon
receipt from the Optionee (or a purchaser actingisrstead in accordance with the provisions ofStaek Option) by the Company of the
full purchase price for such shares and the foiféiht of any other requirements contained in thelS@ption or applicable provisions of
laws.

(v) Non-transferability of OptiondNo Stock Option shall be transferable other thamviiyor by the laws of descent and distributiordan
all Stock Options shall be exercisable, duringdapgonee’s lifetime, only by the optionee.

(vi) Annual Limit on Incentive Stock Optiofi® the extent required lor “incentive stock optidréatment under Section 422 of the Code,
the aggregate Fair Market Value (determined abeftitme of grant) of the Stock with respect to whitcentive stock options granted under
this Plan and any other plan of the Company dsitlssidiaries become exercisable for the first taimen optionee during any calendar year
shall not exceed $100,000.

(vii) Repurchase RighT.he Committee may in its discretion provide upoa gihant of any Stock Option hereunder that the Gomshal
have an option to repurchase upon such terms amitmns as determined by the Committee all or mmyber of shares purchased upon
exercise of such Stock Option. The repurchase peceshare payable by the Company shall be suchir@snoo be determined by such
formula as is fixed by the Committee at the time @ption for the shares subject to repurchaseaistgd. In the event the Committee shall
grant Stock Options subject to the Company’s remse
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option, the certificates representing the shareshased pursuant to such Options shall carry antbgatisfactory to counsel for the
Company referring to the Company’s repurchase optio

(viii) Form of SettlemenShares of Stock issued upon exercise of a Stoclo®phall be free of all restrictions under therRkexcept as
otherwise provided in this Plan.

(b) Reload OptionsAt the discretion of the Committee, Options granteder Section 5(a) may include a so-called “réldedture
pursuant to which an optionee exercising an optipthe delivery of a number of shares of Stockdooadance with Section 5 (a) (iv) ( B)
hereof would automatically be granted an additiéafion (with an exercise price equal to the Faarkét Value of the Stock on the date the
additional Option is granted and with the same tjoin date as the original Option being exercised, with such other terms as the
Committee may provide) to purchase that numbehafes of Stock equal to the number delivered tocisethe original Option.

SECTION 6. Conditioned Stock Awards.

(a) Nature of Conditioned Stock Awarthe Committee in its discretion may grant Condiidrstock Awards to any Eligible Person. A
Conditioned Stock Award is an Award entitling tleeipient to acquire, at no cost or for a purchagemetermined by the Committee, shares
of Stock subject to such restrictions and condgtiaa the Committee may determine at the time oftgf€onditioned Stock”). Conditions may
be based on continuing employment and/or achieveofeare-established performance goals and objestiln addition, a Conditioned Stock
Award may be granted to an employee by the Comenittdieu of a cash bonus due to such employeaipntdo any other plan of the
Company.

(b) Acceptance of Award\ participant who is granted a Conditioned Stockafavshall have no rights with respect to such Awargss
the participant shall have accepted the Award wi@ days (or such shorter date as the Committeespecify) following the award dale by
making payment to the Company, if required, byified or bank cheek or other instrument or fornpafyment acceptable to the Committee in
an amount equal to the specified purchase pria)if of the shares covered by the Award and bguweiey and delivering to the Company a
written instrument that sets forth the terms anudéions of the Conditioned Stock in such form les €ommittee shall determine.

(c) Rights as a Shareholdddpon complying with Section 6(b) above, a partiaipshall have all the rights of a shareholder wétspect to
the Conditioned Stock, including voting and divideights, subject to non-transferability restriasoand Company repurchase or forfeiture
rights described in this Section 6 and subjectitthther conditions contained in the written instent evidencing the Conditioned Award.
Unless the Committee shall otherwise determindifioates evidencing shares of Conditioned StockIgiemain in the possession of the
Company until such shares are vested as provid8ddtion 6(e) below.

(d) RestrictionsShares of Conditioned Stock may not be sold, assliginansferred, pledged or otherwise encumbereéisposed of except
as specifically provided herein. In the event ofrimation of employment by the Company and its &lihges for any reason (including death,
Disability, Normal Retirement and for Cause), tr@n@®any shall have the right, at the discretiorhef Committee, to repurchase shares of
Conditioned Stock with respect to which condititvase not lapsed at their purchase price, or toiredaorfeiture of such shares to the
Company if acquired at no cost, from the partictparthe participant’s legal representative. Thenpany must exercise such right of
repurchase or forfeiture not later than the nitletéay following such termination of employmentl@ss otherwise specified, in the written
instrument evidencing the Conditioned Award).

(e) Vesting of Conditioned Stockhe Committee at the time of grant shall specify diate or dates and/or the attainment of pre-ésiesol
performance goals, objectives and other condit@nghich the
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non-transferability of the Conditioned Stock and @ompany’s right of repurchase or forfeiture stabe. Subsequent to such date or dates
and/or the attainment of such preestablished pedoce goals, objectives and other conditions, thees on which all restrictions have lapsed
shall no longer be Conditioned Stock and shalldemked “vested.” The Committee at any time may acatd such date or dates and otherwise
waive or, subject to Section 13, amend any conastiaf the Award.

(f) Waiver, Deferral and Reinvestment of Dividendse written instrument evidencing the Conditiongédcg Award may require or permit
the immediate payment, waiver, deferral or invesinod dividends paid on the Restricted Stock.

SECTION 7. Unrestricted Stock Awards.

(a) Grant or Sale of Unrestricted Stuckhe Committee in its discretion may grant or selh @urchase price determined by the Committ
any Eligible Person shares of Stock free of angrict®ns under the Plan (“Unrestricted Stock”).a&s of Unrestricted Stock may be granted
or sold as described in the preceding sentencespect of past services or other valid considaratio

(b) Elections to Receive Unrestricted Stock In LieCofmpensationUpon the request of an Eligible Person and withctiresent of the
Committee, each Eligible Person may, pursuant tioravocable written election delivered to the Camyp no later than the date or dates
specified by the Committee, receive a portion ef¢bsh compensation otherwise due to him in Unicestr Stock (valued at Fair Market Value
on the date or dates the cash compensation wolthvaise be paid). Such Unrestricted Stock may lie tpathe Eligible Person at the same
time as the cash compensation would otherwise ok paat a later time, as specified by the EligiBlerson in the written election.

(c) Elections to Receive Unrestricted Stock in LieDioéctors’ FeesEach Outside Director may, pursuant to an irreviecabitten electio
delivered to the Company no later than June 3Gpfcalendar year, receive all or a portion of threalors’ fees otherwise due to him in the
subsequent calendar year in Unrestricted Stocki¢deht Fair Market Value on the date or dates itteetrs’ fees would otherwise be paid).
Such Unrestricted Stock may be paid to the Non-Bge# Director at the same lime the directors’ fgesld otherwise have been paid, or at a
later time, as specified by the Non-Employee Doeat the written election.

(d) Restrictions on Transferghe right to receive unrestricted Stock may nosdd, assigned, transferred, pledged or otherwise
encumbered, other than by will or the laws of dasead distribution.

SECTION 8. Performance Share Awards.

(a) Nature of Performance Shares Performance Share Award is an award entitlingréugpient to acquire shares of Stock upon the
attainment of specified performance goals. The Cataenmay make Performance Share Awards indepemd@ntin connection with the
granting of any other Award under the Plan. Perforoe Share Awards may be granted under the Plmyt&ligible Person including those
who qualify for awards under other performance plafithe Company. The Committee in its discretioallsdetermine whether and to whom
Performance Share Awards shall be made, the peaftzengoals applicable under each such Award, thiedseduring which performance is to
be measured, and all other limitations and conuiitiapplicable to the awarded Performance Sharesgided, however, that the Committee r
rely on the performance goals and other standguplécable to other performance-based plans of ii@@ny in setting the standards for
Performance Share Awards under the Plan,

(b) Restrictions on TransfeRPerformance Share Awards and all rights with resfpesuch Awards may not be sold, assigned, tramsfe
pledged or otherwise encumbered.
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(c) Rights ax a Shareholdeh participant receiving a Performance Share Awdialdhave the rights of a shareholder only as tresh
actually received by the participant under the Rliad not with respect to shares subject to the Auat not actually received by the
participant. A participant shall be entitled toea® a stock certificate evidencing the acquisitbshares of Stock under a Performance Share
Award only upon satisfaction of all conditions sified in the written instrument evidencing the Renfiance Share Award (or in a performance
plan adopted by the Committee).

(d) Termination.Except as may otherwise be provided by the Comenéteany time prior to termination of employmenpaaticipant’s
rights in all Performance Share Awards shall autaraly terminate upon the participant’s terminatiof employment by the Company and its
Subsidiaries for any reason (including death. DiggpNormal Retirement and for Cause).

(e) Acceleration, Waiver, Etét any time prior to the participant’s terminatiohemployment by the Company and its Subsidiates,
Committee may in its sole discretion acceleratdyevar, subject to Section 13, amend any or athefgoals, restrictions or conditions impo:
under any Performance Share Award.

SECTION 9. Stock Appreciation Rights

(a) The Committee in its discretion may gratack Appreciation Rights to any Eligible Persgra{pbne, (ii) simultaneously with the grant
a Stock Option and in conjunction therewith orhie lternative thereto or (iii) subsequent to tfengof a Non-Qualified option and in
conjunction therewith or in the alternative thereto

(b) The exercise price per share of a Stochrégiation Right granted alone shall be determimethe Committee. A Stock Appreciation
Right granted simultaneously with or subsequemiiéogrant of a Stock Option and in conjunction ¢fingth or in the alternative thereto shall
have the same exercise price as the related StptiirQshall be transferable only upon the sammadeand conditions as the related Stock
Option, and shall be exercisable only to the saxten¢ as the related Stock Option; provided, howethat a Stock Appreciation Right, by its
terms, shall he exercisable only when the Fair MiXlalue per share of Stock exceeds the exercise per share thereof.

(c) Upon any exercise of a Stock Appreciatight, the number of shares of Stock for which eeigited Stock Option shall be exercisable
shall be reduced by the number of shares for wiietStock Appreciation Right shall have been esexti The number of shares of Stock with
respect to which a Stock Appreciation Right shalktkercisable shall be reduced upon any exerciaayofelated Stock Option by the number
of shares for which such Option shall have beemcised. Any Stock Appreciation Right shall be exgable upon such additional terms and
conditions as may from time to time be prescribgdhe Committee.

(d) A Stock Appreciation Right shall entitieetparticipant upon exercise thereof to receivenfthe Company, upon written request to the
Company at its principal offices (the “Request”jiuanber of shares of Stock (with or without resinies as to substantial risk of forfeiture and
transferability, as determined by the Committegsrsole discretion), an amount of cash, or anyldoation of Stock and cash, as specified in
the Request (but subject to the approval of the i@ittae in its sole discretion, at any time up td &rcluding the time of payment, as to the
making of any cash payment), having an aggregateMzaket Value equal to the product of (i) the ess of Fair Market Value, on the date of
such Request, over the exercise price per sh&8®ok specified in such Stock Appreciation Righiterelated Option, multiplied by (ii) the
number of shares of Stock for which such Stock &pg@tion Right shall be exercised. Notwithstandimg foregoing,
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the Committee may specify at the time of grantrof &tock Appreciation Right that such Stock Appation Right may be exercisable solely
for cash and not for Stock.

(e) Within thirty (30) days of the receipt the Company of a Request to receive cash in fylastial settlement of a Stock Appreciation
Right or to exercise such Stock Appreciation Rightcash, the Committee shall, in its sole disorgteither consent to or disapprove, in whole
or in part, such Request. A Request to receive itefshl or partial settlement of a Stock Appreadat Right or to exercise a Stock Appreciation
Right for cash may provide that, in the event tloen@ittee shall disapprove such Request, such Regbalt be deemed to be an exercise of
such Stock Appreciation Right for Stock.

(f) If the Committee disapproves in whole mpiart any election by a participant to receivendadull or partial settlement of a Stock
Appreciation Right or to exercise such Stock Apfatan Right for cash, such disapproval shall rfeea such participant’s right to exercise
such Stock Appreciation Right at a later dateh®éxtent that such Stock Appreciation Right shalbtherwise exercisable, or to elect the f
of payment at a later date, provided that an eladt receive cash upon such later exercise shalbject to the approval of the Committee.
Additionally, such disapproval shall not affect ymarticipant’s right to exercise any related Optio

(g) A participant shall not be entitled to uegt or receive cash in full or partial paymena &tock Appreciation Right, if such Stock
Appreciation Right or any related Option shall h&een exercised during the first six (6) monthgofespective term; provided, however, that
such prohibition shall not apply in the event of tleath or Disability of the participant prior teetexpiration of such six-month period, or if
such participant is not a director or officer of tGompany or a beneficial owner of the Company istdescribed in Section 16(a) of the Act.

(h) A Stock Appreciation Right shall be deenegédrcised on the last day of its term, if not otlise exercised by the holder thereof,
provided that the fair market value of the Stockjsot to the Stock Appreciation Right exceeds tker@se price thereof on such date.

(i) No Stock Appreciation Right shall be tréarable other than by will or by the laws of degcamd distribution and all Stock Appreciation
Rights shall be exercisable, during the holdef&titine, only by the holder.

SECTION 10. Termination of Stock Options and Stock Appreciatidtights.

(a) Termination by DeatHf any participant’s employment by or serviceshe Company and its Subsidiaries terminates by reasdeath,
any Stock Option or Stock Appreciation Right owmlgdsuch participant may thereafter be exercisaddextent exercisable at the date of
death, by the legal representative or legateeepérticipant, for a period of two years (or sumhger period as the Committee shall specify at
any time) from the dale of death, or until the eapon of the stated term of the Option or SlockpfgEiation Right, if earlier.

(b) Termination by Reason of Disability or Normal Restirent.

(i) Any Stock Option or Stock Appreciation Right helddparticipant whose employment by or servicehéoCompany and its
Subsidiaries has terminated by reason of Disabilify thereafter be exercised, to the extent itexascisable at the time of such
termination, for a period of one year (or such kemgeriod as the Committee shall specify at ang}ifrom the dale of such termination of
employment or services, or until the expiratioriref stated term of the Option or Stock Appreciatght, if earlier.
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(if) Any Stock Option or Stock AppreciationdRit held by a participant whose employment by ovises to the Company and its
Subsidiaries has terminated by reason of Normatdteént may thereafter be exercised, to the exterds exercisable at the time of such
termination, for a period of 90 days (or such langeriod as the Committee shall specify at any }ifrem the date of such termination of
employment or services, or until the expiratioriref stated term of the Option or Stock Appreciatght, if earlier.

(iif) The Committee shall have sole authodtyd discretion to determine whether a participagtmployment or services has been
terminated by reason of Disability or Normal Retient.

(iv) Except as otherwise provided by the Cottemiat the time of grant, the death of a partitigiuring a period provided in this Section
10(b) for the exercise of a Stock Option or Stogpreciation Right, shall extend such period for fwears from the date of death, subject to
termination on the expiration of the stated ternthef Option or Stock Appreciation Right, if earlier

(c) Termination for Causdf any participant’s employment by or serviceshe Company and its Subsidiaries has been termifated
Cause, any Stock Option or Stock Appreciation Rigtt by such participant shall immediately ternénand be of no further force and effect;
provided, however, that the Committee may, indlg sliscretion, provide that such Option or Stogipreciation Right can be exercised for a
period of up to 30 days from the date of terminatdb employment or services or until the expiratidrthe stated term of the Option or Stock
Appreciation Right, if earlier.

(d) Other TerminationUnless otherwise determined by the Committee pdicipant’s employment by or services to the Camypand its
Subsidiaries terminates for any reason other tleathd Disability, Normal Retirement or for Causey &tock Option or Stock Appreciation
Right held by such participant may thereafter bereigsed, to the extent it was exercisable on the ofstermination of employment, for 90 d:
(or such longer period as the Committee shall $patiany lime) from the date of termination of doyment or services or until the expiration
of the stated term of the Option or Stock AppreciaRight, if earlier.

SECTION 11. Tax Withholding.

(a) Payment by ParticipanEach participant shall, no later than the dalefashich the value of an Award or of any Stock dnextamounts
received thereunder first becomes includable irgtiess income of the participant for Federal incdaxepurposes, pay to the Company, or
make arrangements satisfactory to the Committegrdawg payment of any Federal, state or local takesy kind required by law to be
withheld with respect to such income. The Companyits Subsidiaries shall, to the extent permitigdaw, have the right to deduct any such
taxes from any payment of any kind otherwise duthéoparticipant.

(b) Payment in Share®articipant may elect to have such tax withholdibfigation satisfied, in whole or in part, by (Jthorizing the
Company to withhold from shares of Stock to bedslspursuant to an Award a number of shares withgamegate Fair Market Value (as of the
date the withholding is effected) that would satife withholding amount due with respect to sueteid, or (ii) transferring to the Company
shares of Stock owned by the participant with agregate Fair Market Value (as of the date the waiifing is effected) that would satisfy the
withholding amount due. With respect to any pgpicit who is subject to Section 16 of the Act, thieofving additional restrictions shall app

(A) the election to satisfy tax withholdingligfations relating to an Award in the manner peteditby this Section 11 (b) shall be made
either (1) during the period beginning on the thitiness day-following the date of release of igulgror annual summary statements of
sales and earnings of the Company and ending omvéiith business day following such date, or (2)east six months prior to
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the date as of which the receipt of such an Awastl hecomes a taxable event for Federal incomeuagoses;
(B) such election shall be irrevocable;
(C) such election shall be subject to the eahsr approval of the Committee; and

(D) the Stock withheld to satisfy tax withhimlg, if granted at the discretion of the Committexist pertain to an Award which has been
held by the participant for at least six monthsfrine date of grant of the Award.

SECTION 12. Transfer, Leave of Absence, Etc.
For purposes of the Plan, the following eventsisiwtibe deemed a termination of employment:

(a) a transfer to the employment of the Corgdaam a Subsidiary or from the Company to a Subsjd or from one Subsidiary to
another;

(b) an approved leave of absence for milisswyvice or sickness, or for any other purpose agardy the Company, if the employee’s
right to re-employment is guaranteed either byatug® or by contract or under the policy pursuamnwhich the leave of absence was granted
or if the Committee otherwise so provides in wagtin

SECTION 13. Amendments and Termination.

The Board may at any time amend or disconttheePlan and the Committee may at any time amegdrel any outstanding Award (or
provide substitute Awards at the same or reducedcese or purchase price or with no exercise oclpse price, but such price, if any, must
satisfy the requirements which would apply-to thbstitute or amended Award if it were then initiairanted under this Plan) for the purpose
of satisfying changes in law or for any other lalfurpose, but no such action shall adversely affgbts under any outstanding Award
without the holder’s consent. However, no such atmeant, unless approved by the stockholders of thrapgany, shall be effective if it would
cause the Plan to fail to satisfy the incentivelstaption requirements of the Code, or cause timges under the Plan to fail to satisfy the
requirements of Rule 16b-3 or any successor rulieutihe Act as in effect on the date of such amemtyor to cause any member of the
Committee to cease to be a disinterested persdhifvthe meaning of Rule 16b-3 under the Act) wéhpect to this Plan or any other plan of
the Company.

SECTION 14. Status of Plan.

With respect to the portion of any Award whidis not been exercised and any payments in castk & other consideration not received
by a participant, a participant shall have no sgireater than those of a general creditor of tra@any unless the Committee shall otherwise
expressly determine in connection with any Awardaards. In its sole discretion, the Committee raayhorize the creation of trusts or other
arrangements to meet the Company’s obligationglivet Stock or make payments with respect to Awdrereunder, provided that the
existence of such trusts or other arrangementsrisistent with the provision of the foregoing sente

SECTION 15. Change of Control Provisions.

(a) Upon the occurrence of a Change of Comisalefined in this Section 15:

() subject to the provisions of clause (fi§low, after the effective date of such Changeaitédl, each holder of an outstanding Stock
Option, Conditional Stock Award, Performance Shaanard or Stock Appreciation Right shall be entiflegon exercise of such Award, to
receive, in lieu of shares of

A-11




Stock (or consideration based upon the Fair Maviadie of Stock), shares of such stock or other i$ges, cash or property (or
consideration based upon shares of such stocker securities, cash or property) as the holdeshafes of Stock received in connection
with the Change of Control;

(i) the Committee may accelerate the timeeiercise of, and waive all conditions and resoit on, each unexercised and unexpired
Stock Option, Conditional Stock Award, Performastere Award and Stock Appreciation Right effectipen a dale prior or subsequen
the effective date of such Change of Control, dfgetby the Committee; or

(iii) each outstanding .Stock Option, CondidStock Award, Performance Share Award and Ségiceciation Right may be cancelled
by the Committee as of the effective date of arghdDhange of Control provided that (x) notice aftsgancellation shall be given to each
holder of such an Award and (y) each holder of sautclAward shall have the right to exercise such vita the extent that the same is then
exercisable or, if the Committee shall have acegderthe lime for exercise of all such unexercised unexpired Awards, in full during the
30-day period preceding the effective date of SDklnge of Control.

(b) “Change of Control” shall mean the oceunce of any one of the following events:

(i) any “person” (as such term is used in Beast 13(d) and 14(d)(2) of the Act) becomes a “liieizd owner” (as such term is defined in
Rule 13d-3 promulgated under the Act) (other then@ompany, any trustee or other fiduciary holdiegurities under an employee benefit
plan of the Company, or any corporation owned,dfliyeor indirectly, by the stockholders of the Camnp in substantially the same
proportions as their ownership of stock of the Camy, directly or indirectly, of securities of t®mpany representing thirty-five percent
(35%) or more of the combined voting power of tt@rpany’s then outstanding securities; or

(ii) persons who, as of January 1, 1994, ¢istl the Company’s Board (the “Incumbent BoamEase for any reason, including with
limitation as a result of a tender offer, proxy txst, merger or similar transaction, to constittteeast a majority of the Board, provided that
any person becoming a director of the Company sutese to January 1, 1994 whose election was apgroyeor who was nominated with
the approval of, at least a majority of the direstihen comprising the Incumbent Board shall, imppses of this Plan, be considered a
member of the Incumbent Board; or

(iiif) the stockholders of the Company apprav@erger or consolidation of the Company with ateocorporation or other entity, other
than (a) a merger or consolidation which would ltesuthe voting securities of the Company outstagdmmediately prior thereto
continuing to represent (either by remaining oundilag or by being converted into voting securitdéshe surviving entity) more than 65%
of the combined voting power of the voting secastof the Company or such surviving entity outsitagnédnmediately after such merger or
consolidation or (b) a merger or consolidation effd to implement a recapitalization of the Comp@msimilar transaction) in which no
“person” (as hereinabove defined) acquires more 8@ of the combined voting power of the Compariy&n outstanding securities; or

(iv) the stockholders of the Company approydsa of complete liquidation of the Company oragmeement for the sale or dispositior
the Company of all or substantially all of the Canp's assets.
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SECTION 16. General Provisions.

(a) No Distribution; Compliance with Legal Requiremeritse Committee may require each person acquiringeshaursuant to an Award
to represent to and agree with the Company inngrithat such person is acquiring the shares witaaigw to distribution thereof.

No shares of Stock shall be issued pursuaau tAward until all applicable securities law antey legal and stock exchange requirements
have been satisfied. The Committee may requir@ldeng of such stop orders and restrictive legerdsertificates for Stock and Awards as it
deems appropriate.

(b) Delivery of Stock Certificate®elivery of stock certificates to participants unttés Plan shall be deemed effected for all puegosher
the Company or a stock transfer agent of the Comphall have delivered such certificates in thetebhiStates mail, addressed to the
participant, at the participant’s last known addres file with the Company.

(c) Other Compensation Arrangements: No EmploymenttRilothing contained in this Plan shall prevent thaBiodrom adopting other
or additional compensation arrangements, incluthingts, subject to stockholder approval if suchrapal is required; and such arrangements
may be either generally applicable or applicablly anspecific cases. The adoption of the Planryr Award under the Plan does not confer
upon any employee any right to continued employnagtit the Company or any Subsidiary.

SECTION 17. Effective Date of Plan.

The Plan shall become effective upon apprbyahe holders of a majority of the shares of alock of the Company present or
represented and entitled to vote at a meetingoakbblders.
SECTION 18. Governing Law.

This Plan shall be governed by, and constamgtlenforced in accordance with, the substantiwve & The Commonwealth of Massachus
without regard to its principles of conflicts ofila.
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Exhibit 10.16.:

January 15, 2010

Barry N. Bycoff

The Ritz Carlton Tower

Boston Common

3 Avery Street, Unit 609
Boston, MA 02111-1005

Re: Extension of Term as Executive Chairnr

Dear Barry:

Reference is made to your employment letter (thagibyment Letter”), dated as of May 12, 2009, whéelts forth the terms and conditions of
your employment with Progress Software Corporaftbe“Company”) as Executive Chairman of the Board. Asvirled in the Employment
Letter, you currently serve as Executive Chairn@rafone-year term (the “Term”) expiring at the aarmeeting of shareholders of the
Company in fiscal 2010. The Board of Directorshed Company has requested, and you have agreedetalehe Term for an additional one-
year.

The parties are entering into this letter agreerteememorialize their understanding that the Tesrhdreby extended for an additional one year
such that the Term shall expire at the annual mgetf shareholders of the Company in fiscal 20bhé (Extended Term”). During the
Extended Term, all terms and conditions of your Emment Letter shall continue to apply, except aslified by the following paragraph.

In lieu of Paragraph 2 of the Employment LetterJanuary 12, 2010, the Company issued you 25,&8ated stock units, which will vest in
two equal installments, with the first installmeeisting on the six month anniversary of the datdefannual meeting of shareholders of the
Company in fiscal 2010 and the second installmestitng six months thereafter, subject to your casd service with the Company. The
number of restricted stock units issued to you setermined by dividing $760,000 by $29.47, whichswhe closing price of the Company’s
stock price on January 12, 2010.

Please confirm your agreement with the foregoingigping this letter agreement in the space inditat
Sincerely,
By: /s/ Michael L. Mark

Michael L. Mark

Lead Independent Director, Board of Direc
Progress Software Corporatit




| agree to the terms of this letter agreement.

/s/ Barry N. Bycofi 1/25/10

Barry N. Bycoff Date
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Exhibit 10.21

RESTRICTED STOCK UNIT AWARD AGREEMENT

UNDER THE PROGRESS SOFTWARE CORPORATION
2008 STOCK OPTION AND INCENTIVE PLAN

Name of Grantee
Number of Restricted Stock Unil
Grant Date:

Pursuant to the Progress Software Corpor&@8 Stock Option and Incentive Plan as amendedigir the date hereof (the “Plan”),
Progress Software Corporation (the “Company”) hegants the number of Restricted Stock Units (“R3pecified above (the “Awardtp
the Grantee named above, subject to the termsd?ldm and this Award Certificate. The Award reprgs a promise to pay to the Grantee one
share of Common Stock, par value $.01 per shaee'8tock”) of the Company for each RSU, subjedt®restrictions and conditions set forth
herein and in the Plan.

1. Restrictions

(a) No Voting Rights and Dividend®ntil such time as the RSUs are paid to the @it shares of Stock, the Grantee shall have no
voting rights and no rights to any dividends oresttistributions with respect to the RSUs.

(b) Restrictions on Transfefhe RSUs granted pursuant to this Agreement mapa sold, transferred, pledged, assigned, onotbe
alienated or hypothecated and any such attempangfer any RSU will not be honored.

2. Vesting of Restricted Stock Units

(a) Form of PaymenSubject to the Grantee being employed by the Gmypn each vesting date, the restrictions anditond in
Paragraph 1 of this Agreement with respect to ®@6b shall lapse and such RSU shall become payalte tGrantee in shares of Stock on
relevant vesting date specified below:

Vesting Date Vesting Percentac
April 1, 2010 1/6th
October 1, 2011 1/6th
April 1, 2011 1/6th
October 1, 201. 1/6th
April 1, 2012 1/6th

October 1, 201, 1/6th




(b) The Grantee's rights to all RSUs gedrherein and not yet vested in accordance wélpthvisions of Paragraph 2(a) shall
automatically terminate upon the Grantee’s ternmmadf employment, voluntarily or involuntarily, thithe Company and its Subsidiaries for
any reason (including death).

3. Receipt of Stock Upon Vestingpon the vesting of the RSUs as provided in Raf@y2(a), the Grantee shall receive one sharéookS
for each RSU vested. Shares of Stock acquired potsa this Award shall be issued and deliveretthéoGrantee either in actual stock
certificates or by electronic book entry, subjectax withholding as provided in Paragraph 6 below.

4. Incorporation of PlanNotwithstanding anything herein to the contrahys Agreement shall be subject to and governedllihe terms
and conditions of the Plan, including the powerthef Administrator set forth in the Plan. Capitatizerms in this Agreement shall have the
meaning specified in the Plan, unless a differegaming is specified herein.

5. Transferability This Agreement is personal to the Grantee, isassignable and is not transferable in any maniespbration of law ¢
otherwise, other than by will or the laws of desaard distribution.

6. Tax Withholding A taxable event will occur when the RSUs vesttht time of vesting, the Company will calculate #imount of the
tax withholding obligation based on the value & 8tock on the date of vest. The Grantee will teeeoption pursuant to the Election Form
attached hereto as Exhilitto pay the tax withholding obligation by deliverfyfaocheck for the amount of such withholding obfiga within
one business day following the date of vestingyothe Company withholding the required minimum amtduvom the shares of Stock to be
issued to the Grantee. If the Grantee does not maladection, the tax withholding obligation wik satisfied by the Company withholding the
required minimum amount from the shares of Stodketdssued to the Grantee. The Grantee may chhigyeléction by written notice to
Jocelyn Stanick, Senior Treasurer Analyst of then@any, up to thirty (30) days prior to the firsstiag date.

PROGRESS SOFTWARE CORPORATIC

By:
Title:

The foregoing Agreement is hereby acceptedtamderms and conditions thereof hereby agreég the undersigned.

Dated

Grante’s Signature
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To:

PROGRESS SOFTWARE CORPORATION
ELECTION FORM

Jocelyn Stanick, Senior Treasury Anal

| hereby elect to pay any required tax witklivog obligation as a result of the vesting of Restd Stock Units awarded pursuant to the
Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement to which tBlsection Form constitutes a part t

O Delivery of a check for the amount of such withhiegdobligation within one business day following ttate of vestin

O The Company withholding the required tax withhotgamount from the shares of common stock to beetssa me upol
vesting of such Restricted Stock Ur

The above election shall remain in effect unlesstify the Company of a new election on or befére date that is thirty days prior to 1
first vesting date of the Restricted Stock Ur

Executed thit day of , 2009.

Signature

Print Name



Subsidiaries of Progress Software Corporation

North America
Barbado:
California
California
California
Canad:
Canad:
Canadi
Canadi
Canad:
Canadi
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Deleware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Massachuset
Massachuset
Massachuset
Massachuset
Pennsylvani

Europe
Austria
Belgium
Belgium
Belgium
Czech Republi
Denmark
Finland
France
France
France
Germany
Germany
Ireland
Ireland
Ireland

Progress Software International Sales Corporz

Netfish Technologies, In
OpenAccess Software In
Savvion, Inc.

Actional Technologies, Ltc
NEON Systems Quebec, Ir
NEON Systems Canada Ir
Object Oriented Concepts, Ir

Progress Software Corporation of Canada

PeerDirect Compan
Apama Inc.
Actional Corporatior

IONA Government Technologies, Ir

IONA Technologies, Inc
NEON Systems, Inc

Netfish Technologies, Ini
Object Oriented Concepts, Ir
Pantero Corporatio
PeerDirect Corporatio
Persistence Software Ir

Progress Software International Corporat

Progress Software Corporati
Savvion International Corporatic
Xcalia Corp.

DataDirect Technologies Cor
Oak Park Realty LLC

Oak Park Realty Two LL(
Progress Security Corporati
Genesis Development Corporati

Progress Software Gesmi
DataDirect Technologies N

IONA Technologies (Belgium), S.

Progress Software N
Progress Software spol. s.r
Progress Software A/
Progress Software O
IONA Technologies, SARI
Progress Software S.
Xcalia SA

Progress Software Gmk
Sonic Software Gmbl
IONA Technologies Limitet
IONA Research (IRL) Ltd
Orbix Limited
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Italy

Italy
Netherland
Netherland
Netherland
Netherland
Norway

Polanc

Spair

Spair

Swedet
Switzerlanc
Switzerlanc
United Kingdorr
United Kingdorr
United Kingdorr
United Kingdorr
United Kingdorr
United Kingdorr
United Kingdorr

Latin America

Argenting
Brazil
Chile
Colombie
Mexico
Venezuel:

Asia Pacific

Australia
Australia
Australia
Beijing
Hong Konc
Hong Koncg
India

India
Japar
Japar
Korea
Malaysies
Singaport
Singapor
Singapor
South Africe

Other

Cayman lIsland

IONA Technologies (ITALIA) S.R.L
Progress Software Italy S.r

IONA Technologies (Netherlands) E
Progress Software B.)

Progress Software Europe B.
Savvion B.V.

Progress Software A/

Progress Software Sp. z.0

IONA Technologies Spain S
Progress Software S.L.|

Progress Software Svenska ;
IONA Technologies (Schweiz) Al
Progress Software A

Apama Limited

DataDirect Technologies Lt

NEON Systems UK Lt

IONA Technologies UK Ltd
Persistence Software Lt

Progress Software Limite

Sonic Software (UK) Limite

Progress Software de Argentina S
Progress Software do Brasil Ltc
Progress Software de Chile S
Progress Software de Colombia S
Progress Software, S.A. de C.
Progress Software de Venezuela C

IONA Technologies Asia Pacific Pt
Object Oriented Concepts Pty. Limit
Progress Software Pty. Lt

IONA Technologies China Limite

IONA R&D Research Centre (Beijing
Progress Software Corporation Limit
Progress Software Development Private Lim
Sawvion India Private Limite

IONA Technologies Japan, Lt

Progress Japan K

IONA Technologies Korea Limite
Progress Software (M) Sdn B

IONA Technologies Singapore PTE L
IONA Technologies PTY

Progress Software Corporation (S) Pte. |
Progress Software (Pty) Lt

IONA Technologies Financ
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EXHIBIT 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference ini®egion Statements Nos. 33-41752, 33-50654, 3206333-41393, 333-41403, 333-
80571, 333-98035, 333-101239, 333-122962, 333-13628 333-150555 on Form S-8 and Registration ®&téNo. 333-133724 on Form S-
3 of our reports dated January 29, 2010, relatirtpe financial statements and financial stateraen¢dules of Progress Software Corporation
and the effectiveness of Progress Software Corjporatinternal control over financial reporting,agaring in this Annual Report on Form 10-
K of Progress Software Corporation for the yeareehdovember 30, 2009.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Boston, Massachusetts
January 29, 2010



Exhibit 31.]

CERTIFICATION
I, Richard D. Reidy, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fRrogress Software Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorany untrue statement of a material fact or anditate a material fact necessary to make
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoeker which such statements were made, not misigadith respect to the period covered by
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, thegas presented in this report;

4. The registrang other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contasld procedures (as definec
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) forelestrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresused such disclosure control and procedares designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to tbgistrant, including its consolidated subsidigrie made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period ihigh this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financiglaing, or caused such internal control over foahreporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggtfae reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generallymedeaccounting principles;

c¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentiisineport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proes) as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the itegi’s internal control over financial reportirtat occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registramtourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuyadrg that has materially affected, or is reasopndikély to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal comiwger financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anbdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimernal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant’s auditors and the audit commitiEregistrant’s board of directors (or persongqrening the equivalent function):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal cortvel financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regidfsaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invalwveanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: January 29, 2010

/s/ RICHARD D. REIDY

Richard D. Reidy

President and Chief Executive Offic
(Principal Executive Officer]




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION
I, Norman R. Robertson, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fRrogress Software Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaior@ny untrue statement of a material fact or améitate a material fact necessary to make
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoeker which such statements were made, not misigadith respect to the period covered by
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, thegoks presented in this report;

4. The registrans other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contanld procedures (as definet
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) forelgestrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresiused such disclosure control and procedaries designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to tbgistrant, including its consolidated subsidigrie made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period ihieh this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financiglaiting, or caused such internal control over faiahreporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggatite reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generallymedeaccounting principles;

c¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentidsineport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees) as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the itegi’s internal control over financial reportirtat occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrantourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuabmg that has materially affected, or is reasopéikély to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal cohwer financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer antddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatioernal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant’s auditors and the audit commitiEregistrant’s board of directors (or persongquening the equivalent function):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cortvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regidfsaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invalwveanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: January 29, 2010

/s NORMAN R. ROBERTSON

Norman R. Robertsol

Senior Vice President, Finance ¢
Administration and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)




Exhibit 32.1
Certification Pursuant To 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, dAdopted Pursuant To Section 906 of the Sarbanesx@y Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on FormK.@f Progress Software Corporation (the Company}tie year ended November 30, 200¢
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissinithe date hereof (the Report), each of the ungieesl, Richard D. Reidy, President and
Chief Executive Officer, and Norman R. Robertsognisr Vice President, Finance and Administratiod @hief Financial Officer, of the
Company, certifies, to the best knowledge and befi¢he signatory, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Secti8B(, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof1934; anc

2. The information contained in the Report fairly mets, in all material respects, the financial ctodiand results of operations of 1

Company.
/s/ RICHARD D. REIDY /s/ NORMAN R. ROBERTSO!
President and Chief Executive Officer Senior Vice President, Finance and Administratiod

Chief Financial Office

Date: January 29, 20: Date: January 29, 20!



